
 
   Honoring the past, cultivating the present, empowering the future 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

Board of Library Trustees – Altadena Library District 
Community Room – Main Library 

 March 27, 2017 – 5:00 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC REQUESTS FOR DOCUMENTS:  The District provides a public inspection copy of all materials included in the 
agenda packet distributed to the Board members.  Members of the public who wish to obtain a copy of any document may do 
so by completing a Request for Public Document form and submitting it to Administration who will arrange for the documents to 
be copied at a charge of 15¢ per page.  Request forms are available at the District Administration offices. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. ROLL CALL: 

Ira Bershatsky, President  
Adalila Zelada-Garcia, Secretary 
Gwendolyn McMullins 
John McDonald 
Armando Zambrano 

 
3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

Opportunity for Board members to delete items, re-order items, continue items or make additions to the 
agenda pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(b). 

 
Recommended Action:  The Board of Library Trustees hereby adopts the Agenda as presented. 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

Citizens may address the Board regarding any item of Library business on or not on the agenda. Citizen 
comments are limited to 3 minutes per item.  At the discretion of the President, citizens may be allowed a 
longer presentation.  While all comments are welcome, the Brown Act does not allow the Board to take 
action on any item not on the agenda.  If speaking before the Board, please give your name and address, 
and state the agenda item and/or issue you wish to address. 
 

5.           PERSONNEL APPOINTMENTS / RESIGNATIONS / TERMINATIONS / TRANSFERS 
HIRES/PROMOTIONS: 
New Hires:  
 

Selena Alegria – Library Page 2/6/17 

Mark Parsons – Library Associate (Collection Development) 2/6/17 

Adriana Muro – Library Associate (Youth Services) 2/21/17 

 
6. FINANCIAL REPORTS  
 

a) Financial reports for November/December and 1st Half of Year (7/1 – 12/31 2016) 
(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 

 
Recommended Action:  The Board of Library Trustees hereby receives and files the Financial Reports. 

 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Consent Calendar adopting the Recommended Board Action will be enacted with one vote.  The Board 
President will first ask the staff and the Board if there is anyone who wishes to remove an item from the 
Consent Calendar for discussion and consideration.  The matters removed from the Consent Calendar will 
be considered individually at the end of the Consent agenda under “Items removed from the Consent 
Calendar”. The entire remaining Consent Calendar is then voted upon by roll call under one motion. 

 
Recommended Action:  The Board of Library Trustees hereby approves the items and recommended 
actions in the Consent Calendar listed below:  
a) Approval of minutes – Regular meeting held February 27, 2017 
b) Statistical Reports – February 2017  

Page 1 of 158



c) Departmental Monthly Report – February 2017 
 

8. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be discussed individually at this time. 
 

9. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
10. OLD BUSINESS 

a)  Human Resources Update – Report by HRNETwork (INFORMATION)  
b)  Community Conversations Update (INFORMATION) 
c)  Update: Phase I Renovation: (INFORMATION) 

 d)  Resolution 201701 Update (INFORMATION) 
e)  Review new Library Board of Trustees Handbook and Discuss Training Requirements and Board on-site       
Trainings and Retreats (DISCUSSION/ACTION)  

 f)   Joint meeting of FOAL and Board of Trustees Update (INFORMATION) 
 
11.  NEW BUSINESS 

a)  Approval of Revised Employee Manual (DISCUSSION/ACTION) 
b)  Review of Operating Plan (Mid-Year Update) (INFORMATION) 
 

12. CORRESPONDENCE & PRESS 
a) Press Clippings (INFORMATION) 

 
13.  REPORTS OF SUPPORT GROUPS  

a) Altadena Library Foundation 
b) Friends of the Altadena Library  

 
14.  REPORTS OF TRUSTEES  
 
15.     CLOSED SESSION 
The Board of Trustees will recess into closed session pursuant to the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government 
Code Section 54956.9) for conference with legal counsel – anticipated litigation. Significant exposure to 
litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: A potential legal case involving an 
employment claims of an employee where, in the opinion of the legislative body of the local agency on the 
advice of its legal counsel, based on existing facts and circumstances, there is a significant exposure to 
litigation against the local agency. 
 
16. RECESS BACK INTO OPEN SESSION 
 
17. PUBLIC REPORT OF ANY REPORTABLE ACTION FROM CLOSED SESSION.   
 
18.  AGENDA ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS  

This is an opportunity for Board members to request that items be placed on future agendas.  
 

19. ADJOURNMENT 
Recommended Action:  There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting is 
adjourned. 

Page 2 of 158



Altadena Library District 1:31 PM

Balance Sheet 03/20/2017

As of November 30, 2016 Accrual Basis

Nov 30, 16

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash & Investments

1080 · Petty Cash 777.00

Total Cash & Investments 777.00

Cash In Bank

1021 · Chase General Acct...2951 55,461.50

1026 · Chase HY Svgs...6883 4,172.57

1041 · Chase HY Svgs...6875 1,560,634.69

1045 · Cash HUD Checking...2969 43,265.68

Total Cash In Bank 1,663,534.44

Cash with County

1010.00 · Cash in County Treasury 104,350.78

1013 · FMV - COLA Funds 2,964.69

Total Cash with County 107,315.47

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,771,626.91

Total Checking/Savings 1,771,626.91

Other Current Assets

1400 · Property Taxes Receivable (40,612.12)

Total Other Current Assets (40,612.12)

Total Current Assets 1,731,014.79

Fixed Assets

Capital Assets

Accumulated Depreciation

1800 · Accum Depr (S & I) (1,017,286.20)

1900 · Accum Depr (FF & E) (616,863.36)

Total Accumulated Depreciation (1,634,149.56)

Depreciable Assets

1550 · Structures & Improvements 1,180,735.18

1700 · Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 688,651.08

Total Depreciable Assets 1,869,386.26

Non-Depreciable Assets

1500 · Land 77,280.28

1510 · Artwork 102,500.00

1521 · CIP - Building Upgrade 37,743.00

1522 · CIP - Conservation Garden 35,082.00

Total Non-Depreciable Assets 252,605.28

Total Capital Assets 487,841.98

Total Fixed Assets 487,841.98

Other Assets

 Page 1 of 2Page 3 of 158



Nov 30, 16

Deferred Outflows of Resources

1990 · DOR - Employer Contributions MD 159,174.00

1993 · DOR - Diff in Experience 7,575.00

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 166,749.00

Prepaids

1075 · SCLC Deposit Account 910.00

1076 · Prepaid Items & Deposits 24,426.72

Total Prepaids 25,336.72

Total Other Assets 192,085.72

TOTAL ASSETS 2,410,942.49

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

2000 · Accounts Payable 24,390.43

Total Accounts Payable 24,390.43

Credit Cards 11,954.94

Other Current Liabilities

2030 · GASB 45 OPEB Liability 89,113.66

2064 · Deferred Compensation - CalPERS 54.38

2100 · Payroll Payable

2100.01 · Payroll Liabilities (EE) 21.50

2100.03 · CalPers CLASSIC (EE Ded) 6,225.92

2100.04 · CalPers PEPRA (EE Ded) 7,104.44

2100.05 · Accrued Vacation Payable 72,489.53

2100.07 · CalPers 457 (EE Contribution) 4,175.21

2100.08 · CalPers 457 (EE Loan Repayment) 633.69

Total 2100 · Payroll Payable 90,650.29

Total Other Current Liabilities 179,818.33

Long Term Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

2601 · DIR - Diff Investment Earnings 35,930.00

2602 · DIR - Diff in Contributions 115,971.00

2603 · DIR - Changes in Proportions 211,556.00

2604 · DIR - Changes in Assumptions 71,672.00

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 435,129.00

2700 · Net Pension Liability 1,467,863.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 1,902,992.00

Total Liabilities 2,119,155.70

Equity

3300 · Retained Earnings 1,408,150.98

Net Income (1,116,364.19)

Total Equity 291,786.79

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,410,942.49

 Page 2 of 2Page 4 of 158



1:30 PM

03/20/2017

Accrual Basis

Nov 16 Nov 15 $ Change % Change

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

DONATIONS AND GRANTS

4730 · Undesignated 100.00 (100.00) (100.0%)

4750 · Cal State Library 13,500.00 (13,500.00) (100.0%)

4755 · HUD Grant 43,263.64 43,263.64 100.0%

Total DONATIONS AND GRANTS 43,263.64 13,600.00 29,663.64 218.12%

FINES & FEES

4305 · Fines 1,081.71 1,822.56 (740.85) (40.65%)

4310 · Printer & Copy Machine 455.00 376.00 79.00 21.01%

4340 · Passport Services Fees 5,622.00 4,048.00 1,574.00 38.88%

Total FINES & FEES 7,158.71 6,246.56 912.15 14.6%

INTEREST INCOME & ADJUSTMENTS

4210 · Chase Bank 111.72 0.71 111.01 15,635.21%

4220 · County Deposits 1,379.29 1,120.73 258.56 23.07%

Total INTEREST INCOME & ADJUSTMENTS 1,491.01 1,121.44 369.57 32.96%

OTHER REVENUE & ADJUSTMENT

4080 · Penalities, Interest & Costs 7,392.99 5,854.48 1,538.51 26.28%

4910 · Miscellaneous Income 53.50 1,087.18 (1,033.68) (95.08%)

Total OTHER REVENUE & ADJUSTMENT 7,446.49 6,941.66 504.83 7.27%

REVENUES

Property Taxes

4020 · Current Unsecured 12,561.67 12,404.87 156.80 1.26%

4030 · Prior Year 4,348.62 13,975.09 (9,626.47) (68.88%)

4070 · SB 813 Supplemental Roll 7,285.08 5,233.00 2,052.08 39.21%

Total Property Taxes 24,195.37 31,612.96 (7,417.59) (23.46%)

Special Assessment

4060 · Per Parcel Benefit Assessment 12,365.79 9,635.69 2,730.10 28.33%

Total Special Assessment 12,365.79 9,635.69 2,730.10 28.33%

Total REVENUES 36,561.16 41,248.65 (4,687.49) (11.36%)

Total Income 95,921.01 69,158.31 26,762.70 38.7%

Expense

PERSONNEL RELATED EXPENSES

5000 · SALARIES & WAGES

5010 · Salaried 91,983.56 114,997.58 (23,014.02) (20.01%)

5020 · Hourly 26,260.04 22,092.39 4,167.65 18.87%

Total 5000 · SALARIES & WAGES 118,243.60 137,089.97 (18,846.37) (13.75%)

5100 · Employer-Portion Taxes/Benefits

5120 · Payroll Taxes (ER) 9,296.39 10,367.29 (1,070.90) (10.33%)

5210 · PERS Retirement 29,198.02 (29,198.02) (100.0%)

5222 · OPEB Contribution 11,667.00 12,700.00 (1,033.00) (8.13%)

Altadena Library District

Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
November 2016

Page 5 of 158



5250 · SUI, Salaried 238.00 (238.00) (100.0%)

5251 · SUI, Hourly 164.11 (164.11) (100.0%)

Total 5100 · Employer-Portion Taxes/Benefits 20,963.39 52,667.42 (31,704.03) (60.2%)

5200 · Insurance

5220 · Health Insurance 31,608.05 (915.98) 32,524.03 3,550.74%

5230 · Dental Insurance 1,300.84 1,152.76 148.08 12.85%

5240 · Vision Insurance 395.92 417.03 (21.11) (5.06%)

5260 · Life Insurance 122.40 (2.96) 125.36 4,235.14%

5280 · Disability Insurance 553.52 553.52 100.0%

Total 5200 · Insurance 33,980.73 650.85 33,329.88 5,120.98%

Total 'PERSONNEL RELATED EXPENSES 173,187.72 190,408.24 (17,220.52) (9.04%)

CAPITAL

7310 · Equipment, Furniture & Fixtures 5,119.04 (5,119.04) (100.0%)

Total CAPITAL 5,119.04 (5,119.04) (100.0%)

FACILITIES, GROUNDS & MAINTENAN

7210 · Building Maint & Repairs 773.77 1,929.00 (1,155.23) (59.89%)

7220 · Landscape 414.31 9.25 405.06 4,379.03%

Total FACILITIES, GROUNDS & MAINTENAN 1,188.08 1,938.25 (750.17) (38.7%)

LIBRARY MATERIALS

6110 · Cataloging Expenses 1,425.42 1,380.88 44.54 3.23%

6120 · Books 9,724.75 8,793.45 931.30 10.59%

6125 · Audio CD 2,454.70 2,454.70 100.0%

6130 · DVD's & Videogames 3,170.72 289.30 2,881.42 996.0%

6135 · Processing of Materials 3,788.41 6,961.81 (3,173.40) (45.58%)

6140 · Periodicals 8,827.60 9,536.36 (708.76) (7.43%)

6150 · Downloadables 1,158.39 10,000.00 (8,841.61) (88.42%)

Total LIBRARY MATERIALS 30,549.99 36,961.80 (6,411.81) (17.35%)

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE

7510 · Miscellaneous Expense 200.00 (200.00) (100.0%)

Total MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 200.00 (200.00) (100.0%)

OPERATING EXPENSES

6620 · Membership Dues & Subscriptions 6,406.00 6,406.00 100.0%

6625 · Training & Education 134.50 525.00 (390.50) (74.38%)

6626 · Recruitment, Gifts and Memorial 207.50 207.50 100.0%

6627 · Advertising / Marketing 3,608.09 3,608.09 100.0%

6710 · Meetings & Travel 3,348.35 13.04 3,335.31 25,577.53%

6730 · Mileage & Parking Reimbursement 201.57 37.00 164.57 444.78%

6740 · Postage & Delivery 249.45 542.40 (292.95) (54.01%)

6745 · Banking & Service Fees 74.85 88.96 (14.11) (15.86%)

6746 · Payroll Fees 1,064.50 1,143.03 (78.53) (6.87%)

6765 · Janitorial Supplies 1,759.68 70.39 1,689.29 2,399.9%

6770 · Operating Supplies 3,699.70 43.60 3,656.10 8,385.55%

6780 · Operating Software 249.00 249.00 100.0%

6790 · Hardware (Computers / Tech) 193.00 193.00 100.0%

6920 · Electricity 3,549.70 2,921.27 628.43 21.51%

6930 · Natural Gas 109.37 22.30 87.07 390.45%

6940 · Water & Sewage 1,059.14 1,059.14 100.0%

Page 6 of 158



6950 · Refuse 533.12 533.12 100.0%

6960 · Products for Resale 157.10 157.10 100.0%

7530 · Direct Assessments/Admin Costs 716.30 (716.30) (100.0%)

Total OPERATING EXPENSES 26,604.62 6,123.29 20,481.33 334.48%

PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL

7125 · Audit and Financial Consulting 850.00 (850.00) (100.0%)

7130 · Legal Fees 6,575.00 6,575.00 100.0%

7135 · Technology Consulting 1,589.90 (1,589.90) (100.0%)

7145 · Collection Agency 89.50 89.50 100.0%

7155 · Consultants - Other 7,744.22 1,200.00 6,544.22 545.35%

7170 · Telecommunications 1,799.86 1,998.14 (198.28) (9.92%)

7175 · Internet Service 10,142.37 80.00 10,062.37 12,577.96%

7180 · Technology Equipment 15,392.10 15,392.10 100.0%

7185 · Technology Maintenance Fees 387.35 387.35 100.0%

Total PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL 42,130.40 5,718.04 36,412.36 636.8%

PROGRAMS

6200 · Youth Services 801.06 556.44 244.62 43.96%

6210 · Teen Services 47.17 535.00 (487.83) (91.18%)

6220 · Adult Services 834.35 1,379.63 (545.28) (39.52%)

6230 · Bob Lucas Branch Services 475.20 475.20 100.0%

6240 · Literacy Services 79.66 79.66 100.0%

Total PROGRAMS 2,237.44 2,471.07 (233.63) (9.46%)

Total Expense 275,898.25 248,939.73 26,958.52 10.83%

Net Ordinary Income (179,977.24) (179,781.42) (195.82) (0.11%)

Net Income (179,977.24) (179,781.42) (195.82) (0.11%)

Page 7 of 158



Altadena Library District 
Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison 03/14/2017 

As of December 31, 2016 Accrual Basis 

Dec 31,16 Dec 31, 15 $Change %Change 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 

Checking/Savings 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Cash & Investments 

1080 · Petty Cash 777.00 777.00 

Total Cash & Investments 777.00 777.00 

Cash In Bank 

1021 ·Chase General Acct. .. 2951 240740.17 2390819.05 (2150078.88) (89.68%) 

1026 ·Chase HY Svgs ... 6883 40365.80 30071.60 10294.20 42.13% 

1041 · Chase HY Svgs ... 6875 1 03600 728.03 250112.40 103350615.63 50318.55% 

1045 · Cash HUD Checking ... 2969 430265.68 2.04 430263.64 201200766.67% 

Total Cash In Bank 1,4330099.68 2680005.09 1 01650094.59 434.73% 

Cash with County 

1010.00 ·Cash in County Treasury 102530825.35 1 0981 0038.93 (727,213.58) (36.71 %) 

1010.10 · Trustee Election Reserve 1220122.95 (122,122.95) (100.0%) 

1010.20 ·Asset Replacement Reserve 1430939.00 (1430939.00) (100.0%) 

1013 · FMV - COLA Funds 20964.69 20964.69 100.0% 

Total Cash with County 102560790.04 202470100.88 (9900310.84) (44.07%) 

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 206900666.72 205150882.97 1740783.75 6.95% 

Total Checking/Savings 206900666.72 205150882.97 1740783.75 6.95% 

Other Current Assets 

1400 · Property Taxes Receivable (400612.12) (400612.12) (1 00.0%) 

Total Other Current Assets (400612.12) (400612.12) (100.0%) 

Total Current Assets 206500054.60 205150882.97 1340171 .63 5.33% 

Fixed Assets 

Capital Assets 

Accumulated Depreciation 

1800 · Accum Depr (S & I) (1 00170286.20) (1 00020725.14) ( 140561.06) (1.45%) 

1900 · Accum Depr (FF & E) (6160863.36) (6120732.21) (40131.15) (0.67%) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation (1 06340 149.56) (1 0615,457.35) (180692.21) (1.16%) 

Depreciable Assets 

1550 ·Structures & Improvements 101 880781.60 1 01800735.18 8,046.42 0.68% 

1700 ·Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 6910933.59 6830740.71 80192.88 1.2% 

Total Depreciable Assets 108800715.19 10864,475.89 160239.30 0.87% 

Non-Depreciable Assets 

1500 · Land 770280.28 77,280.28 

151 0 • Artwork 1020500.00 1020500.00 

1521 · CIP - Building Upgrade 37,743.00 370743.00 100.0% 

1522 · CIP - Conservation Garden 350082.00 350082.00 100.0% 

Total Non-Depreciable Assets 2520605.28 1790780.28 720825.00 40.51% 

Page 1 of 3 Page 8 of 158



Dec 31, 16 Dec 31 , 15 $Change % Change 

Total Capital Assets 499,170.91 428,798.82 70,372.09 16.41% 

Total Fixed Assets 499,170.91 428,798.82 70,372.09 16.41 % 

Other Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

1990 · DOR- Employer Contributions MD 159,174.00 159,174.00 100.0% 

1993 · DOR- Diffin Experience 7,575.00 7,575.00 100.0% 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 166,749.00 166,749.00 100.0% 

Prepaids 

1075 · SCLC Depos it Account 910.00 1,160.00 (250.00) (21.55%) 

1076 · Prepaid Items & Deposits 24,426.72 24,426.72 100.0% 

Total Prepaids 25,336.72 1,160.00 24,176.72 2,084.2% 

Total Other Assets 192,085.72 1,160.00 190,925.72 16,459.11% 

TOTAL ASSETS I 3,341,311 .23 2,945,841. 79 395,469.44 13.43% 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Liabilities I 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 

12000 · Accounts Payable 8,718.24 28,823.33 (20,1 05.09) (69.75%) 

Total Accounts Payable 8,718.24 28,823.33 (20,1 05.09) (69.75%) 

Credit Cards 

2200 · Credit Cards 

2200.01 · UMB Card Services ... 3219 36,740.62 36,740.62 100.0% 

Total 2200 · Credit Cards 36,740.62 36,740.62 100.0% 

Total Credit Cards 36,740.62 36,740.62 100.0% 

Other Current Liabilities 

2030 · GASB 45 OPES Liabi lity 89,113.66 189,067.52 (99,953.86) (52.87%) 

2064 · Deferred Compensation - CaiPERS 54.38 54.38 100.0% 

21 00 · Payroll Payable 

2100.01 · Payroll Liabilities (EE) 21.50 21 .50 100.0% 

2100.03 · CaiPers CLASSIC (EE Ded) 2,545.26 2,545.26 100.0% 

2100.04 · CaiPers PEPRA (EE Ded) 4,015.93 4,015.93 100.0% 

2100.05 · Accrued Vacation Payable 72,489.53 66,564.65 5,924.88 8.9% 

2100.07 · CaiPers 457 (EE Contribution) 1,395.65 1,395.65 100.0% 

2100.08 · CaiPers 457 (EE Loan Repayment) 211.23 211.23 100.0% 

Total2100 · Payroll Payable 80,679.10 66,564.65 14,114.45 21.2% 

Total Other Current Liabil ities 169,847.14 255,632.17 (85,785.03) (33.56%) 

Total Current Liabilities 21 5,306.00 284,455.50 (69,149.50) (24.31%) 

Long Term Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

2601 · DIR- Diff Investment Earnings 35,930.00 35,930.00 100.0% 

2602 · DIR- Diffin Contributions 115,971.00 115,971.00 100.0% 

2603 · DIR - Changes in Proportions 211,556.00 21 1,556.00 100.0% 

2604 · DIR - Changes in Assumptions 71,672.00 71 ,672.00 100.0% 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 435,1 29.00 435,129.00 100.0% 

Page 2 of 3 Page 9 of 158



I I Dec 31 , 16 Dec31 , 15 $Change % Change 

2700 · Net Pension Liability 1,467,863.00 1,467,863.00 100.0% 

!Total Long Term Liabilities 1,902,992.00 1,902,992.00 100.0% 

Total Liabilities 2,118,298.00 284,455.50 1,833,842.50 644.69% 

Equity J 

13300 · Retained Earnings 1 ,408,1 50.98 2,824,61 0.26 (1,416,459.28) (50.15%) 

JNet Income (185, 137.75) (163,223.97) (21 ,913.78) (13.43%) 

Total Equity J 1,223,013.23 2,661,386.29 (1,438,373.06) (54.05%) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,341,311.23 2,945,841.79 395,469.44 13.43% 

Page 3 of 3 Page 10 of 158



Altadena Library District 50% Complete 

Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison 03/15/2017 

July through December 2016 Accrual Basis 

Jui-Dec16 Jul- Dec 15 $Change \ %Change 

Ordinary Income/Expense 

Income 

DONATIONS AND GRANTS 

4710 · Friends of the Library 20,000.00 40,000.00 (20,000.00) (50.0%) 

4730 · Undesignated 515.00 175.00 340.00 194.29% 

4735 · Designated 1,250.00 510.00 740.00 145.1% 

4740 · CA Library Literacy Services 21 ,000.00 25,165.00 (4,165.00) (16.55%) 

4750 · Cal State Library 13,500.00 27,000.00 (13,500.00) (50.0%) 

4755 · HUD Grant 43,263.64 43,263.64 100.0% 

Total DONATIONS AND GRANTS 99,528.64 92,850.00 6,678.64 7.19% 

FINES & FEES 

4305 · Fines 10,962.64 16,114.29 (5,151 .65) (31.97%) 

4310 ·Printer & Copy Machine 3,705.50 3,877.02 (171.52) (4.42%) 

4330 · Video Game Rentals 416.00 (416.00) (100.0%) 

4340 · Passport Services Fees 36,351 .00 31,041.44 5,309.56 17.11% 

Total FINES & FEES 51,019.14 51 ,448.75 (429.61) (0.84%) 

INTEREST INCOME & ADJUSTMENTS 

4210 · Chase Bank 606.98 4.22 602.76 14,283.41 % 

4220 · County Deposits (100.97) (650.02) 549.05 84.47% 

Total INTEREST INCOME & ADJUSTMENTS 506.01 (645.80) 1,151 .81 178.35% 

OTHER REVENUE & ADJUSTMENT 

4080 · Penalities, Interest & Costs 9,096.31 7,916.10 1,180.21 14.91 % 

4910 · Miscellaneous Income 203.50 1,087.18 (883.68) (81.28%) 

4999 · Rewards & Incentives 2,000.00 2,000.00 100.0% 

Total OTHER REVENUE & ADJUSTMENT 11,299.81 9,003.28 2,296.53 25.51 % 

REVENUES 

Property Taxes 

4010 ·Current Secured 801 ,642.22 794,212.78 7,429.44 0.94% 

4020 · Current Unsecured 61,611 .91 56,677.70 4,934.21 8.71 % 

4030 · Prior Year 9,744.01 26,995.25 (17,251.24) (63.91%) 

4050 · Homeowners Exemption 2,102.39 2,116.74 (14.35) (0.68%) 

4070 · SB 813 Supplemental Roll 15,597.61 14,979.85 617.76 4.12% 

Total Property Taxes 890,698.14 894,982.32 (4,284.18) (0.48%) 

Special Assessment 

4060 · Per Parcel Benefit Assessment 313,650.50 300,574.40 13,076.10 4.35% 

Total Special Assessment 313.650.50 1 3oo,574.4o 1 13,076.10 1 4.35% 

Total REVENUES 1,204,348.64 1 1,1 95,556.72 8,791.92 \ 0.74% 

Total Income 1,366,702.24 1 ,348,212.95 18,489.29 1.37% 

Expense 

PERSONNEL RELATED EXPENSES 

5000 · SALARIES & WAGES 

Page 1 of 4 Page 11 of 158



I 
Jul- Dec 16 I Jul- Dec 15 $ Change % Change 

5010 · Salaried 594,177.70 614,169.10 (19,991.40) (3.26%) 

5020 · Hourly 153,140.98 120,317.41 32,823.57 27.28% 

Total 5000 · SALARIES & WAGES 747,318.68 734,486.51 12,832.17 1.75% 

5100 · Employer-Portion Taxes/Benefits 

5120 · Payroll Taxes (ER) 28,740.58 28,740.58 100.0% 

5120.01 · Soc Security & Medicare, Salary 20,486.21 46,309.79 (25,823.58) (55.76%) 

5120.02 · Soc Security & Medicare, Hourly 5,930.34 9,076.92 (3,146.58) (34.67%) 

5210 · PERS Retirement 

5210.01 · CaiPers CLASSIC (ER Contr) 8,501.08 8,501 .08 100.0% 

5210.02 · CaiPers PEPRA (ER Contr) 7,588.72 7,588.72 100.0% 

5211 · PERS Retirement 2% @ 55 85,323.82 85,323.82 100.0% 

5212 · PERS Retirement 2%@ 60 792.10 792.10 100.0% 

5213 · PERS Retirement 2% @ 62 9,129.11 9,129.1 1 100.0% 

5210 · PERS Retirement- Other 258.37 87,935.95 (87,677.58) (99.71%) 

Total 5210 · PERS Retirement 111,593.20 87,935.95 23,657.25 26.9% 

5222 · OPES Contribution 46,668.00 63,500.00 (16,832.00) (26.51%) 

5250 · SUI, Salaried 112.01 (1 ,955.79) 2,067.80 105.73% 

5251 · SUI, Hourly 697.64 966.14 (268.50) (27.79%) 

Total 5100 · Employer-Portion Taxes/Benefits 214,227.98 205,833.01 8,394.97 4.08% 

5200 · Insurance 

5220 · Health Insurance 89,675.16 86,944.65 2,730.51 3.14% 

I 5230 · Dental Insurance 7,436.55 6,866.44 570.11 8.3% 

5240 · Vision Insurance 2,676.98 2,502.18 174.80 6.99% 

5260 · Life Insurance 744.60 842.40 (97.80) (11.61%) 

5270 · Workers' Compensation 17,802.97 10,787.05 7,015.92 65.04% 

5280 · Disability Insurance 298.32 298.32 100.0% 

Total 5200 · Insurance 118,634.58 1 107,942.72 1 10,691.86 1 9.91% 

Total 'PERSONNEL RELATED EXPENSES 1 ,080,181.24 1,048,262.24 31,919.00 3.05% 

CAPITAL 

7310 · Equipment, Furniture & Fixtures 5,744.30 25,855.57 (20, 111.27) (77.78%) 

7320 · Structures & Improvements 5,000.00 5,000.00 100.0% 

Total CAPITAL 10,744.30 25,855.57 (1 5,1 11.27) (58.45%) 

FACILITIES, GROUNDS & MAJNTENAN 

7205 · Maintenance Contracts 1,909.68 3,188.64 (1 ,278.96) (40.11 %) 

7210 · Building Maint & Repairs 7,997.79 9,285.38 (1 ,287.59) (13.87%) 

7220 · Landscape 15,491.19 214.33 15,276.86 7,127.73% 

Total FACILITIES, GROUNDS & MAINTENAN 25,398.66 12,688.35 12,710.31 100.17% 

LIBRARY MATERIALS 

6110 · Cataloging Expenses 8,733.98 10,526.39 (1 ,792.41) (17.03%) 

6115 · Electronic Databases & Subscrip 17,658.77 10,956.18 6,702.59 61.18% 

6120 · Books 51 ,442.60 51,961 .07 (518.47) (1.0%) 

6125 · Audio CD 10,713.73 8,294.49 2,419.24 29.17% 

6130 · DVD's & Videogames 14,273.92 6,011.71 8,262.21 137.44% 

6135 · Processing of Materials 21,974.56 21,074.43 900.13 4.27% 

Page 2 of 4 
Page 12 of 158



I I I 
Jul - Dec 16 I Jul · Dec 15 I $Change I % Change 

6140 · Periodicals 10,241.88 11 ,824.46 (1 ,582.58) (13.38%) 

6150 · Downloadables 8,752.32 11 ,178.39 (2,426.07) (21.7%) 

Total LIBRARY MATERIALS 143,791.76 131,827.12 11,964.64 9.08% 

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 

7510 · Miscellaneous Expense (660.61) 390.17 (1.050.78) (269.31%) 

Total MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE (660.61) 390.17 (1 ,050.78) (269.31%) 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

6430 · Insurance-Gen. Prop, Liab, Eq 19,858.61 29,381.49 (9,522.88) (32.41 %) 

6620 · Membership Dues & Subscriptions 12,01 5.00 13,279.84 (1 ,264.84) (9.53%) 

6625 · Training & Education 3,71 4.50 4,938.00 (1 ,223.50) (24.78%) 

6626 · Recruitment, Gifts and Memorial 2,619.03 2,073.55 545.48 26.31% 

6627 · Adverti sing I Marketing 13,185.69 5,916.56 7,269.13 122.86% 

6710 · Meetings & Travel 6,775.08 3,386.32 3,388.76 100.07% 

6730 · Mileage & Parking Reimbursement 339.42 345.19 (5.77) (1.67%) 

6740 · Postage & Delivery 1,713.04 3,158.98 (1,445.94) (45.77%) 

6745 · Banking & Service Fees 711 .60 1,170.89 (459.29) (39.23%) 

6746 · Payroll Fees 7,064.36 6,362.30 702.06 11.04% 

6750 · Printing & Reproduction 254.63 4,258.94 (4,004.31) (94.02%) 

6755 · Equipment, Furniture, Fixtures 4,591.97 1,606.23 2,985.74 185.89% 

6765 · Janitorial Supplies 6,630.82 7,795.97 (1,165.15) (14.95%) 

6770 · Operating Supplies 15,156.02 13,200.75 1,955.27 14.81% 

6780 · Operating Software 249.00 32,350.95 (32, 1 01.95) (99.23%) 

6790 · Hardware (Computers I Tech) 585.50 2,198.78 (1,613.28) (73.37%) 

6920 · Electricity 16,981 .95 25,943.1 1 (8,961.16) (34.54%) 

6930 · Natural Gas 747.24 712.84 34.40 4.83% 

6940 · Water & Sewage 2,665.26 2,208.73 456.53 20.67% 

6950 · Refuse 1,758.47 2,543.34 (784.87) (30.86%) 

6960 · Products for Resale 216.10 216.10 100.0% 

6970 · Equipment Lease & Rental 6,226.18 6,072.14 154.04 2.54% 

7530 · Direct AssessmentsiAdmin Costs 27,677.23 27,41 3.59 263.64 0.96% 

Total OPERATING EXPENSES 151,736.70 196,31 8.49 (44,581.79) (22.71%) 

PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL 

7125 · Audit and Financial Consulting 15,912.50 7,512.50 8,400.00 111.81% 

7130 · Legal Fees 13,539.98 2,961.06 10,578.92 357.27% 

7135 ·Technology Consulting 1,078.80 12,694.39 (11,615.59) (91 .5%) 

7145 · Collection Agency 510.15 572.80 (62.65) (10.94%) 

7155 · Consultants· Other 16,688.24 7,310.00 9,378.24 128.29% 

7170 · Telecommunications 1,358.96 13,487.27 (12,128.31) (89.92%) 

7175 · Internet Service 19,736.17 1,043.42 18,692.75 1,791.49% 

7180 ·Technology Equipment 22,367.06 11,470.48 10,896.58 95.0% 

7185 · Technology Maintenance Fees 37,430.81 5,728.62 31,702.19 553.4% 

Total PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL 128,622.67 62,780.54 65,842.13 104.88% 

PROGRAMS j 

6200 · Youth Services 3,532.82 7,066.05 (3,533.23) (50.0%) 

Page 3 of 4 Page 13 of 158



I I I 
Jul· Dec 16 I Jul- Dec 15 I $Change % Change 

6210 · Teen Services 830.71 15,863.44 (15,032.73) (94.76%) 

6220 · Adult Services 6,756.08 7,516.47 (760.39) (10.12%) 

6230 · Bob Lucas Branch Services 821 .31 573.09 248.22 43.31% 

6240 · Literacy Services 84.35 2,295.39 (2,211 .04) (96.33%) 

Total PROGRAMS 12,025.27 1 33,314.44 (21,289.17)1 (63.9%) 

Total Expense 1,551,839.99 1,511 ,436.92 1 40,403.07 1 2.67% 

Net Ordinary Income (185,137.75)1 (163,223.97) (21,913. 78)1 (13.43%) 

Net Income (185,137.75)1 (163,223.97) (21,913.78)1 (13.43%) 

Page 4 of 4 
Page 14 of 158



Altadena Library District 50% Complete 

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 03/14/201 7 

July through December 2016 Accrual Basis 

Jul- Dec 16 I Budget I $ Over Budget I % of Budget 

Ordinary Income/Expense 

Income 

DONATIONS AND GRANTS 

4710 · Friends of the Library 20,000.00 40,000.00 (20,000.00) 50.0% 

4730 · Undesignated 515.00 500.00 15.00 103.0% 

4735 · Designated 1,250.00 500.00 750.00 250.0% 

4740 · CA Library Literacy Services 21,000.00 25,165.00 (4,165.00) 83.45% 

4750 · Cal State Library 13,500.00 13,500.00 100.0% 

4755 · HUD Grant 43,263.64 43,263.64 100.0% 

Total DONATIONS AND GRANTS 99,528.64 66,165.00 33,363.64 150.43% 

FINES & FEES 

4305 · Fines 10,962.64 33,000.00 (22,037.36) 33.22% 

4310 · Printer & Copy Machine 3,705.50 8,500.00 (4,794.50) 43.59% 

4330 · Video Game Rentals 

4340 · Passport Services Fees 36,351.00 75,000.00 (38,649.00) 48.47% 

Total FINES & FEES 51,019.14 116,500.00 (65,480.86) 43.79% 

INTEREST INCOME & ADJUSTMENTS 

4210 · Chase Bank 606.98 20.00 586.98 3,034.9% 

4220 · County Deposits (100.97) 10,000.00 (10,1 00.97) (1.01%) 

Total INTEREST INCOME & ADJUSTMENTS 506.01 10,020.00 (9,513.99) 5.05% 

OTHER REVENUE & ADJUSTMENT 

4080 · Penalities, Interest & Costs 9,096.31 15,450.00 (6,353.69) 58.88% 

4910 · Miscellaneous Income 203.50 5,000.00 (4,796.50) 4.07% 

4940 · Transfer in from Reserves 174,383.00 (174,383.00) 

4999 · Rewards & Incentives 2,000.00 

Total OTHER REVENUE & ADJUSTMENT 11,299.81 194,833.00 ( 183,533.19) 5.8% 

REVENUES 

Property Taxes 

4010 · Current Secured 801,642.22 2,027,714.00 ( 1,226,071 . 78) 39.53% 

4020 · Current Unsecured 61,611.91 72,100.00 (1 0,488.09) 85.45% 

4030 · Prior Year 9,744.01 10,300.00 (555.99) 94.6% 

4050 · Homeow ners Exemption 2,102.39 7,725.00 (5,622.61) 27.22% 

4070 · SB 813 Supplemental Roll 15,597.61 28,840.00 (13,242.39) 54.08% 

4090 · RDA ABx126 Income 26,500.00 (26,500.00) 

Total Property Taxes 890,698.14 2,173,179.00 (1,282,480.86) 40.99% 

Special Assessment 

4060 · Per Parcel Benefit Assessment 313,650.50 780,996.00 (467,345.50) 40.16% 

Total Special Assessment 31 3,65o.5o 1 780.996.oo 1 (467,345.50)1 40.1 6% 

Total REVENUES 1.204,348.64 1 2,954,175.00 (1,749,826.36)1 40.77% 

Total Income 1,366,702.24 3,341,693.00 (1 ,974,990.76) 40.9% 

Expense 

Page 1 of 4 Page 15 of 158



I I I 
Jul- Dec 16 Budget $ Over Budget I % of Budget 

PERSONNEL RELATED EXPENSES 

5000 · SALARIES & WAGES 

5010 · Salaried 594,177.70 1,314,365.00 (720,187.30) 45.21% 

5020 · Hourly 153,140.98 212,693.00 (59,552.02) 72.0% 

Total 5000 · SALARIES & WAGES 747,318.68 1,527,058.00 (779, 739.32) 48.94% 

5100 · Employer-Portion Taxes/Benefits 

5120 ·Payroll Taxes (ER) 28,740.58 

5120.01 · Soc Security & Medicare, Salary 20,486.21 100,549.00 (80,062. 79) 20.37% 

5120.02 · Soc Security & Medicare, Hourly 5,930.34 16,271 .00 {1 0,340.66) 36.45% 

5210 · PERS Retirement 

5210.01 · CaiPers CLASSIC (ER Contr) 8,501.08 

5210.02 · CaiPers PEPRA (ER Contr) 7,588.72 

5211 · PERS Retirement 2% @ 55 85,323.82 

5212 · PERS Retirement 2%@ 60 792.1 0 

521 3 · PERS Retirement 2%@ 62 9,129.11 

5210 · PERS Retirement- Other 258.37 180,765.00 (180,506.63) 0. 14% 

Total 5210 · PERS Retirement 111,593.20 180,765.00 (69,171 .80) 61.73% 

5222 · OPEB Contribution 46,668.00 140,000.00 (93,332.00) 33.33% 

5250 · SUI, Salaried 112.01 15,233.00 (15,120.99) 0.74% 

5251 · SUI, Hourly 697.64 2,465.00 {1.767.36) 28.3% 

Total 5100 · Employer-Portion Taxes/Benefits 214,227.98 455,283.00 (241,055.02) 47.05% 

5200 · Insurance 

5220 · Health Insurance 89,675.16 204,000.00 (1 14,324.84) 43.96% 

5230 · Dental Insurance 7,436.55 14,435.00 (6,998.45) 51 .52% 

5240 · Vision Insurance 2,676.98 4,308.00 (1,631.02) 62.14% 

5260 · Life Insurance 744.60 1,710.00 (965.40) 43.54% 

5270 · Workers' Compensation 17,802.97 18,000.00 (197.03) 98.91% 

5280 · Disability Insurance 298.32 

Total 5200 · Insurance 118,634.58 1 242,453.oo 1 (123,818.42)1 48.93% 

Total 'PERSONNEL RELATED EXPENSES 1,080,181 .24 2,224,794.00 (1,1 44,612.76) 48.55% 

CAPITAL 

7310 · Equipment, Furniture & Fixtures 5,744.30 20,000.00 {14,255. 70) 28.72% 

7320 · Structures & Improvements 5,000.00 128,156.00 (123,156.00) 3.9% 

Total CAPITAL 10,744.30 148,156.00 (137,411 .70) 7.25% 

FACILITIES, GROUNDS & MAINTENAN I 
7205 · Maintenance Contracts 1,909.68 8,000.00 (6,090.32) 23.87% 

7210 · Building Main! & Repairs 7,997.79 40,000.00 (32,002.21 ) 19.99% 

7220 · Landscape 15,491 .19 15,000.00 491 .19 103.28% 

Total FACILITIES, GROUNDS & MAINTENAN 25,398.66 63,000.00 (37,601.34) 40.32% 

LIBRARY MATERIALS 

6110 · Cataloging Expenses 8,733.98 19,604.00 (10,870.02) 44.55% 

6115 · Electronic Databases & Subscrip 17,658.77 15,000.00 2,658.77 117.73% 

6120 · Books 51 ,442.60 166,944.00 {115,501.40) 30.81 % 

6125 · Audio CD 10,713.73 19,253.00 (8,539.27) 55.65% 

Page 2 of 4 Page 16 of 158



I I 
Jul· Dec 16 I Budget I $ Over Budget I %of Budget 

61 30 · DVD's & Videogames 14,273.92 25,110.00 (10,836.08) 56.85% 

6135 · Processing of Materials 21,974.56 50,000.00 (28,025.44) 43.95% 

6140 · Periodicals 10,241 .88 12,500.00 (2,258.12) 81.94% 

6150 · Downloadables 8,752.32 20,000.00 (11 ,247.68) 43.76% 

Total LIBRARY MATERIALS 143,791 .76 328,411.00 (184,619.24) 43.78% 

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 

7510 · Miscellaneous Expense (660.61 ) 2,000.00 (2,660.61) (33.03%) 

7520 · Refunds/Parcel 1,000.00 (1 ,000.00) 

Total MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE (660.61) 3,000.00 (3,660.61) (22.02%) 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

6430 · lnsurance-Gen, Prop, liab, Eq 19,858.61 31,000.00 (11,141.39) 64.06% 

6620 · Membership Dues & Subscriptions 12,015.00 13,000.00 (985.00) 92.42% 

6625 · Training & Education 3,714.50 8,000.00 (4,285.50) 46.43% 

6626 · Recruitment, Gifts and Memorial 2,619.03 5,000.00 (2,380.97) 52.38% 

6627 · Advertising I Marketing 13,185.69 30,000.00 (16,814.31) 43.95% 

6710 · Meetings & Travel 6,775.08 6,000.00 775.08 112.92% 

6730 · Mileage & Parking Reimbursement 339.42 1,000.00 (660.58) 33.94% 

6740 · Postage & Delivery 1,71 3.04 9,500.00 (7,786.96) 18.03% 

6745 · Banking & Service Fees 711 .60 2,000.00 (1,288.40) 35.58% 

6746 · Payroll Fees 7,064.36 13,000.00 (5,935.64) 54.34% 

6750 · Printing & Reproduction 254.63 6,000.00 (5,745.37) 4.24% 

6755 · Equipment, Furniture, Fixtures 4,591.97 5,000.00 (408.03) 91.84% 

6765 · Janitorial Supplies 6,630.82 14,500.00 (7,869.18) 45.73% 

6770 · Operating Supplies 15,156.02 30,000.00 ( 14,843.98) 50.52% 

6780 · Operating Software 249.00 5,000.00 (4,751 .00) 4.98% 

6790 · Hardware (Computers I Tech) 585.50 8,000.00 (7,414.50) 7.32% 

6920 · Electricity 16,981.95 42,000.00 (25,018.05) 40.43% 

6930 · Natural Gas 747.24 5,500.00 (4,752.76) 13.59% 

6940 · Water & Sewage 2,665.26 5,600.00 (2,934.74) 47.59% 

6950 · Refuse 1,758.47 4,500.00 (2,741.53) 39.08% 

6960 · Products for Resale 216.10 500.00 (283.90) 43.22% 

6970 · Equipment l ease & Rental 6,226.1 8 15,424.00 (9,197.82) 40.37% 

7530 · Direct Assessments/Admin Costs 27,677.23 23,133.00 4,544.23 119.64% 

Total OPERATING EXPENSES 151,736.70 283,657.00 (131 ,920.30) 53.49% 

PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL 

7125 · Audit and Financial Consulting 15,912.50 14,000.00 1,912.50 113.66% 

7130 · l egal Fees 13,539.98 10,000.00 3,539.98 135.4% 

7135 ·Technology Consulting 1,078.80 20,000.00 (18,921.20) 5.39% 

7140 · Architecturial & Engineering 9,000.00 (9,000.00) 

7145 · Collection Agency I 510.15 1,800.00 (1,289.85) 28.34% 

7155 · Consultants· Other 16,688.24 I 30,000.00 (13,311.76) 55.63% 

7170 · Telecommunications 1,358.96 25,000.00 (23,641.04) 5.44% 

7175 ·Internet Service 19,736.17 6,575.00 13,161.1 7 300.17% 

7180 · Technology Equipment 22,367.06 56,000.00 (33,632.94) 39.94% 

Page 3 of 4 Page 17 of 158



I 
Jul- Dec 16 I Budget I $ Over Budget I % of Budget 

7185 · Technology Maintenance Fees 37,430.81 52,800.00 (15,369.19) 70.89% 

7190 · Website Development 20,000.00 (20,000.00) 

Total PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL 128,622.67 245,175.00 (116,552.33) 52.46% 

PROGRAMS 

6200 · Youth Services 3,532.82 10,000.00 (6,467.18) 35.33% 

6210 ·Teen Services 830.71 5,500.00 (4,669.29) 15.1% 

6220 · Adult Services 6,756.08 25,000.00 (18,243.92) 27.02% 

6230 · Bob Lucas Branch Services 821.31 2,000.00 (1,178.69) 41 .07% 

6240 · Literacy Services 84.35 3,000.00 (2,915.65) 2.81% 

Total PROGRAMS 12,025.27 1 4s,5oo.oo 1 (33,47 4. 73) 1 26.43% 

Total Expense 1 ,551,839.99 3,341.693.oo 1 (1,789,853.01) 46.44% 

Net Ordinary Income I (185,137.75) I (185,137.75) 100.0% 

Net Income (185,137.75)1 I (185,137.75)1 100.0% 

Page 4 of 4 Page 18 of 158



Altadena Library District 50% Complete 

Profit & Loss% of Total 
July 2016 through December 2016 Accrual Basis 

Jul '16- Dec 16 I %of Total 
Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

DONATIONS AND GRANTS 
4710 ·Friends of the Library 20,000.00 1.46% 
Designated & Undesignated 1,765.00 0.13% 
4740 · CA Library Literacy Services 21 ,000.00 1.54% 
HUD Grant 43,263.64 3.17% 
4750 · Cal State Library 13,500.00 0.99% 

Total DONATIONS AND GRANTS 99 ,528 .64 7.28% 
FINES & FEES 

4305 ·Fines 10,962.64 0.8% 
4310 · Printer & Copy Machine 3,705.50 0.27% 
4340 ·Passport Services Fees 36,351.00 2.66% 

Total FINES & FEES 51 ,019.14 3.73% 
INTEREST INCOME & ADJUSTMENTS 

4210 · Chase Bank 606.98 0.04% 
4220 ·County Deposits (1 00.97) (0.01 %) 

Total INTEREST INCOME & ADJUSTMENTS 506.01 0.04% 
OTHER REVENUE & ADJUSTMENT 

4080 · Penalities, Interest & Costs 9,096.31 0.67% 
Rewards and Incentives 2,000.00 0.15% 
4910 · Miscellaneous Income 203.50 0.01 % 

Total OTHER REVENUE & ADJUSTMENT 11 ,299.81 0.83% 
REVENUES 

Property Taxes 
4010 · Current Secured 801 ,642.22 58.66% 
4020 · Current Unsecured 61 ,611.91 4.51 % 
4030 · Prior Year 9,744.01 0.71 % 
4050 · Homeowners Exemption 2,102.39 0.15% 
4070 · SB 813 Supplemental Roll 15,597.61 1.14% 

Total Property Taxes 890,698.14 65.17% 
Special Assessment 

4060 · Per Parcel Benefit Assessment 313,650.50 22.95% 
Total Special Assessment I 313,650.50 22.95% 

Total REVENUES 1,204,348 .64 88.12% 
Total Income 1,366,702.24 100.0% 
Expense 

PERSONNEL RELATED EXPENSES 
5000 · SALARIES & WAGES 

Page 19 of 158



5010 · Salaried 594,177.70 38.29% 
5020 · Hourly I 153,140.98 9.87% 

Total 5000 · SALARIES & WAGES 747,318.68 48.16% 
5100 · Employer-Portion Taxes/Benefits 

5120 Payroll Taxes (ER) 28 ,740.58 1.85% 
5120.02 · Soc Security & Medicare 26,416.55 1.7% 
5210 · PERS Retirement I 11 1,593.20 7.19% 
5222 · OPEB Contribution 46,668.00 3.01 % 
SUI I 809.65 1 0.05% 

Total 5100 · Employer-Portion Taxes/Bene, 214,227.98 13.8% 
5200 · Insurance 

5220 · Health Insurance 89,675.16 5.78% 
5230 · Dental Insurance 7,436.55 0.48% 
/5240 · Vision Insurance I 2,676.98 0.1 7% 
5260 · Life Insurance 744.60 0.05% 
Workers' Compensation & Disability 18,101 .29 / 1.17% 

Total 5200 · Insurance 118,634.58 I 7.64% 
Totai 'PERSONNEL RELATED EXPENSES 1,080,181 .24 69.61 % 
CAPITAL I I 

I 7310 · Equipment, Furniture & Fixtures 5,744.30 1 0.37% 
7320 · Structures & Improvements 5,ooo.oo I 0.32% 

I Total CAPITAL/ 10,744.30 0.69% 
FACILITIES, GROUNDS & MAINT. I 

7205 · Maintenance Contracts I 1,909.68 0.12% 
7210 · Building Maint & Repairs 7,997.79 0.52% 
7220 · Landscape 15,491 .19 / 1.0% 

Total FACILITIES, GROUNDS & MAINT. 25,398.66 1 1.64% 
LIBRARY MATERIALS 

6110 · Cataloging Expenses 8,733.98 0.56% 
6115 · Electronic Databases 17,658.77 1.14% 
6120 ·Books 51 ,442.60 3.31 % 
6125 · Audio CD I 10,713.73 0.69% 

I 6130 · DVD's & Videogames 14,273.92 0.92% 
I 

6135 · Processing of Materials 21,974.56 1.42% 
6140 · Periodicals 10,241 .88 0.66% 

I 6150 · Downloadables 8,752.32 0.56% 
Total LIBRARY MATERIALS 143,791 .76 9.27% 
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 

7510 · Miscellaneous Expense (660.61) / (0.04%) 
Total MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE I (660.61) 1 (0.04%) 
OPERATING EXPENSES 

6430 · Insurance-Gen. Prop, Liab, Eq 19,858.61 1.28% 
6620 · Membership Dues & Subscriptions 12,015.00 0.77% 
6625 · Training & Education 3,714.50 I 0.24% 

Page 20 of 158



6626 · Recruitment, Gifts and Memorial 2,619.03 0.17% 
6627 · Advertising I Marketing 13, 185.69 0.85% 
6710 · Meetings & Travel 6,775.08 0.44% 
6730 · Mileage & Parking Reimbursement 339.42 0.02% 
6740 ·Postage & Delivery 1,713.04 0.11 % 
6745 · Banking & Service Fees 711.60 0.05% 
67 46 · Payroll Fees 7,064.36 0.46% 
6750 · Printing & Reproduction 254.63 0.02% 
6755 · Equipment, Furniture, Fixtures 4,591 .97 0.3% 
6765 · Janitorial Supplies 6,630.82 0.43% 
6770 • Operating Supplies 15,156.02 0.98% 
6780 · Operating Software 249.00 0.02% 
6790 · Hardware (Computers I Tech) 585.50 0.04% 
6920 · Electricity 16,981.95 1.09% 
6930 · Natural Gas 747.24 0.05% 
6940 · Water & Sewage 2,665.26 0.17% 
6950 · Refuse 1,758.47 0.11 % 
6960 · Products for Resale 216.10 0.01 % 
6970 · Equipment Lease & Rental 6,226.18 0.4% 
7530 · Direct AssessmentsiAdmin Costs 27,677.23 1 1.78% 

Total OPERATING EXPENSES 151,736.70 9.78% 
PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL 

7125 · Audit and Financial Consulting 15,912.50 1.03% 
7130 · Legal Fees 13,539.98 0.87% 
7135 ·Technology Consulting 1,078.80 0.07% 
7145 · Collection Agency 510.15 0.03% 
Consultants 16,688.24 1.08% 

I 7170 ·Telecommunications 1,358.96 0.09% 
7175 • Internet Service 19,736.17 1.27% 
7180 ·Technology Equipment 22,367.06 1.44% 
7185 · Technology Maintenance Fees 37,430.81 2.41 % 
7190 · Website Development 0.00 0.0% 

Total PROFESSIONAL & TECHNICAL 128,622.67 8.29% 
PROGRAMS 

6200 ·Youth Services 3,532.82 0.23% 
6210 · Teen Services 830.71 0.05% 
6220 · Adult Services 6,756.08 0.44% 
6230 · Bob Lucas Branch Services 821.31 0.05% 
6240 · Literacy Services 84.35 0.01 % 

Total PROGRAMS 12,025.27 1 0.77% 
Total Expense 1,551 ,839.99 100.0% 

Net Income (185,137.75)1 

Page 21 of 158



 
   Honoring the past, cultivating the present, empowering the future 

MINUTES 
Regular Meeting 

Board of Library Trustees – Altadena Library District 
Community Room – Main Library 
 February 27, 2017 – 5:05 p.m. 

 
PUBLIC REQUESTS FOR DOCUMENTS:  The District provides a public inspection copy of all materials included in the 
agenda packet distributed to the Board members.  Members of the public who wish to obtain a copy of any document may do 
so by completing a Request for Public Document form and submitting it to Administration who will arrange for the documents to 
be copied at a charge of 15¢ per page.  Request forms are available at the District Administration offices. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. ROLL CALL: 

Ira Bershatsky, President Present 
Adalila Zelada-Garcia, Secretary Present 
Gwendolyn McMullins Present 
John McDonald Present 
Armando Zambrano Present

 
3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

Opportunity for Board members to delete items, re-order items, continue items or make additions to the 
agenda pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(b). 

 
Recommended Action:  The Board of Library Trustees hereby adopts the Agenda as presented. 
Director Kittay noted that the Financial Reports for item 6 were not ready as she had not yet received 
the information from the Accountant and she intended to present year end financials for 2015/2016 
instead.  
Moved by McMullins to adopt the agenda as amended. Seconded by McDonald.  

 
4. PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

Citizens may address the Board regarding any item of Library business on or not on the agenda. Citizen 
comments are limited to 3 minutes per item.  At the discretion of the President, citizens may be allowed a 
longer presentation.  While all comments are welcome, the Brown Act does not allow the Board to take 
action on any item not on the agenda.  If speaking before the Board, please give your name and address, 
and state the agenda item and/or issue you wish to address. 
 
Donna Gajavada requested to speak before the board, noting that the District only posts the Agenda 
for the Board Meetings with no supporting documents, and that she would like to see the Board 
Package and supporting documents, specifically, the employee handbook and human resources 
update. 
Administrative Assistant Kylynn Chaney noted that she is welcome to submit a public records 
request for the documentation.  
Director Kittay noted that she is willing to post the Board Package to the website, but the Board has 
previously instructed her not to do so. 
Trustee Zelada-Garcia and Trustee Bershatsky noted that it would be beneficial to have this 
information on the website, and thanked the patron for her suggestions. 
 

5.           PERSONNEL APPOINTMENTS / RESIGNATIONS / TERMINATIONS / TRANSFERS 
HIRES/PROMOTIONS: 
New Hires:  
Yuni LaFontaine – Volunteer Coordinator 
Rebecca Moreton – Clerk I at Bob Lucas  

Promoted: 

Mikayla Arevalo – Page to Clerk I  

Melissa Aldama – Page to Clerk I  

Resignations: 

Lucy Molina 
Ashley Ravelo  

Page 22 of 158



2 
 

Director Kittay presented the Personnel Information. 
6. FINANCIAL REPORTS  
 

a) Financial reports for November/December and 1st Half of Year (7/1 – 12/31 2016) 
(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 

 
Recommended Action:  The Board of Library Trustees hereby receives and files the Financial Reports. 
Director Kittay presented the year end financials for FY 15/16 with comparisons to previous year, 
budget and % of total expenses. There were many highlights including an over 5% increase in 
property tax revenue from the previous year, over $400,000 in savings for both 14/15 and 15/16, 
increased spending for materials and programming which is consistent with the strategic and 
operational plans of the library. Additionally, benefits and wages have increased for staff during this 
time period but the overall cost of personnel only increased by a few percentage. This is partially 
due to attrition.  
 
She noted that at the next Board meeting she will be presenting the November/December financials 
and an overview of the first six months of the fiscal year. 

 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Consent Calendar adopting the Recommended Board Action will be enacted with one vote.  The Board 
President will first ask the staff and the Board if there is anyone who wishes to remove an item from the 
Consent Calendar for discussion and consideration.  The matters removed from the Consent Calendar will 
be considered individually at the end of the Consent agenda under “Items removed from the Consent 
Calendar”. The entire remaining Consent Calendar is then voted upon by roll call under one motion. 

 
Recommended Action:  The Board of Library Trustees hereby approves the items and recommended 
actions in the Consent Calendar listed below:  
a) Approval of minutes – Regular meeting held January 23, 2017 
b) Statistical Reports – January 2017  
c) Departmental Monthly Report – January 2017 
Moved by Zelada-Garcia, Seconded by McMullins. Approved. 
 

8. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be discussed individually at this time. 
 

9. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
a)   Facilities Update  (INFORMATION) – Director Kittay noted that there was water coming into the 

building in the collection development area during the torrential rains last week and that she 
was contacting the roofing company that did the repair in 2016 to come and look at it. 

b)   Volunteer Coordinator Update (INFORMATION) - Director Kittay spoke about the 50th anniversary 
committee, made up of mostly volunteers and also includes Trustee Zambrano and she 
thanked everyone who has been involved. She gave a brief description of the current work 
that the committee is completing, and distributed notes from the meeting about the 
passport program. The Passport Program is a great example of how the library is 
supporting the local community. She mentioned that Yuni, the new volunteer coordinator 
has been working on a Volunteer program and manual. 

c) PowerPoint Presentation: Altadena Library District: Our Story 
Director Kittay presented her PowerPoint presentation to the board and welcomed any 
invitations to present at other meetings/community organizations. 

 
10. OLD BUSINESS 

a)  Human Resources Update – Report by HRNETwork (INFORMATION) - Lorraine from HR Network  
mentioned the current projects that they are working on, which include: the new handbook, 
SOP status, new payroll schedule, and a new HRIS system which will take effect on April 1st. 
She also mentioned some items that are on their to-do list which include a review of 
compensation and benefits, job descriptions and the performance review system. 

 
 Trustee McDonald suggested that the Board discuss and review the employee handbook 

before it is presented to staff. His concern was that there was a staff meeting scheduled, to 
go over the handbook, when the board has not approved.  

 
 Lorraine provided an overview of the changes and additions to the handbook, which 

included: a free holiday policy, timeclock rounding, drug testing, updates to the vacation 
and sick leave policies. 

Page 23 of 158



3 
 

 Trustee Zambrano expressed concern surrounding the Free Holiday policy in which staff 
would have to designate their choices within a week. He suggested that the policy be 
consistent between employees who are already working at the District, and employees hired 
during the year, and suggested that staff be given 15 days to designate their free holiday. 

 
 Trustee McDonald inquired as to why the Free Holidays are not given as vacation days. 

Director Kittay noted that administration and HR did not want to make any major policy 
changes to the employee handbook, prior to completing the upcoming reevaluation of 
employee benefits and wages. 

 
 Lorraine noted that a policy had been added to give staff the option of cashing out vacation, 

if there is an excess in their accrual of over 40 hours, twice per year. This would help with 
employees who accrue large amounts of vacation time and then are forced to take it at the 
end of the year, or lose it. Trustee McDonald expressed concern over this policy, and asked 
the other Trustees if they had seen a similar policy, to which Trustee Zambrano mentioned 
that he had previously seen this benefit given as a one-time benefit. The Trustees expressed 
concern that this type of policy would encourage staff to not take vacations, and noted that 
the Library should address staffing issues when they arise.  

 
 Trustee Zelada-Garcia expressed concern over the lack of a policy similar to ‘FMLA’ and 

asked if it could be clearly laid out in the handbook. 
 
 Trustee McDonald and Trustee Bershatsky asked that some of the policies related to sick 

leave and drug testing be clarified as there is some confusion and contradicting 
information. 

 
Kittay noted that the majority of the changes to the manual were based on the fiscal health 
of the organization as well as errors and omissions in the previous two documents that in 
some cases contradict each other. She also noted that HRNETwork was hired with the 
understanding that they would create a new Employee Manual for the organization and the 
manual presented includes the basic language and rules and regulations that are required 
by the State of California and the Federal government and have been thoroughly vetted by 
their employment attorneys. 

 
 The Board requested that the Employee Manuel be brought before the Board again in March 

for further review. 
 
b) Community Conversations Update (INFORMATION) 

Director Kittay noted that the number of community conversations was increased from 15 to 20, 
and that the conversations were being successfully held in many places around the community.  
She noted that the community has expressed a great deal of interest and gratitude for this 
opportunity. The Library will be holding a community conversation in the meeting room on 
March 9th for anyone who wanted to attend a conversation but was unable to make it. 
 

c) Update: Phase I Renovation: (INFORMATION) 
An update was provided regarding the progress of the renovation. The new doors were recently 
installed and the community room ceiling tiles were replaced. The planters have all been 
cleaned out and are in the process of being refurbished, and the flooring in the community 
room, staff room and administration offices will be replaced prior to closing. 
 

d) Resolution 201701 Update (INFORMATION) 
Administrative Assistant Kylynn Chaney noted that the Board of Supervisors will be meeting on 
March 21, 2017 to vote on the resolution presented. 
 

e) Review new Library Board of Trustees Handbook and Discuss Training Requirements and Board on-
site       Trainings and Retreats (DISCUSSION/ACTION)  
Director Kittay noted that this item would be deferred. 
 

f) Joint meeting of FOAL and Board of Trustees Update (INFORMATION) 
Director Kittay noted that administration is working on securing a facilitator/moderator for the 
meeting and that new dates would be presented to the Board and support groups. 

 
11.  NEW BUSINESS 

a)  Approval of Revised Employee Manual (DISCUSSION/ACTION) 

Page 24 of 158



4 
 

This item was discussed in 10a above during the HRNETwork update and deferred to the next Board 
of Trustees meeting. 
 
b)  Hours for June (Open Studios) (DISCUSSION/ACTION) 
Director Kittay requested that on June 2nd, the Library close at 4pm and re-open at 6pm to 9pm to 
allow set-up for the Open Studios event taking place that evening. 
Moved by Zelada-Garcia, Seconded by McDonald. Motion approved. 
 
d) Review of Annual Report Fiscal Year 2015/2016 (INFORMATION) 
Director Kittay presented the final report received from the Auditor and noted that it was now located 
on the Libraries website. She also provided the Board with the Annual Report created in-house that 
highlights all the activities for the 15/16 year as well as describing the upcoming renovation. The 
report also provides some financial information and is intended for the public. 
 

12. CORRESPONDENCE & PRESS 
a) Press Clippings (INFORMATION) 
b) Letter from CalPers, Discount Rate Change (INFORMATION) – Kittay explained the ramifications to 

the libraries budget based on the estimated increase that CalPers will be placing on employers 
starting in 2018. She also brought up the Auditors report and his explanation of the OPEB 
Liability and the monthly cost to the library for retiree’s health insurance benefits. Kittay 
reminded the board that the cost to run the libraries continues to increase at a rate that is higher 
than the increase to revenue and that this is not sustainable. 
 

c) The Voice for America’s Libraries, United for Libraries (INFORMATION) 
 

13.  REPORTS OF SUPPORT GROUPS  
a) Altadena Library Foundation – none present 
b) Friends of the Altadena Library – none present 

 
14.  REPORTS OF TRUSTEES  

Trustee Zelada-Garcia mentioned that she recently attended a community conversation and noted 
that the community seems to appreciate the opportunity to connect and is thankful to the Library for 
taking on this initiative. 

 
Trustee McDonald requested HR Network prepare a report regarding Vacation and Sick accruals 
without names to be used to evaluate the effect of some of the changes to policy requested in the 
updated Employee Manuel. 
 

15.     CLOSED SESSION 
The Board of Trustees will recess into closed session pursuant to the Ralph M. Brown Act 
(Government Code Section 54956.9) for conference with legal counsel – anticipated litigation. 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: A 
potential legal case involving an employment claims of an employee where, in the opinion of the 
legislative body of the local agency on the advice of its legal counsel, based on existing facts and 
circumstances, there is a significant exposure to litigation against the local agency. 
 
The Board of Trustees went into Closed Session at 8:30 p.m. 

 
16. RECESS BACK INTO OPEN SESSION 

The Board of Trustees came out of Closed Session at 9:25 p.m. 
 
17. PUBLIC REPORT OF ANY REPORTABLE ACTION FROM CLOSED SESSION.   

The Board provided instruction to request further information on the employee’s claim. 
 
18.  AGENDA ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS  

This is an opportunity for Board members to request that items be placed on future agendas.  
The Board will review the Employee handbook for approval at the March Board Meeting. 
 

19. ADJOURNMENT 
Recommended Action:  There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting is 
adjourned. 
Moved by Zelada-Garcia, Seconded by Zambrano. 
Meeting adjourned at 9:26 p.m. 

Page 25 of 158



Statistical Graphs for the Month of February 2017 

 

 

 

A
xi

s l
it

le
 

A
xi

s 
li

tl
e 

~
 

.!'-
' 

,w
 

,.P
. 

,L
n 

,.._
, 

.p
. 

0
'\

 
0

0
 
5 

~
 
~
 
~
 
~
 

#
o

f 
C

ar
ds

 I
ss

u
e

d
 

8 
8 

8 
8 

8 
a

' 8
a

- 8
a

a
o

o
o

 
f-'

> 
f-'

> 
,..

_,
 

,..
_,

 
w

 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o 
o

o
8

o
8

 
Ln

 
o 

t.n
 

8 
t.n

 
o 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

'
- c 

'-
'-

' 
s 

F
 

F
 

~
 

~
 

~
 

c 
c 

c 
~
 

~
 

~
 

L
n

 
L

n
 

L
n

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
~
 

~
 

~
 

0 
0 

0 
q 

q 
q 

z 
z 

<
 

<
 

z 
-

0 
-
·
 

z 
0 

,.
, 

<
 

U
't 

0 
-
·
 

<
 

~
 

-
·
 

<
 

U
't 

c 
,....

 
-· 

~
o
 

o 
~
o
 

,..
.. 

o 
n 

X
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

-
·
 

("
l 

'"
"
 

-
·
 

("
l 

0 
("

l 
OJ

 
"'

 
U

't 
"'

 
'"

" 
'"

" 
~
 

l;:
 

I 
~
 

'-
U

't 
l;:

 
Q

. 
ii
) 

Z
 

O
l 

ii
) 
~
 

I 
Z

 
~
 

.,., 
:!

 
.,., 

~
 

~ 
U

't 
Hj

 
..

, 
m

 
OJ

 
C

D
 

U
't 

::
l 

C
D

 
-
•
 

c:
 

s: 
n 

s: 
::

l 
~
 

tD
 

s; 
3

,9
2

 
:r

 
s; 

A
l 

a
. 

~
 

~
 

~
 

~
 

~
 

~
 

A
l 

A
l 

3
, 

9
7

 
A

l 

s: 
s: 

s: 
~
 

~
 

~
 

~
 

~
 

3
, 

3
7

 
~
 

'-
'-

'-
c 

c 
c 

z 
z 

~
q
1
 

z 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

.,., 
.,., 

.,., 
.,., 

.,., 
.,., 

~
 

-<
 

~
 
~
 

-<
 

-<
 

f-'
> 

f-'
> 

f-'
> 

f-'
> 

f-'
> 

f-'
> 

L
n

 
0

'\
 

L
n

 
~
 

L
n

 
0

'\
 

--
-

--
f-'

> 
f-'

> 
f-'

> 
f-'

> 
f-'

> 
f-'

> 

0
'\

 
-..

.I 
0

'\
 

-..
.I 

0
'\

 
-..

.I 

Page 26 of 158



 

 

 

Page 27 of 158



 

 

 

 

Page 28 of 158



 

 

 

Page 29 of 158



 

 

 

Patron Type Patrons

Patrons 

w/Items

% 

w/items # items Avg/Patron

Adult 1592 7036

Juvenile 472 1721

Staff 24 322

Trustee 1 1

Foster Patrons 11 37

Teacher Loan 42 426

Teen 37 109

TOTAL 22,547    2,179     9.66% 9,652     4.43

District Population 53,183        

% w/Cards less than 3 years old (used &  not used) 42.40%

Items in the Collection 94,435        

% of Items Checked Out 10.22%

PATRONS THAT HAVE ITEMS (Mar 03, 17)

Page 30 of 158



 

 

 

Young Adult Program Attendance 
350 

300 

250 
~ 

';:; 
I= 200 
VI 

150 ·x 
<t 

100 

50 

0 
JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN 

• FY16/17 162 5 4 0 50 19 58 292 

• FY15/16 152 13 136 117 65 45 109 41 58 85 65 192 

Childrens Program Attendance 
1,200 

1,000 

~ 
800 

';:; 
I= 600 VI 

~ 400 

200 

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN 

• FY16/17 740 5 475 564 608 368 258 384 

• FY15/16 1,097 418 527 781 401 389 428 472 554 507 368 820 

Branch Program Attendance 
250 

200 

~ 150 ';:; 
I= 
VI 

~ 100 

50 

0 
JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN 

• FY16/17 142 0 0 100 27 56 35 71 

• FY15/16 205 32 44 35 40 54 52 44 42 33 26 209 

Page 31 of 158



 

 

 

 
Page 32 of 158



WIRELESS USAGE DETAILS 

 

 

Proximity. csv 

Feb OS Feb 12 

Engagement. csv 

loyalty· csv 

4,500 

4,000 

3,500 

3,000 

2,500 

2,000 

1,500 

1,000 

500 

Dally average capture rate . 15 1% 

Feb 19 Feb 26 

Daily average visits • 393 

Dally average repeat rate • 7 4 3% 

Daily av ,rage 

Passersby 2,215 

Vrsitors • 393 

Connected • 231 

Daily a t!ragt! 

6+ hrs D 45 

1-6 hrs 119 

20-60 mins • 91 

5-20 mins • 139 

Day a' erage 

Occasional D 27 

Weekly D 179 

Darly . 86 

First time • 101 

Page 33 of 158



 

 

 

 
Page 34 of 158



 

 

 

Page 35 of 158



February 2017 Monthly Report – Adult Services 

Feb 1 Helen and Mikayla attended the newly created Planter 

Committee meeting. 

Feb 1. Unique began answering the Districts phone calls. 

Feb 2. Helen, Sue and other staff members learned how to use the new CHAT for answering 

online patron questions from the website. 

Feb 3. Thelma Reyna Poetry. 50 people attended. Very popular. 

Feb 3. Friday night staff movie “The Gazebo” with Debbie Reynolds. It was potluck and about 

10 people were there. The movie was absolutely hysterical—we all laughed so hard. 

Feb 4. Poetry with Suzanne Lummis.  60 attended.  

Feb 7. Chinese Calligraphy with Andrew. Very popular activity. This is the second year Andrew 

has created beautiful sayings in calligraphy with traditional Chinese characters.  

Feb 9 Helen listened to “Going Deeper with Community Conversations” in 

Mindy’s office. This is an 8‐week class to learn the Harwood Method. 

Feb 11. Library Furniture & Tech Auction. Furniture, typewriters, office 

supplies and technology were available for bidding by staff and the public.  

Feb 11. (evening) Second Saturday Concert with Splish Splash Band. The 

Ale House, Sweeter Than Honey and Mary’s Market were on hand for 

refreshments.  

Feb 12. The 50‐year old Palm tree was removed from the Reading 

Court and transplanted into the front yard of a staff member. The 

Pothos plants from the two planters adjacent to 

the tree were also removed (on Feb 10th) and 

offered to the staff and patrons as “a little piece 

of our library.” This was popular and several 

people took cuttings to start their own plants.  

Page 36 of 158



Feb 14. No Guilt Book Club. Members discussed the two reading selections for the month: To 

Rise Again at a Decent Hour by Joshua Ferris and Playing Dead: a Journey Through the World 

of Death Fraud by Elizabeth Greenwood. Only two members attended this time.  

Feb 18. Art opening for Kevin Newton’s artwork, on display during the 

month of February in the Community Room 

(abstract color paintings—see red piece at right) and 

on the Fence‐wall in the Reading Court (pencil 

portraits).  

Feb 23. Helen listened to the webinar of “Libraries = 

Education: Your Key” in Ryan’s office. 

Feb 24. Helen attended a telephone meeting with Emma regarding ex‐convicts building Little 

Free Libraries as a project to benefit our library. 

Feb 24 Helen, Sue, Mikayla, and Melissa met with Ryan for an Adult Summer Reading Program 

meeting. 

Feb 24. Helen chose new selections for the next four months for the No Guilt Book Club, 

created the flyer, and sent email updates to members. March selections will be: Be Frank with 

Me by Julia Claiborne Johnson and H is for Hawk by Helen Macdonald. 

Feb 25. Helen met with the 50th Anniversary Committee and 

subcommittee. 

Feb 28. Helen and other members of the Planting Committee visited 

Armstrong’s Nursery for plant ideas for the Reading Court planters 

and new tree. 

Displays: New fiction & nonfiction books, new Audio books, 

Cookbooks, and . . .  

 Black History Month (created by Mikayla and Estella),  

 Chinese New Year books (set up by Mikayla in January and 

continued into February, to go with our Chinese 

scroll writing activity by Andrew). 

Page 37 of 158



 Groundhog Day books with the word “ground” in the title (created by Sue).  

 eomance books, or with “Love” in the  title, for Valentine’s 

Day. (Set up by Sue) 

 Mikayla created a Valentine’s themed 

display of “why patrons love our library.” 

Comments 

were 

written on red or pink 

valentines and posted on the 

Circ office glass wall.   

 

 

 

 Mikayla set up a display of DVDs, books and Audio books of 

past Academy Award Winners and made Oscar Award 

bookmarks to go with them.  

  

 

Display Case. A private collection of African American items 

were showcased for the month to go along with Black 

History month. 

 

Page 38 of 158



Branch February 2017 Report  
 

During this month, we encouraged an atmosphere of love by having a 
display that asked patrons, “Why do you love your library?” Patrons 
wrote the reasons they love their library on a leaf shaped paper and 

taped it on our tree display. A patron wrote, “It’s 
raining such a place to visit in cold winter. Among 
books like [a] living room. Secret place.” – Sachiko 
Saijo. Another patron wrote, “I love the Library because the Librarians are so kind and 
helpful.” Thanks to Mikayla for help with the tree.       

All month we had a bulletin display honoring Black history month. The display featured 
black inventors and their inventions. We also displayed Black history books. 
Additionally, we offered patrons an inspiration station where we provided supplies for 

patrons to create Valentine cards for their loved ones. 

On February 7th, we held a Chinese New Year 
Calligraphy program where patrons received a 
Chinese proverb written on red scroll paper to take 
home. This was the second year this program was 
held at the Main Library and the first time it was 
held at the Branch. The calligraphist is one of our 
adult literacy students! 

 

 

 

      

We held our monthly craft program for 
children on February 9th in the afternoon. 
Kids created a frame out of popsicle sticks 
and painted and decorated the frame with 
candy conversation hearts in celebration of 
Valentine’s Day.  

               

 

On February 21st, we held our second community 
conversation. Another group of community members 
met to discuss their community concerns. This 
community conversation was held in Spanish and was 
a great opportunity for Spanish speaking community 
members in Western Altadena to voice their concerns.  

Page 39 of 158



 

On February 24th, we showed the movie Trolls to the enjoyment of patrons of all ages. We served 
popcorn to add to the viewing enjoyment. 

The last two weeks of February we completed a weeding project that involved the evaluation of our 
whole collection. Specifically, books in bad physical condition were weeded; books that were outdated 
were weeded; updated versions of circulating books were ordered and old versions were weeded. It 
seems that many of the children’s and adult non-fiction books were ordered in 2005 so overall, these 
sections need updating. Gaps in the collection were identified and new books ordered. For example, 
new U.S. state books were recently added to the collection. We hope to raise the currency of our 
collection considerably. In addition, the book weeding allowed us to create more space for book displays 
to better promote popular books such as our graphic novels section. 

This month, the literacy program continued to grow with the addition of 2 new learners who are 
awaiting a tutor match. We continue to digitize old literacy print resources to minimize the physical 
space old files occupy. I hope to create an online portal of web resources for our tutors in the future. 
New, more recent editions of English books were ordered to refresh the depleted literacy collection.  

I completed the online literacy training and evaluated and identified how the online, tutor training 
modules can be improved. One improvement I made was to edit the online modules so that it shows the 
quiz taker the answers to the quizzes at the time of completion.  

Page 40 of 158



Collection Development Monthly Report – February 2017 
 
DISPLAY:  During February, we celebrated Library Lover’s Month, by asking our 
customers what they liked best about the Altadena Library. Ashley and Mikayla created 
an awesome tree, with branches of leaves holding the names of books and films our 
library lovers enjoy. The tree is full of titles picked by even our youngest readers. We 
also created a display wall of library user’s favorite 
books, movies, and audio books. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Collection Development added a new library lover to the Team: Mark Parsons. Mark is 
working on his MLIS through San José State University, and, he also possesses Library 
Technology and Digitization Skills certificates. During his first month, Mark jumped right 
into learning about collection development processes, helping with weeding of the 
Science Fiction collection, and, linking new materials to the catalog. Chris trained Mark 
on creating discard lists in Millennium, our Integrated Library System. Mark arrived just 
in time, as we conduct final preparations for the renovation. 
 
Getting ready for the renovation has kept me quite busy the past several months. 
Preparation started in mid-October with generating and providing statistics about the 
size of the collection to Yamada Enterprises, who are providing our new shelving. 
Yamada needed the information to prepare their quotes and give an estimate about the 
number of shelves we require; therefore, I broke the collection down by each genre, 
format, and/or Dewey Decimal range. For example: Kits = 418 items, YA Fiction = 681 
items, Adult Westerns = 216 items, Spanish DVD = 163. Once Yamada returned some 
shelving proposals then I needed to start thinking about how to best utilize the space, 
because Children’s and Teens had the potential to gain shelving capacity. One iteration 
of designs doubled the shelving capacity for music CDs in the adult collection, and given 
the prevalence of electronic formats for listening to music, we do not need to increase 
the size of this collection. When I looked at one of the proposed drawings, and 
crunched the numbers for determining the size of the collection, the proposal caused a 
drastic decrease in the number of items in the adult print collection. We asked Yamada 
to revise the drawings again, and, the final proposal enabled us to keep almost our 
current collection size. 

Page 41 of 158



Once the overall layout of shelves became finalized, Yamada sent schematics detailing 
the height, width, and length of the various shelving units. Christina, Kate, and I all 
required changes to some of the proposed shelf components. Some of the changes 
included decreasing the height of some of the shelves in the children’s area and 
increasing the width of some of the adult shelves to accommodate larger size books 
such as cookbooks. Planning for the renovation also requires thinking about where the 
various collections will be located throughout the library. Do we put travel books 
adjacent to the Passport Office, or, do we put the reference books back in this location? 
Do we put computer and technology books on the new shelves next to the Fab Lab? 
Which collection gets featured on the gondola shelving, large print or Spanish? It is 
these fun questions that started driving the next step of the process. Determining 
placement of the collections that will best suit the library user, while, also adjusting the 
number of items in a subject area or format to appropriately fit their new space is an 
exciting challenge. 
 
Another aspect of preparing for the renovation is removing items from the collection 
that are unattractive, dirty, or torn; or that have inaccurate, old, or misleading 
information; or once popular titles of which we have duplicate copies. While the 
materials selectors are diligently working on purchasing materials, the Collection 
Development Team are busy bees working to process the items as quickly as possible. 
The outcome of the renovation will be providing library customers with a plethora of 
great reads, films and music sitting on the shelves when we reopen. Along with creating 
a revitalized collection comes creating better access points to the materials; therefore, 
we are working on some reclassification projects that will make the location of materials 
more user friendly. We are also visiting book stores and other libraries to develop ideas 
about displays. Mindy found some great objects that are going to be part of our visual 
displays, and, we will be combing thrift shops and antique stores for fun things! As we 
get ready for closure, I am preparing plans for our “all hands-on deck” staff workday, 
Monday, March 13th. On this day, staff will help move items from the collection that we 
will keep onsite, making them available to circulate during the renovation. Staff are also 
going to help shift items onto the shelves that are remining in the library thereby 
minimizing the cost of boxing and storage fees. I will also be working on creating labels 
for the moving company, and, a spreadsheet for myself so that the unboxing of 
materials will enable us to shelve the items in an organized fashion. 
 
While we are getting ready for the renovation, a lot of exciting things continue to occur 
in Collection Development. In February, Christopher and I worked towards getting 
MARC records for all our OverDrive titles. The existing practice of creating items records 
for each OverDrive title and then adding a link to a print record for the same title is 
incorrect cataloging and very time consuming. Now we receive free MARC records that 
appropriately reflect OverDrive titles as electronic resources in the catalog, making their 
access much easier for the user. Additionally, we save time by not creating a dummy 
item record in the catalog, and, then having to spend time deleting the items when the 
title is weeded from the collection. The entire Team, and, Christopher continue to work 

Page 42 of 158



on some problems we have with MARC records received from Baker and Taylor. For 
example, some of our records come in as duplicate records and then we merge the 
catalog records. Sometimes, an order record gets separated from the item record. The 
problems with the records is one of the reasons our database is cluttered with unknown 
items.  
 
Usage of our electronic resources improved in February with both Ebsco databases and 
Flipster improving over the previous month. BrainFuse, which provides online tutoring 
and homework and test preparation help, continues to show increased usage, climbing 
from 22 in December 2016 to 155 in February! 26.2 percent of the audiobooks in the 
OverDrive collection got checked-out, while 73.8 percent of the ebook collection 
circulated. The age of the physical collection is greatly improving, due to weeding of the 
collection and purchasing of materials with more recent publication dates.  

 
 

 
OverDrive Usage 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

December January February

BrainFuse Total Usage

Page 43 of 158



 

 

 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

December January February

Number of Items with a Pub Date of 1800-2002
December data is through 2003

24,000

25,000

26,000

27,000

28,000

29,000

30,000

31,000

December January February

Number of Items with a Pub Date of 2010-2014
December data is 2009-2013

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

January February

Books with 2017 Pub Date

Page 44 of 158



Overall, February proved to be a very busy month. Vicky attended the two Altadena 
Library 50th Anniversary Committee meetings and Chris got to do the original cataloging 
of his purchase suggestion for the Library, the Blu-ray of Babymetal’s Live at Wembley, 
which Chris claims is, “the greatest rock and roll band in the known universe.” If you 
want to find out if this is true, please visit our Blu-Ray collection! 

 
Finally, I leave you with the discard of the month, 
published in 1972! Paleontology is a very vibrant field, 
with everchanging information and theories. Per 
standard library practices, items in this Dewey range 
should be less than five years old. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by: Estella Terrazas, Collection Development Manager 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 45 of 158



Teen Services – Board Report 

February 2017 

Programs: 

During the month of January, I hosted 6 regular programs and 

4 impromptu gaming sessions. Teen DIY Crafting continued 

with 9 teens creating things out of duct tape. Our very first 

Saturday Special hosted Anime Your Way where Carlos taught 

12 teens the basics of figure drawing for anime. 7 teens played 

with kinetic sand exploring the different properties, and of 

course making a large mess in the process! Teen Gaming is still 

the highest attended programs with 19 teens attending and 

enjoying an afternoon of fun, friends, video games, virtual 

reality demos, and board games. The Screening of Captain 

America Civil War brought in 7 teens who enjoyed re-watching 

the movie on the big screen. The TAB currently has 13 out of 

15 members with 5 of them attending the second meeting. 

When given the opportunity to put on a program for the 

library, the TAB chose to create a Pet Adoption Event. The 

meeting was spent getting ideas and going over basic details. 

On 4 different occasions, I hooked up the WiiU to the TV in the 

teen area with the wireless headset system. Teens enjoyed 

the chance to play endless games of Super Smash Brothers. 

The biggest problem with the impromptu gaming sessions is 

that the teens never want to stop playing, and they want me 

to bring it out every day. 

The SRP committee planned the basics of summer, and we 

are hurrying to get Beanstack set up before the March 15th 

deadline. I’ve spent time determining which programs will be 

offered during summer and set up the schedule. We’ve also 

been working on a list of Community Building activities for 

SRP. This list will fit perfectly with our theme of Build a Better 

World. SRP participants of all ages will be able to Build a 

Better Altadena during the summer. Different committee 

members have taken on different rolls as we plan the rest of 

the program. 

The Programming committee also met again in February. We 

are excited about many of the upcoming programs and ideas 

that are being implemented.  

Teen Tech week begins in March, so I planned a display and two different programs for that.  

Page 46 of 158



Outreach:  

Aveson Global Leadership Academy is working together with me 

to bring all students through the library on field trips, and then 

return regularly to make use of the library’s resources. Over two 

days, I hosted 8 tours for the various English classes. About 200 

students toured the library in two days where I showed them 

the entire library, but spent specific time on the databases that 

they might find helpful.  

Volunteers: 

As mentioned previously, February saw another of the TAB meeting. There are currently 13 out of 15 

members, with more students expressing interest in volunteering all the time. Teens will be putting in 

their regular meeting hours as well as assisting with the pet adoption in April.  

Several of the teens who applied to be regular volunteers last month got plugged in. They have cut out 

quite a few bookmarks for us, carried games up and down the stairs before teen game day, and 

searched for a few collection development lists.  

Collection: 

The teen collection is in a stable place as far as weeding. The nonfiction, fiction, and graphic novels are 

all current and circulating regularly. While there are no weeding projects on the horizon, I continued 

ordering and replacing my depleted nonfiction along with new popular fiction and graphic novels. The 

collection has also been expanded with my monthly ematerial order.  

Displays: 

February’s display fit with the theme chosen by the library and Black History Month. Over the course of 

the month, many books were chosen for checkout, and it was a successful display.  

Professional Development:  

February was a great month for my professional development. There were so many webinars and 

training classes that I wanted to attend, I had to view some webinars in archive! I attended a training 

class sponsored by the State Library using LSTA grant funds about using teen volunteers in the library. I 

participated in the phone conference with Beanstack where we asked a lot of our questions and got 

started setting up Beanstack for SRP. I also viewed a webinar about how Libraries = Education. I viewed 

the archived webinar for What’s New in Teen Literature.   

 

Page 47 of 158



Children’s and Family Services Report 

February 2017 

2017 continues to roll right along here in the children’s department. February was full of story times, 

programs, collection development, and a new employee!  

We hosted 15 story times during February, serving a total of 279 patrons between the ages of 0-5 and 

their caregivers. We also had a lot of fun with our Elementary-aged patrons—we did 6 programs over 

the month and served 105 kids and their caregivers. We visited one school and saw 60 preschoolers, and 

one school brought 12 students to visit us. We were also visited by a homeschool parent group of 8 

adults, to whom we gave a library tour and information. Overall, we served 464 people through our 

programming and visits. We expect to see this increase in the future as we are now 1) fully staffed for 

the first time since December 2016 and 2) will not be devoting quite so much energy to preparing the 

collection for the Phase I Renovation.  

On that note, we continue to work on maintaining and cultivating our collection through the weeding of 

old, damaged, and out of date materials and replacing them with new, up to date, and accurate items. 

We have now done a weed of all of our collections and have pulled 1) Materials that had not circulated 

since 2013-2014 and 2) Materials that had not circulated more than 10 times since 2005. We also 

examined all materials purchased before 2005 for their relevance and accuracy, physically combed the 

collection for damaged and grubby materials, and continue to spot weed for such items. This process 

will continue for the coming months as we evaluate the needs of the community, collaborate with local 

schools to help supplement their curriculum needs, and listen to what our patrons want and need.  

We are also very happy to welcome Adriana Muro as our new Children’s Library Associate! Adriana 

comes to us from the El Segundo Public Library, and we are so happy to have her.  

Page 48 of 158



Volunteer – Board Report 

February 2017 

By: Yuni LaFontaine 

During the month of February, I have mostly focused on familiarizing myself with the Altadena 
Library and its unique needs. I have spent time at the circulation desk and visited the Branch to 
learn about their volunteer needs and how best to meet them. Additionally, I have spent time 
reviewing volunteer programs and tools from various other libraries and have begun to 
compose a volunteer handbook and work on revisions for various forms including our volunteer 
application. 

I’ve also begun to establish a presence with various volunteer related resources that can help 
direct volunteers towards the library, such as volunteer match and USC Alumni Services. USC 
Alumni volunteer day is this March 11th and we are looking forward to Trojans showing up and 
helping us prepare our shelves to be packed for renovations. 

One new adult volunteer began working with us in the library and another will start in April. 
Three more have expressed interest in volunteering for the FOLA library sale and the June 10th 
event.  

I have contacted the Girl Scouts about creating an ongoing volunteer schedule with their troops 
to help maintain our garden and several of them will be attending a soon to be scheduled Low 
Water Garden lesson to be taught by our volunteer garden expert, Maureen. 

In addition, I have made contact with The Director of Life Enrichment at Montecedro about 
establishing ongoing volunteer opportunities for here at the library for their residence, 
including a possible book delivery system for their less mobile residents. 

Much of my energy has been focused on readying for the June 10th event and I’m currently in 
talks with JPL historians, The author of Rise of The Rocket Girls, The Altadena Historical Society 
and several local vendors who are working with us to create a spectacular Mid Century, 1967 
centric day! 

 

Page 49 of 158



BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
DIRECTORS UPDATE 

 
DEPARTMENT: District Director MEETING DATE: March 27, 2017 
PREPARED BY: Mindy Kittay  LOCATION:  Community Room 
 
IMLS: Of highest importance to all libraries and to the Altadena Library District, at this time, is the 
proposed elimination of the IMLS in the proposed budget. Through the ILMS the District has received 
thousands of dollars in grants, services, and training. 
 
CLA Joint Statement on the Federal Budget from the Board of Directors and Advocacy & 
Legislation Committee 
  
President Trump’s FY2018 budget eliminates all funding for the Institute of Museum and Library 
Services and undermines the very foundation of a democratic society. 
 
Dubbed “America First: A Budget Blueprint to Make America Great Again,” this budget does the exact 
opposite by delivering a devastating blow to the 120,000 libraries nationwide that provide essential 
services to millions of Americans. 
 
Libraries are drivers of economic success and hubs of entrepreneurship and invention. They promote 
literacy at all ages, enable measurable improvements in student achievement, provide job retraining 
and job search services, and act as safe and welcoming community centers in neighborhoods across 
the US. They connect people with the information and services they need to succeed in life, and 
provide access to technology and to free resources and services for our most vulnerable and 
underserved residents including veterans, people experiencing homelessness, children, and the elderly. 
 
Libraries do all of this on shoestring budgets, and leverage the miniscule amount of federal funding 
that they receive through their States to deliver a wide array of services in every community in our 
nation. It is hard to find another public service that has a comparable return on investment. 
 
Through its grants to State Libraries IMLS provides vital funding for the development of innovative 
library services to meet community needs.  Projects supported by IMLS in California include helping 
adults earn their high school diplomas, providing books to underserved rural areas, and increasing 
access to mental health resources.  IMLS funds also support California’s statewide Summer Reading 
program to ensure that kids maintain their reading skills over the summer break, preservation of local 
historical records, and enhanced access to library collections. 
 
Defunding the IMLS shows a fundamental lack of awareness or care for the essential services libraries 
provide and requires all Americans to fight this shameless attack. The California Library Association will 
mobilize the millions of library patrons and supporters across our State to stop this from becoming a 
reality. 
 
COMMUNITY CONVERSATIONS 

We are on the home stretch with the community conversations and had so much interest that we have 
expanded from the original 15 to 24. We are preparing for a Town Hall meeting on Thursday April 27 
at 7pm to present the final report so please mark your calendars.  The DWC Group will collaborate to 

Page 50 of 158



produce an interactive ‘Town Hall’ meeting for the Altadena Library District. This activity will allow for 
the dissemination of findings from a recent series of resident listening sessions, provide an opportunity 
for the formation of new relationships, as well as generate new ideas from residents about how to 
improve the community. 

Meeting Objectives 
1. Communication/Information Sharing - what happened during the Community Conversations?  
What are the results of those activities? 
2. Community Building - how do we build trusting relationships so that we improve our quality of 
life?  How do we listen to one another and learn more about each other’s lives? 
3. Taking Action - what are some ways we can use this data/information to be able to create 
positive change in our community? 
4. Feedback - what did you think of this process?  How did it make you feel?  How will it affect 
your life? 

On April 28, The DWC Group will conduct a Workshop at the library on ‘Innovations in Civic 
Engagement’. The workshop will be designed to provide attendees from community organizations and 
agencies in Altadena/Pasadena/Sierra Madre with an overview of several modern techniques for 
acquiring useful feedback from stakeholders.  In addition, it will help participants to assess their current 
level of skill and provide a growth path towards greater effectiveness in the engagement process. 

We have had four staff members as a part of a CLA funded initiative, attend trainings in the 
Harward/Turning Outward process and all four have also attended a multitude of community meetings 
here in Altadena. As we move forward in our initiative to be turned outward and more responsive to 
the needs of our community, these staff members have been invaluable in learning this process and 
sharing and modeling it with staff. 

STATISTICS 

• Circulation is up at the Branch 11% for the year and flat at Main but what is important is that 
the weeding and cleaning up of the collections in Young Adult and Children’s has created new 
usage – Children’s is up 30% over last year at this time and Young Adult is up 194%!  

• New library card registrations were up 17% YTD for the District and 23% at Branch. 
• Holds on our items are up 70% YTD!!!!! 
• Passports issued are up 10% YTD, photos up 15% YTD. 
• Adult programming continues its attendance climb an 20% increase YTD. Young Adult served 

292 people in 18 events 
and children’s served 
384 people in 21 
events. 

• Computer and Wireless 
continues its climb with 
an increase of 21% YTD 
for computer usage and 
an 80% increase in 
wireless usage at Main 
YTD 

• Our eBook circulation is still showing a continual increase in usage, 482 items in February while 
nation-wide both in and outside of libraries, eBook usage has leveled off. 

Page 51 of 158



FACILITIES 
 
We are right on schedule with the flooring being completed this week and shelving installation 
starting next week. 
 
The fire extinguishers have been updated, including adding one to the main floor. 
We also purchasing AED machines for both main and branch. 
 
STAFF 
Leadership met regarding the Operating Plan and the update is in the Board Package.  
The public services staff have begun to work on the circulation manual. 
 

 
 
BEFORE 

 
 
 

 

Page 52 of 158



 
 

ALD HR REPORT – BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Month: March 2017 

Current EE Issues: Hires, Terms, Leaves 

EE 
Actions 

Describe Status Notes 

1. SOP onboarding update Added extra benefits info step  

2. Review of employee FMLA Extended to 4/15 Review again 4/15 

3. Review of employee 
medical leave of absence 

Out until 6/14 Review again 6/14 

4. Met with Employees 
regarding Staff Association 

Addressed matters pertaining 
to inclusivity 

 

Current Projects 

Project Status Notes 

Employee Handbook 
 

Reviewed with Employees for Feedback, 
to be finalized with Board 3/27/17 

 

SOP Status Completed and reviewed with senior 
management and Payroll Coordinator 

 

Cultural 
Development 

DiSC training scheduled April 5th See attached outline of Cultural 
Development Program 

Training All employees completed a DiSC 
assessment  

Training scheduled for Wed. 
April 5th 

Payroll - Stratex Going “live” 4/4/17  

HRIS - Stratex Going “live” 4/4/17 
Mgmt. Training scheduled: TBD 
Employee Training scheduled: TBD 

TBD: How to conduct training - 
either individually, via 
supervisor, HRIS admin, or 
webinar. On-line user guides 
available.  

Performance 
Reviews 

Discussion to move to a focal point review 
date 

 

 

*Payday is unchanged.  To assist employees with lag, we implemented the following: 

1. Special 7-day pay period prior to the start of new payroll system 

2. Employees can take a vacation cash out (see policy in HB) 

3. Employees may take a loan against retirement account 

Page 53 of 158



          

 

 

Altadena Library – Outline for Cultural Change 
 
Purpose: To increase staff morale, to create an environment that aligns with core 
values, improve employee communications, and drive cultural change. 

 

Plan:           Updated March 2017 

Action Item Detail/Notes Target Date Date of 
Completion 

HRN meet with Board Provide monthly status report 11/28/16   

Conduct a program 
around Mission/ 
Vision/Values 

Create Action Plan based on 
Values (Values exercise began 
in September – see attached) 

Staff Meeting 11/08/16 

Review On-Going 

Incorporate Values into 
Organizational Processes/ 
Protocols 

To be 
reviewed with 

Staff 

 

Training – All 
Employees 

 

Respectful Workplace/Non-
Harassment Training May 2017  

DiSC Work Styles Assessment 
and Training April 2017 April 5, 2017 

Relationship Building/Conflict 
Resolution Sept. 2017  

Cultural Change 
 09/30/16 

Training – Supervisors 

 

HR 101 
 Q4 2017  

Conflict Resolution/Problem 
Solving 

Motivating and Retaining 

7077 Orangewood Ave., Suite 112 

Garden Grove, CA 92845 

(714) 799-1115 • www.hrnetworkinc.com 

Page 54 of 158



 

Coaching and Counseling 
 

Conducting Effective 
Performance Appraisals 

Goal Setting – for teams and 
individuals 

Create an Employee 
Recognition Program 

Review Current Above and 
Beyond Program 

June 2017  

HR Processes 

 

Employee Handbook 
1st review – 
11/28/16 April 2017 

Updated Job Descriptions July/Aug 2017  

Corresponding Performance 
Appraisals 

Sept/Oct 2017  

SOPs  Final Review – 
11/28/16 

February 2017 

Review of Compensation 
strategy and plan 

Q3 2017  

Assess Employee 
Satisfaction through 
2017 Pulse Survey 
Results 

After 1 Year   

 

  

Page 55 of 158



Values  

 

For each value below, the team identified continuous improvement processes or action items that can 
implemented to align with the corresponding value – either individually, as a team, a department, or as 
the organization in whole.  

To be condensed to 5-6 values 

 

Value Expressed As Ideas to Implements 

Respect  “Our employees and volunteers are 
valued as individuals and for their 
important contributions to the 
organization. We nurture our 
talents and each other.”  
 
“We treat everyone fairly and 
equitably, communicate openly  
and honestly.” 
 

• Say “Thank you.” 

• Acknowledging past traditions and 

experience, while focusing on the 

future 

• Support each other (helping, 

teaching, sharing information) 

 

Involvement  “Staff is involved in decisions that 
affect them”  

• Ask for opinions/thoughts 

• Sharing 

information/communication 

• Implementation teams 

Integrity  “We value and respect our 
customers, organization, and each 
other. We are responsible for 
ourselves and to others through 
honest and respectful words and 
actions.”  

• Stewards of public trust 

• Open and Honest Communication 

• Mutual Respect 

Customer Service  “A strong emphasis on listening to, 
respecting, and providing the best 
possible service for our customers.”  

• Avoid labeling/judging  

• Make Patrons a Priority 

• Promote Library Services 

• Customer Service training/modeling 

• Attend to Patron ‘wants’ 

• Consistent Policies 

• Facing Outward as a way of 

Operating- take training to learn 

how to do this. 

 

Passion  “We love the library; we love 
Altadena and we love what we do.”  

• Sharing Staff passions/picks/Ideas 

• We advocate for the Library and 
what it offers in our everyday lives 
(outside the Library) – set a goal of 
speaking to at least one person 
every day about something the 

Page 56 of 158



Library offers and/or invite 
someone to a Library event. 

• We give 100% to the Organization 
and our Teammates by supporting 
each other and lending a hand 
when needed. 

Teamwork  “We celebrate the diversity of our 
experiences and build connections. 
We trust each other.”  

• Communication 

• Morning Team Huddle  

• Cross-Departmental Help (help 

another department & staff) 

• Staff Schedules 

• Staff Activities Club 

• We focus on how we can be better 
and not on what others may or  
may not be doing and when we see 
others struggling or needing 
assistance we offer our help 

Opportunities  “Opportunities & growth within 
organization”  

• Hire and promote internally when 
possible 

• Encourage Staff to learn beyond 
what their job requires & provide 
those tools to staff. 

• Open to all Staff 

• We seek out ways to be of value to 
the organization. We don’t wait to 
be asked – we think forward and 
take the next step. 

• We are constantly self-educating 
and bringing new ideas to the 
district. 

Learning  “We are a learning organization 
that encourages & supports the 
pursuit of knowledge”  

• Keep the collection updated with 
fresh materials. 

• Continue staff training in new 
services and updated policies. 

• Staying knowledgeable about 
trends in libraries is an important 
part of what we do and helps us to 
be better equipped to handle the 
challenges of a quickly changing 
industry. (Read blogs, journals and 
websites) 

• Joining committees in Library 
Organizations keeps us in the know 
about the direction and focus of a 
modern library. 

 

Page 57 of 158



Expertise  “We are relentless in our efforts to 
better understand our community, 
our collections and our users.”  

• Interact with the patrons more & 
step away from the McDonalds 
model. 

• Encourage suggestions from our 
patrons 

• Participating in Outreach and 
Turning Outward is a must in order 
to best serve our community. Take 
the Harwood Training. 

Innovation  “We are always learning. We are 
exploring new ways of doing things 
better and doing better things”  

• Webinars and professional 
development 

• Learning from each other’s 
experiences and expertise 

• Only chase the status quo when 
inept in an area; otherwise operate 
like a prince. 

• Staff Input and learning 
opportunities 

• Learning new skills and 
methodologies is a priority if we are 
to remain relevant. Participate in 
Listserves and/or ALA/PLA/CLA 
divisions. 

Excellence  “We strive for excellence for our 
customers because, we believe in 
only the best for them.”  
 
“We provide excellent service & 
have fun doing it.” 

• Talk to a user until you can get a 
smile from them. 

• When helping patrons maybe 
conclude with the questions: “is 
there anything else I can help you 
with?”  

• Think about how to say “yes” 
instead of “no” to a customer. 

• Constantly Think about how to 
“amaze” the customer by going 
above and beyond. Share examples 
of this with the rest of the team. 

 Accountability  “We are transparent on all levels, 
act with integrity and take personal 
responsibility for our actions.” 
 
“We take responsibility for our 
actions & act with integrity.” 

• Leadership team shares thoughts 
and discussions with all staff 

• Honesty is the best policy 

• When we make mistakes, we learn 
from them and understand that if 
we are not making mistakes we are 
standing still and not growing and 
learning. 

Compassion  “We have compassion for our 
customers and each other.”  

• Try to see things from the 
perspective of others 

• Patience and Helpfulness 

• Err on the side of kindness. Write 
off fines and fees. 

Page 58 of 158



Knowledge 
Providers  

“To empower the community with 
modern tools & services that make 
them effective, confident and 
connected with members of the 
community.”  

• Harwood Conversations: What does 
the Community want? 

Enrich  “We help to enrich lives and they 
enrich their own with all we have to 
offer.”  

• Provide services, programs, and 
collections that meet community 
needs 

• Have all staff read a staff selected 
book- round robin. 

• Keep abreast of the times 

• Share our stories – both internally 
and externally. Every day we are 
making a difference but we often 
don’t hear or know about it. 

Empower  “Grow, learn & create within the 
organization.”  

• Have staff take ownership of an 
area of question with no staff 
member being able to take 
ownership of more than one 
question. 

• Opportunities for input. 

 

 

Page 59 of 158



 
LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

DEPARTMENT: Administration               MEETING DATE:  March 10, 2017 
 
PREPARED BY: Mindy Kittay, Director   
       Ryan Roy, Public Services Director  LOCATION: Community Room 
 
 
TITLE:  Employee Handbook Update 
 
OBJECTIVE:  To provide an overview of the changes and updates to the Employee Handbook. 
 
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS: At the February Board of Trustees meeting the updated Employee Handbook 
was presented by HR NETwork, the District’s vendor for Human Resources, and who was requested to provide 
this document for the District. 
 
The Trustees identified several areas in which they requested additional information and input from both staff, 
administration and HR NETwork. On March 3, 2017 HR NETwork met with staff and administration in an All 
Staff Meeting to discuss the updated Handbook and further clarify areas of concern. 
 
Accordingly, and as a result of the Board Meeting, the All Staff Meeting and further discussion with HR 
NETwork, the following changes were made to policy and the Handbook. 
 
1.  Free Holiday. The period for staff to select the dates for usage of Free Holiday, whether awarded at the 
beginning of the year or as a new hire later in the year, is 15 days. These selected dates can be modified later 
in the year by the employee. 
 
2.  Voluntary Cash Out. It is the recommendation of Administration that this benefit be added to the Employee 
Handbook. A review with staff revealed that they feel this is an added benefit and something they would 
appreciate having as an option.  

 The policy has been clarified and includes a cap of 80 hours of cash payout each time it is used and 
there is a limit of two times per year.  

 Staff noted that having this available would help in times of financial need such as having funds for a 
vacation or a down payment.  

 Having an option to pay staff for vacation prior to separation from the District, provides a financial 
savings to the Library, as the rate of pay at time of exit is usually higher. 

 This policy assists with staffing matters, since employees can better effectively plan for vacations, 
rather than take time off solely for the purpose of using vacation in order not to lose accrued time. 

 This benefit can only be used if there is at least 40 hours of vacation left in the employee’s bank and 
with the caps for accruals we feel that this benefit does not discourage staff from taking vacation time. 

 
3.  Vacation time may be used for sick leave if the employee has no sick time left in their bank. But Sick time 
may NOT be used for vacation time if employee has no vacation time left in their bank. Vacation Maximum 
accruals were increased to comply with legal requirements. 

Page 60 of 158



 
4.  There is no waiting period for use of Sick/Vacation/Free Holiday. They may be used as soon as they are 
accrued.  
 
5.  Page 21. #4, second bullet point: Now states that “hours absent for medical and dental appointments MAY 
be treated as sick leave.” (changed WILL to MAY) 
 
6.  FMLA.  The District does not fall under the requirements for providing FMLA. If an employee requests 
leave, HR NETwork will review the legal requirements and determine if requested leave must comply with a 
legal rule and will advise the District as such. If a leave does not fall under a particular legal requirement it will 
be reviewed on a case by case basis and the District will do its best to accommodate the requested leave while 
making sure that the District’s best interests are also covered. 
 
7.  Sick Leave. As of April 1, 2017, all accrued sick leave will be grandfathered in a separate sick leave 
account (Sick Leave 1) for each staff member and a new account will be created for all future accruals (Sick 
Leave 2).  All staff who are eligible will continue to accrue 8 hours of sick leave per month at the beginning of 
the month. The maximum accrual is 96 hours (12 days). The maximum amount of roll over is 48 hours (6 
days). Once an employee has accrued 96 hours in their Sick Leave 2 account, no further accruals will be 
allowed until the hours once again drop below the maximum. If an employee has a Sick Leave 1 account, any 
use of sick leave will come out of that account first until it is depleted and then further sick leave will come out 
of Sick Leave 2. 
 
8.  Sick and Vacation.  May be taken in increments as small as 1 hour. 
 
9.  Notification (pg. 21, #3, Second Paragraph): The employee will be asked to provide the Company with a 
note from their physician on the 5th consecutive day of absence due to illness (for absences of the 5th day and 
beyond).  
 
 
 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: That the Board of Trustees adopt the Employee Handbook effective April 
1, 2017. 
 

Page 61 of 158



 

 

 

 

 

 

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Effective:  April 2017 

 

 

 

 

Page 62 of 158



 

 

INTRODUCTION 

Welcome  

Welcome! As an employee of Altadena Library District, hereinafter referred to as Altadena 
Library District, you are an important member of a team effort. We hope that you will find your position 
with Altadena Library District rewarding, challenging, and productive. 

Because our success depends upon the dedication of our employees, we are highly selective in 
choosing new members of our team. We look to you and the other employees to contribute to the 
success of Altadena Library District and to assist us in remaining a leader in this community and in our 
industry. 

 

Purpose 

This handbook is intended to generally outline and explain Altadena Library District benefits, 
practices, and policies that are important to you.  Please refer to the actual plan documents for 
information and answers to specific benefit questions.  You should keep this handbook handy as a 
guide and ready reference.  If you have questions as you read through this handbook, please do not 
hesitate to discuss them with your Manager.  Your Manager is a very important source of information 
and will be more than happy to assist you. This handbook applies to all full-time, part-time, exempt, 
non-exempt, management, and temporary employees. 

This employee handbook is not all-inclusive and should be regarded as a set of guidelines only. 
It is not a contract. Neither the policies in this manual, nor any other written or verbal communication by 
a company officer, manager or Manager are intended to create a contract of employment or a warranty 
of benefits for any definite period of time. The policies in this handbook may be amended, modified, 
deleted, or otherwise changed by Altadena Library District without prior notice. This handbook 
supersedes and replaces all prior employee handbooks, manuals, policies, and procedures with regard 
to the subject matters covered herein. If you have any questions about any of the policies or procedures 
in this handbook, please consult your Manager. 

 If any portion of this handbook conflicts with any plan documents, law, regulation, or statute; the 
any plan documents, law, regulation, or statute will control. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Legal Review 
 
The language of the Employee Handbook template was generally reviewed by legal counsel as of January 2017.  

Page 63 of 158



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTION ...................................................................................................................................................... I 

Welcome .................................................................................................................................................................. i 

Purpose ................................................................................................................................................................... i 

Legal Review ........................................................................................................................................................... i 

I. EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES .......................................................................................................................... 1 

At-Will Employment .............................................................................................................................................. 1 

Equal Employment Opportunity and California’s Fair Employment and Housing Act .................................. 1 

Employees with Disabilities ................................................................................................................................. 1 

Genetic Information .............................................................................................................................................. 2 

Immigration Law Compliance .............................................................................................................................. 3 

Company Position on Labor Unions ................................................................................................................... 3 

Open Door Policy .................................................................................................................................................. 3 

General Complaint Procedure ............................................................................................................................. 4 

Workplace Reporting Hotline ............................................................................................................................... 4 

Employment of Relatives ...................................................................................................................................... 5 

Outside Employment ............................................................................................................................................ 5 

Background Investigations.................................................................................................................................... 5 

Introductory Period ............................................................................................................................................... 5 

Hours of Work ........................................................................................................................................................ 6 

Employee Classifications ..................................................................................................................................... 6 

II. COMPENSATION ............................................................................................................................................ 8 

Performance and Pay Review .............................................................................................................................. 8 

Exempt/Non-Exempt Classification ..................................................................................................................... 8 

Record Keeping of Time Worked ......................................................................................................................... 8 

Time Clock Rounding Practices (Non-Exempt).................................................................................................. 9 

Overtime Pay (Non-Exempt) ................................................................................................................................. 9 

California Meal Periods and Rest Breaks Policy (Non-Exempt) ..................................................................... 10 

Meeting and Training Pay (Non-Exempt) .......................................................................................................... 11 

Split Shift (Non-Exempt) ..................................................................................................................................... 11 

Reporting Time Pay  (Non-Exempt) ................................................................................................................... 11 

“Called In” Pay (Non-Exempt) ............................................................................................................................ 12 

Payday and Pay Check Distribution .................................................................................................................. 12 

Direct Deposit ...................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Salary Deductions ............................................................................................................................................... 13 

Garnishments ...................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Compensation Compliance Policy .................................................................................................................... 13 

Page 64 of 158



Compensation Complaint Procedure ................................................................................................................ 13 

III. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ................................................................................................................................ 15 

General Overview ................................................................................................................................................ 15 

Insurance Benefits .............................................................................................................................................. 15 

CalPERS Retirement Program ........................................................................................................................... 16 

IV. HOLIDAYS, VACATION, AND SICK LEAVE ............................................................................................... 17 

Holidays ................................................................................................................................................................ 17 

Vacation Policy .................................................................................................................................................... 18 

Paid Sick Leave ................................................................................................................................................... 20 

Paid Absence ....................................................................................................................................................... 22 

V. LEAVES OF ABSENCE ................................................................................................................................ 23 

Medical Certifications ......................................................................................................................................... 23 

Family-Care and Medical Leave (and/or California Family Rights Act for California Employers) .............. 23 

Pregnancy-Related Disability Leave or Transfer ............................................................................................. 23 

Workers’ Compensation Disability Leave ......................................................................................................... 26 

Other Disability Leaves ....................................................................................................................................... 28 

Paid Family Leave ............................................................................................................................................... 28 

Leave for Organ and Marrow Donation ............................................................................................................. 29 

Family Military Leave .......................................................................................................................................... 29 

Civil Air Patrol Leave .......................................................................................................................................... 30 

Crime Victim Leave ............................................................................................................................................. 30 

Legally Required Non-Medical Leaves of Absence ......................................................................................... 30 

Family-School Partnership Act .......................................................................................................................... 31 

Employment Status Review ............................................................................................................................... 31 

V. WORKPLACE RULES AND PROCEDURES ............................................................................................... 32 

Rules of Conduct and Discipline ....................................................................................................................... 32 

Business and Ethical Code of Conduct ............................................................................................................ 33 

Conflicts of Interest ............................................................................................................................................. 35 

Security and Confidential Information .............................................................................................................. 36 

Policy Against Harassment ................................................................................................................................ 37 

Policy Against Retaliation and Whistleblower Protection .............................................................................. 38 

Dress Standard .................................................................................................................................................... 39 

Company Tools and Equipment ........................................................................................................................ 39 

Cell Phone Use .................................................................................................................................................... 40 

Personnel Records .............................................................................................................................................. 40 

Solicitation, Distribution and Bulletin Boards .................................................................................................. 41 

Weapons ............................................................................................................................................................... 41 

Page 65 of 158



Visitors – Administrative Areas ......................................................................................................................... 42 

Personal Property ............................................................................................................................................... 42 

Off Duty Use of Facilities .................................................................................................................................... 42 

Housekeeping ...................................................................................................................................................... 42 

VI. TECHNOLOGY USE AND PRIVACY ........................................................................................................... 43 

Technology Use and Privacy Policy .................................................................................................................. 43 

Access to Technology Resources ..................................................................................................................... 45 

Social Media Policy ............................................................................................................................................. 48 

Electronic Recording Policy............................................................................................................................... 49 

Monitoring and Video Surveillance ................................................................................................................... 50 

HIPAA Statement of Privacy Laws .................................................................................................................... 50 

Identity Theft Red Flag Policy ............................................................................................................................ 51 

VIII. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE ......................................................................................................................... 53 

Drug-Free Workplace Policy .............................................................................................................................. 53 

Smoke-Free Environment ................................................................................................................................... 57 

Inspections and Searches on Company Premises .......................................................................................... 57 

VII. TERMINATION .............................................................................................................................................. 60 

Voluntary Termination ........................................................................................................................................ 60 

Involuntary Termination ..................................................................................................................................... 60 

Termination Due to Reorganizations, Economics or Lack of Work ............................................................... 60 

Final Wages CA ................................................................................................................................................... 60 

Exit Interview ....................................................................................................................................................... 61 

Unemployment Insurance .................................................................................................................................. 61 

VIII. WORKPLACE SAFETY ................................................................................................................................ 62 

Workplace Safety Policy ..................................................................................................................................... 62 

Safety Rules ......................................................................................................................................................... 62 

Heat Illness Prevention ....................................................................................................................................... 62 

Seating Provisions .............................................................................................................................................. 63 

Hazardous Chemicals and Your Right to Know ............................................................................................... 63 

Return to Work Policy ......................................................................................................................................... 63 

Violence in the Workplace .................................................................................................................................. 63 

IX. MISCELLANEOUS ........................................................................................................................................ 65 

Travel and Expense Accounts ........................................................................................................................... 65 

Credit Card Policy ............................................................................................................................................... 65 

Safe Driver Policy ................................................................................................................................................ 66 

Emergency Closings ........................................................................................................................................... 67 

Page 66 of 158



BENEFITS SUMMARY TABLE ............................................................................................................................ 69 

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK ACKNOWLEDGEMENT ............................................................................................ 71 

Page 67 of 158



I. EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 

 

At-Will Employment 

All employment at Altadena Library District is "at will.”  That means that either the employee or 
Altadena Library District have the right to terminate employment at any time, with or without advance notice, 
and with or without cause.  As a part of this "at-will" policy, employees understand that Altadena Library 
District reserves its inherent right to manage its business and all issues pertaining to employee's 
employment, including all matters pertaining to promotion, job assignment, compensation, demotion, 
transfer, discipline, and size of work force.  This handbook does not alter the "at-will" relationship between 
the employer and employee. 

Equal Employment Opportunity and California’s Fair Employment and Housing Act 

The success of Altadena Library District is due to the contributions of employees from diverse 
backgrounds, national origins, and heritage.  It is Altadena Library District policy to provide equal 
employment opportunity for all applicants and employees.  

Altadena Library District does not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of race, color, creed, religion, 
gender (including pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, or related medical conditions), national origin, 
ancestry, age, physical or mental disability, medical condition including genetic characteristics, or any 
information based on genetic background, family-care status, military and veteran status, citizenship status, 
immigration status, primary language, marital status, or sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender 
expression where a person’s gender-related appearance and behavior may not be stereotypically 
associated with the person’s assigned sex at birth, or any other consideration made unlawful by federal, 
state, or local laws. This prohibition also includes a perception that anyone has any of those characteristics, 
or is associated with a person who has or is perceived as having any of those characteristics. Additionally, 
the Company does not discriminate against any employee who is an officer, warrant officer, or enlisted 
member of the military or naval forces of the state or of the United States because of that membership. 
Altadena Library District also makes reasonable accommodations for disabled employees and employees 
with sincerely held religious beliefs. Finally, Altadena Library District prohibits the harassment of any 
individual on any of the basis listed above. For information about the types of conduct that constitute 
impermissible harassment and Altadena Library District internal procedures for addressing harassment 
complaints, please refer to the Policy Against Harassment. 

This nondiscrimination policy applies to all areas of employment including recruitment, hiring, 
training, promotion, compensation, leaves of absence, benefits, transfer, and social and recreational 
programs. It is the responsibility of every manager and employee to conscientiously follow this policy. Any 
employee having any questions regarding this policy should discuss them with the Manager and/or follow 
the general complaint procedure set forth in this Employee Handbook. 

Employees with Disabilities   

1. Policy 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and/or the Fair Employment & 
Housing Act (FEHA); Altadena Library District does not discriminate against any "qualified individuals with 
a disability." Individuals qualify for employment if they meet the education, skills, and experience 
requirements of a position and can perform the essential functions of the job with or without a reasonable 
accommodation. It is the responsibility of the employee to request an accommodation of his or her physical 
or mental disability by contacting the Manager. In accordance with the ADA and/or FEHA, Altadena Library 
District will take such requests seriously and will promptly determine whether the employee is a qualified 
individual with a disability and whether a reasonable accommodation exists which would allow the employee 

Page 68 of 158



to perform the essential functions of the job without imposing an undue hardship on Altadena Library District 
or other employees or pose a direct threat to health or safety.  

2. Reasonable Accommodation 

Qualified individuals with disabilities may require reasonable accommodation during the application 
process and/or during the course of their employment in order to perform the essential functions of the job. 
Requests for reasonable accommodation can be made verbally or in writing to the employee’s Manager or 
Human Resources and/or by following the general complaint procedure set forth in this Employee 
Handbook. 

A job applicant may make a request for accommodation to the recruiter, hiring manager, or Human 
Resources.  
 

The reasonable accommodation process is activated whenever: 
 

• A request for reasonable accommodation is made, verbally or in writing, by the employee or 
applicant, or someone acting on the employee’s/applicant’s behalf.  

• An employee with a known physical or mental impairment is observed by management having 
difficulty performing essential functions of his or her job because of his or her impairment. 

 
Verbal requests for reasonable accommodation will be documented to ensure that every request 

receives a timely decision.  
 

3. Interactive Process 

Whenever the reasonable accommodation process is activated, the five-step interactive process is 
initiated to determine whether an accommodation can be provided to the job applicant or the employee. 
The steps are as follows: 
 

(1) Determine whether individual has a disability. 
(2) Determine the essential functions of the job. 
(3) Identify the abilities and limitations of the individual. 
(4) Identify potential accommodations. 
(5) Determine the reasonableness of the accommodations and select options. 

The interactive process may not be required if it is definitively clear that an individual is not a 
qualified individual with a disability. 

Genetic Information 
 

Title II of the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 (GINA) prohibits genetic 
information discrimination in employment. Title II of GINA prohibits the use of genetic information in 
making employment decisions, and from requesting, requiring or purchasing genetic information, and 
strictly limits the disclosure of genetic information. Based on Title II of GINA, the Company will not 
discriminate against employees or applicants on the basis of genetic information when it comes to any 
aspect of employment, including hiring, firing, pay, job assignments, promotions, layoffs, training, fringe 
benefits, or any other term or condition of employment.  

 
Additionally, the Company will not tolerate harassment of any person associated with the 

Company, including employees, customers, vendors, and suppliers, because of his or her genetic 
information. Harassment can include, for example, making offensive or derogatory remarks about an 
applicant or employee’s genetic information, or about the genetic information of a relative of the applicant 
or employee.  

Page 69 of 158



 
Under Title II of GINA, the Company may obtain genetic information under the following 

circumstances: 
 

• Inadvertent acquisitions of genetic information that do not violate GINA, such as in situations 
where a manager or Manager overhears someone talking about a family member’s illness. 

• Genetic information (such as family medical history) obtained as part of health or genetic 
services, including wellness programs, offered by the Company on a voluntary basis, provided 
certain specific requirements are met. 

• Family medical history acquired as part of the certification process for FMLA leave (or leave 
under similar state or local laws or pursuant to Company policy), where an employee is asking 
for leave to care for a family member with a serious health condition. 

• Genetic information acquired through commercially and publicly available documents like 
newspapers. 

• Genetic information acquired through a genetic monitoring program that monitors the biological 
effects of toxic substances in the workplace where the monitoring is required by law or, under 
specific defined conditions, where the program is voluntary. 

• Acquisition of genetic information of employees who engage in DNA testing for law enforcement 
purposes as a forensic lab or for purposes of human remains identification, however, the genetic 
information will only be used for analysis of DNA markers for quality control to detect sample 
contamination. 

 
Genetic information will be confidentially maintained in a separate medical file. No genetic 

information will be shared with the exception of disclosing relevant genetic information to government 
officials investigating compliance with Title II of GINA and for disclosures made pursuant to a court order. 

Immigration Law Compliance 

  Altadena Library District is committed to full compliance with federal immigration laws.  These laws 
require that all individuals provide documents proving their identity and legal right to work in the United 
States. Each new employee, as a condition of employment, must complete the Employment Eligibility 
Verification Form I-9 and present documentation establishing identity and employment eligibility. This must 
be done within the first three days of employment. Failure to present the required documents may lead to 
dismissal.  Any falsification of documentation required by the immigration laws will result in immediate 
termination.  

Company Position on Labor Unions 

 It is Altadena Library District's belief that direct interaction between our employees and 
management is essential for the continued maintenance of good employee relations. We are committed to 
protect the personal rights and independence of our employees from outside interference of any union or 
agent. 
 

Open Door Policy 

Altadena Library District is committed to complying with all employment regulations, guidelines and 
laws, both state and federal. Any employee who has concerns or complaints regarding any aspect of his/her 
employment may initiate a discussion with his/her Manager.  Although employees may directly contact the 
Director at any time, the Company recommends that employees maintain open lines of communication with 
their Managers by reviewing concerns with them first.  Problems will be dealt with promptly and will involve 
only necessary personnel. Employees may also utilize the Workplace Reporting Hotline. 

Page 70 of 158



General Complaint Procedure 

1. Employees who have a concern or complaint regarding any aspect of his/her employment should 
immediately contact the Manager, Human Resources Department or other designated 
representative or the Workplace Reporting Hotline and formally report their concern pursuant to 
this complaint procedure. 

2. The employee may be asked to, among other things, specify the specific circumstances of their 
concern or complaint and whether it has occurred on other occasions. 

3. The designated representative will then investigate the concern or complaint.  

4. The Company will take appropriate action as expeditiously as possible on the complaint.  

5. The resolution of the situation will be documented and placed with the affected employees’ records. 

6. The Company may, from time to time, establish a practice to regularly audit employment practices. 

7. Employees who utilize this complaint procedure shall not be retaliated against for making use of 
this policy. Employees with questions concerning this policy are encouraged to contact the 
Manager, Human Resources Department or other designated representative.  

 

The Company does not participate in any unlawful “immigration-related practices”, and prohibits 
retaliation, discrimination, or other adverse employment action against employees who exercise their 
employee rights, or who make a complaint about employment rights (under the Labor Code), including but 
not limited to any written, or oral complaints of owed unpaid wages.  This includes a prohibition against 
reports, or threats to report employees, former employees, prospective employees, or family members to 
immigration authorities.  
 
Workplace Reporting Hotline 
 
 Altadena Library District provides all employees with a Workplace Reporting Hotline, which 
provides third party assistance to employees for reporting concerns of, including: 
 

• Harassment 

• Accounting Fraud 

• Violence or Threats 

• Unsafe Working Conditions 

• Discrimination 

• Misconduct 

• Conflicts of Interest 

• Compliance Violations 
 

The Hotline is independently staffed by an outside entity, committed to preserving callers’ 
anonymity, although confidentiality cannot be guaranteed.  Information may be shared with management. 
Employees who wish to utilize the Hotline to report an occurrence listed above should call HR NETwork 
(844-474-6854).  For further information, please contact a member of management or call the Hotline 
directly. 

 
The Workplace Reporting Hotline is for non-emergency assistance.  If a life-threatening or safety 

issue arises, employees should contact the appropriate emergency services personnel. 
 

Page 71 of 158



Employment of Relatives 

Relatives of present employees may be hired by Altadena Library District only if (1) the individuals 
concerned will not work in a direct Manager relationship, and (2) the employment will not pose difficulties 
for supervision, security, safety or morale. "Relatives" are defined as spouses, children, sisters, brothers, 
mothers or fathers, and persons related by marriage. Present employees who marry or who become related 
by marriage will be permitted to continue employment with Altadena Library District only if they do not work 
in a direct Manager relationship with one another, or otherwise pose difficulties for supervision, security, 
safety or morale.  

Based upon a bona fide occupational qualification or need, or where based upon applicable security 
regulations established by the United States or the State of California, if employees who marry or who 
become related by marriage do work in a direct Manager relationship with one another, Altadena Library 
District will attempt to reassign one of the employees to another position for which they are qualified if such 
a position is available. If no such position is available, then one of the employees may be required to leave 
Altadena Library District. 

Outside Employment 
 
 Current employees may hold an outside job as long as the employee meets the performance 
standards of your job at Altadena Library District.  If the Company determines that your outside work 
interferes with your performance or the ability to meet the requirements of Altadena Library District as they 
are modified from time to time, you may be asked to terminate the outside employment if you wish to remain 
with Altadena Library District. 
 

Outside employment that constitutes a conflict of interest is prohibited.  You may not receive any 
income or material gain from individuals outside Altadena Library District for materials produced or services 
rendered while performing your job at Altadena Library District.  

Employees who engage in outside employment must disclose such employment and get written 
approval from their immediate Manager.  Failure to adhere to this guideline (including failure to disclose 
any conflicts or to seek an exception) may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of 
employment. 

Background Investigations 

Background investigations are completed for all candidates-for-hire as a condition of employment 
with the Altadena Library District.  Upon receiving an offer of employment, a background investigation will 
be conducted on all candidates which includes an employment verification, criminal offense check, social 
security number check, and a college degree check (where applicable based on the requirement of the 
job).  For those employees who are required to drive a Company-owned vehicle or their own vehicles on 
Company business, a DMV record check will also be obtained upon offer of employment, and annually 
thereafter (see Company Vehicle and Driving Policy). 

Introductory Period 

The first 90 days of continuous employment at Altadena Library District is considered an 
introductory period, although there is no guaranty of continued employment for any period of time. During 
this time, you will learn your responsibilities, get acquainted with fellow employees, and learn the practices 
and processes of the Company.  

Page 72 of 158



 
Hours of Work 

Altadena Library District business hours are outlined below. 

• Main Library: Monday-Tuesday – 10:00 a.m. – 9:00 p.m.; Wednesday-Saturday – 10:00 
a.m. – 6:00 p.m.   

• Branch Library: Monday-Tuesday – 10:00 a.m. – 6:00 p.m., Wednesday-Thursday – 10:00 
a.m. to 8:00 p.m., Friday 10:00 a.m. – 6:00 p.m.   

All employees will generally be scheduled an eight (8) hour workday between these hours, with a 
30-60 minute unpaid and off-duty meal period. Altadena Library District reserves the right to modify 
employees' starting and quitting times and the number of hours worked..   

Employee Classifications 

1. Regular Employees  

Regular employees are those who are hired to work on a regular schedule.  Regular employees 
may be classified as full-time or part-time. 

2. Full-Time Employees 

Regular full-time employees are those who are scheduled for and do work 30 hours per week.  
Following the completion of the introductory period, regular full-time employees are eligible for most 
employee benefits described in this handbook. 

3. Part-Time Employees 

Part-time employees are those who are scheduled for and do work fewer than 30 hours per week.  
Part-time employees are eligible for the following Altadena Library District benefits on a pro-rated basis: 

4. Temporary/Seasonal Employees  

Temporary/seasonal employees are those employed for short-term assignments.  Short-term 
assignments generally are periods of three months or fewer; however, such assignments may be extended.  
Temporary/seasonal employees are not eligible for employee benefits except those mandated by 
applicable law. 

5. Rehired Employees  

            Employees that terminate employment in good standing and then are rehired by Altadena Library 

District are subject to the following rules: 

Break-in-Service Greater than 12 Months: If an employee is rehired after a break in service greater than 12 
months, he/she will be treated as a new hire for placement, compensation and benefits purposes. 

Break-in-Service Less than 12 Months: If an employee is rehired after a break in service of 12 months or 
less and is rehired in the same position held prior to the break in service: 

• The employee’s vacation accrual rate will be reinstated to the rate held prior to the break in service 
and the employee’s unused sick leave hours prior to the break will be reinstated.  

• The employee’s previously accrued and unused paid sick days will be reinstated. 

Page 73 of 158



• The employee’s insurance benefits will be reinstated in accordance with Group Benefits Program 
(GBP) regulations.  

• All other benefits will be reinstated to the level they were at prior to the break in service.  

If an employee is rehired after a break in service of 12 months or less and is rehired in a different 
position from that previously held, all benefits will be reinstated to the level they were at prior to the break 
in service; however, the employee will be treated as a new hire for placement and compensation purposes. 

Page 74 of 158



II. COMPENSATION 

Performance and Pay Review 

Generally, employees will receive performance reviews annually.  However, performance reviews 
may be conducted more frequently or less frequently, depending upon the business needs of the employer.  
The purpose of the review is to evaluate your current level of performance, to examine the progress you 
have made since the last review and to establish goals for your next review. 

Pay increases are entirely within the discretion of the employer and may be given at the time of a 
performance review, although it is not automatic. Among other factors, increases in pay are given on the 
basis of merit and economic conditions. 

Exempt/Non-Exempt Classification 

1. Non-Exempt Classification 

Non-exempt employees receive hourly wages and are subject to applicable state and federal wage 
and hour laws, i.e. overtime pay.   

 
2. Exempt Classification 

Exempt employees are those who are exempt from certain wage and hour laws, e.g. overtime pay. 
Exemption is established using state and federal guidelines based on job content and a salary basis test. 
Exempt employees receive an annual salary, in equal payments at a specified time interval. 

 

Record Keeping of Time Worked 

1. Non-Exempt Record Keeping 

Non-exempt employees must complete a time record each week showing the number of hours 
worked that week. Time records provide the information needed for payroll calculations and record the 
number of hours worked, as required by law for non-exempt employees. Accurate recording of time is 
essential. Timely submission of time records is mandatory.  Failure to submit information in a timely manner 
or falsification of hours on a time record may result in disciplinary action.  

2. Entries  

Entries are made for the exact time the employee commences work each day; the time work stops 
for lunch; the time work resumes after lunch and the time the employee stops work at the end of each day. 
Employees record this information daily and sign the time card at the end of each week. Time cards are 
submitted to the Manager at the end of each workweek for review and signing by the Manager.  

In the event an employee is absent, the employee makes an explanatory notation on the time card, 
i.e., "vacation," "jury duty," "illness."  

Work outside normally scheduled hours must be authorized in advance by the Manager and is 
recorded and paid in the same manner as work performed during scheduled hours.  

3. Approval (effective until April 1, 2017) 

Managers must review and approve all time cards prior to submission to the Finance Department 
no later than three (3) days prior to the end of the pay period being reported. Each employee must complete 
and sign his/her own time card. Cards must not be completed or signed by anyone else, including the 

Page 75 of 158



Manager. Cards without the Manager's signature are considered incomplete. Falsification of hours or 
signatures by the employee or Manager on a time card may be cause for dismissal.  

If a time card has not been prepared or an error has been made on a time card, the employee will 
notify the Manager. Both the employee and Manager are required to initial corrected time cards.  

4. Exempt Employees  

All exempt classified employees are required to accurately and immediately report any absence, 
paid or unpaid.  If you are absent from work, you are required to make an explanatory notation on the time 
sheet provided for salaried employees, i.e., "vacation," "jury duty," "illness", etc., and submit it to the Finance 
Department no later no later than three (3) days prior to the end of the pay period being reported of the 
week following the week being reported. 

Time Clock Rounding Practices (Non-Exempt)  

             The Company uses the California and Federal DOL accepted practice of computing working time 
by rounding to the nearest 15-minute increment when calculating the number of hours worked. This 
rounding grace period policy compensates employees who punch in 7 minutes early or punch out 7 minutes 
late based on their work schedule. Employee time from 1 to 7 minutes will be rounded down, and not 
counted as hours worked.  Employee time from 8 to 14 minutes will be rounded up and counted as a quarter 
hour of work time.  

The Payroll Department periodically audits time records to ensure that the Company’s rounding 
practice does not result, over a period of time, in a failure to properly compensate employees for all hours 
actually worked. 

Off-the-clock work is not permitted, and any employee who performs work while not clocked in 
should notify his/her supervisor so that he or she will be paid for this time. 

Any employee who does not understand the Company’s policy regarding the rounding practice, or 
who believe their pay has been improperly calculated and wishes to initiate an inquiry into their pay records, 
should utilize the Company’s Compensation Complaint Procedure (found in the Compensation section). 

Overtime Pay (Non-Exempt) 

Non-exempt employees will be paid for their hours worked in accordance with all federal and state 
wage and hour laws and regulations.  Employees who qualify as exempt under the state and FLSA 
exemption list are exempt from receiving overtime pay and meal and rest breaks.  Unless otherwise 
provided, the workweek on which weekly overtime calculations will be based begins each Sunday at 
midnight; and each workday on which daily overtime calculations will be based begins at midnight. 

1. Preauthorization 

All overtime work by a non-exempt employee must be approved in advance by the employee's 
Manager.  Under normal circumstances, work should be completed during regular work hours.  Managers 
will request overtime work or work outside of regularly scheduled hours only when necessary and with as 
much advance notice as possible.  Employees who work unauthorized overtime or who refuse to work 
assigned overtime based on the requirements of the job and as previously agreed to upon hire, may be 
subject to disciplinary action. 

Page 76 of 158



2. Calculation 

Overtime is calculated according to the employee's regularly scheduled hours and applicable laws.  
For all non-exempt employees, hours worked up to eight (8) hours in one day or forty (40) hours in any one-
work week will be paid at the current rate.  Hours worked over eight (8) hours in one day or over forty (40) 
hours in a week will be paid at 1.5 times the employee's regular rate.  Hours worked in excess of twelve 
(12) hours in any workday and for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) on the seventh consecutive day 
of work in a workweek will be paid at two (2) times the employee's current rate.  

California Meal Periods and Rest Breaks Policy (Non-Exempt) 

1. Policy 

Altadena Library District strictly follows the California Labor Code, case law, and applicable IWC 
wage order, which require the employer provide the opportunity for an unpaid, duty-free meal period to all 
non-exempt employees to begin before the end of the 5th hour of work. A duty-free meal period is defined 
as a minimum 30-minute uninterrupted period where employees are relieved of all duties and, the Company 
relinquishes control over employees’ activities. The Company will not impede or discourage employees 
from taking their meal period. No work may be performed during any meal or rest period, unless authorized 
by the Company and mutually agreed upon in writing. 

Three scenarios of how the meal period may be impeded and the resulting pay owed: 

1) Employer authorizes and both employer and employee mutually agree to waive the meal 
period.  All time worked is paid at straight time and no meal period premium is owed. 

2) The employee voluntarily works through their meal period without authorization or knowledge 
of employer. All time worked is paid at straight time. The employee may be subject to 
disciplinary action for working unauthorized. 

3) The employee works through meal period, upon the employer’s request and with employer’s 
knowledge. All time worked is paid at straight time plus a one-hour meal period premium is 
owed. 

The unpaid meal period, which must be taken for at least thirty minutes, must commence before 
the end of the fifth hour of employment. If a non-exempt employee works more than ten hours in one day, 
the employee may take a second unpaid meal period of at least thirty minutes, which may be waived by 
mutual consent of both the employer and employee, provided the first meal period was taken. If the total 
work period per day is no more than six hours, the meal period may be waived by mutual consent of both 
the employer and employee. 

Altadena Library District authorizes and permits duty-free rest periods for all non-exempt 
employees. Rest periods consist of at least ten minutes of "net" rest time for each four-hour work period or 
a major fraction thereof. Rest periods generally occur in the middle of the work shift to the extent practicable. 
Rest periods are not documented in employee time records.  

2. Meal Period and Rest Break Recordkeeping 

Altadena Library District monitors and maintains records to ensure the accuracy that time records 
reflect the beginning and ending time of each work period, as well as meal periods, and total daily hours 
worked. Employees are required to “clock out” for meal periods. Additionally, employees are required to 
sign and date, under penalty of perjury, on each time record for each payroll period that:  

a) They agree to follow the Meal Periods and Rest Breaks Policy; 

Page 77 of 158



b) The employee has complied with the rest/meal period policy unless otherwise noted on the 
time record (e.g., missed rest or meal period with a notation of the reason); 

c) That their time entries are accurate; and 

d) Sign the appropriate written waiver form, if applicable. 

 

3. Policy Enforcement 

Violations of any part of this policy will be enforced with disciplinary action.  If an employee becomes 
aware of any violations of meal or rest period rules, either with respect to him/herself or others, the 
employee must promptly report it to his/her Manager. 

Meeting and Training Pay (Non-Exempt)  

Altadena Library District will pay non-exempt employees for their attendance at meetings, lectures, 
and training programs under the following conditions: 

• Attendance is mandatory; 

• The meeting, course, or lecture is directly related to the employee's job;  

• The employee who is required to attend such meetings, lectures, or training programs will be 
notified of the necessity for such attendance by his or her Manager; 

• Employees who do perform productive work during attendance at meetings, lectures or training 
programs will be compensated at their current rate of pay. 

 Any hours in excess of eight (8) in a day or forty (40) in a week will be paid at the appropriate 
overtime rate, at the hourly rate in effect at the time the overtime work is being performed. 

Split Shift (Non-Exempt) 

Depending on your schedule of work and your rate of pay, you may be eligible for a split shift 
premium.  Those who are eligible and who work a "split shift" (more than one hour between shifts), may be 
entitled to a split shift premium payment of one (1) hour. Premium payments are not included for the 
purposes of overtime calculations. 

Reporting Time Pay  (Non-Exempt) 

Reporting time pay will be paid to non-exempt employees when an employee reports to work at 
his/her regularly scheduled time, but is not put to work or is given less than half the usual or scheduled 
day's work. Reporting time pay will be at least half of the hours you are scheduled to work during your shift, 
but no more than four (4) hours of pay. Additionally, if an employee is required to report to work a second 
time in the same workday and is provided with less than two hours of work, the Company will pay two hours 
at the employee’s regular hourly wage rate.  

Reporting time pay is not counted in the employee’s regular rate for purposes of calculating 
overtime wages.  

Reporting time will not be paid under the following circumstances: 

• On a paid “on call” status: 

Page 78 of 158



• When operations cannot begin due to threats to the Company or the Company’s property or 
when recommended by civil authority; 

• When public utilities fail, such as water, gas, electricity, or sewer; and 

• When work is interrupted by an act of God or other causes not within the Company's control. 

Additionally, the Company is not obligated to pay reporting time pay under the following 
circumstances: 

• If the employee is not fit to work.  

• If the employee has not reported to work on time and is fired or sent home as a disciplinary 
action.  

Employees with questions regarding reporting time pay should contact [their Managers/human 
resources/other job title]. 

“Called In” Pay (Non-Exempt) 

When a non-exempt employee is called in to work on a day other than his/her normal work schedule 
(when there is no specified number of hours the employee is scheduled to work), that employee will be paid 
at least two hours pay. 

Change Notice To Employee (Non-Exempt) 

All non-exempt employees will be provided and required to sign a Notice of Change form, at the 
time of hire and within seven (7) calendar days of any change, when any of following changes occurs: 

 

• Rate of pay, including any overtime rate 

• Allowances, including meal and lodging allowances 

• Designated pay day 

• Name of the employer, including any “DBA” names 

• Employer’s physical address and telephone number 

• The name, address and telephone number of the employer’s workers’ compensation carrier 

• Sick leave policy 
 

Payday and Pay Check Distribution 

Employees are paid semi-monthly, for the pay period of the prior two weeks, the 1st-15th and 16th 
to the end of the month respectively.  For non-exempt employees,  time cards must be completed so that 
paychecks will be issued timely and accurate.  If a payday falls on a holiday, paychecks will be distributed 
on the preceding workday. Checks are distributed by the Finance Department on the date assigned for 
payment. If the employee is absent when the paycheck is distributed, the employee may claim the paycheck 
from the Finance Department when the employee returns. 

Direct Deposit 

Altadena Library District provides, and encourages, direct deposit of paychecks. This is a service 
which saves you time and provides added security. With this option, each paycheck will be automatically 
deposited to your checking or savings account as designated by you. Each payday, you still receive a pay 
stub for your records -- much like a voided check with all the same information, which would appear on your 
regular check -- except the face of the check is voided. No trips to the bank are necessary because your 
pay appears in your bank account on payday or in some cases the night before. Direct Deposit will be 
initiated one pay period following the receipt of the signed authorization form from the employee. 

Page 79 of 158



Salary Deductions 

Certain deductions required by law will be made from each employee's wages.  These include state 
and federal income taxes, social security (FICA) taxes and state disability insurance (SDI) payments where 
applicable.  Other non-statutory deductions will be made upon employee authorization for additional health 
and/or life insurance options, voluntary tax-deferred investment (CalPERS) program. 

Garnishments  

If the Company receives a court order for garnishment of your wages, Altadena Library District will 
follow these guidelines: 

• Advise you of the court order and the date the first deduction will be made; 

• (Federal). The garnishment may not exceed 25% of your weekly disposable earnings or the 
amount by which your disposable earnings for the week exceed 30 times the federal minimum 
hourly wage in effect at the time the earnings are payable. Disposable earnings are defined as 
the portion of your earnings that remains after deducting all amounts required to be withheld 
by law. 

 
• (California). The garnishment may not exceed the maximum amount of disposable earnings 

subject to wage garnishment is the lesser of either 25% of the individual’s disposable earnings 
for that week or 50% of the amount by which the individual’s disposable earnings for that week 
exceed 40 times the state minimum hourly wage.  
 

• If you are subject to multiple garnishments, the Company will pay child support payments first; 
and 

• The Company will retain a copy of the court orders in your personnel file as the legal basis for 
making the payroll deduction. 

 

Compensation Compliance Policy  

Altadena Library District complies with all laws, both state and federal, regarding pay practices. The 
Company does not participate in any unlawful “immigration-related practices”, and prohibits retaliation, 
discrimination, or other adverse employment action against employees who exercise their employee rights, 
or who make a complaint about employment rights (under the Labor Code), including but not limited to any 
written, or oral complaints of owed unpaid wages.  This includes reports, or threats to report, employees, 
former employees, prospective employees, or family members to immigration authorities.  

 
In the event of an inadvertent or improper pay deduction overpayment or error, affected employees 

must immediately report their concern to the Finance Department.  Altadena Library District will review the 
situation thoroughly and make any corrections to an employee’s pay deemed necessary. Questions or 
concerns about Altadena Library District policy should also be addressed to your Manager or the Human 
Resource Department. 
 

Compensation Complaint Procedure 

1. Employees who believe their pay has been improperly calculated or questions on their exemption 
status should immediately contact the Finance Department and formally report their concern 
pursuant to this complaint procedure. 

2. The employee will be asked to specify in writing, using the guidance above, the specific 
circumstances of the pay miscalculation and whether it has occurred on other occasions. 

Page 80 of 158



3. The designated representative from the Payroll Department will then investigate the claim by 
reviewing pay records and likely interviewing other employees, Managers or managers, as well as 
the payroll representatives handling the employee’s pay, to determine the nature and scope of the 
employee’s issue.  

4. If pursuant to this review a compensation calculation is found to have been made in error, the 
Finance Department will correct the error as expeditiously as possible.  

5. If a compensation error is found, the designated representative will further determine if this was an 
isolated incident or a pattern of conduct that requires further action on the part of the Company. If 
warranted, the Finance Department may make retroactive corrections to assure that compensation 
calculations are completed in compliance with both state and federal laws. 

6. The resolution of the situation will be documented (including confirmation on the part of the 
employee that the situation has been resolved) and placed with the employee’s records. 

7. The Finance Department may, from time to time, establish a practice to regularly audit employee 
pay records. 

8. Employees who utilize this complaint procedure shall not be retaliated against for making use of 
this policy. Employees with questions concerning this policy are encouraged to contact the Finance 
Department.  

 

Page 81 of 158



III. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

General Overview 

Altadena Library District provides benefits for its regular, full-time eligible employees. Full-time 
employees are employees who are normally scheduled to work, on average, at least thirty (30) hours per 
week.  Any employee working less than, on average, thirty (30) hours per week will be considered a part-
time employee and are not eligible for Company except for those mandated by law. Altadena Library District 
reserves the right to eliminate or modify any of its benefits at any time. 

Insurance Benefits 

1. Worker's Compensation Insurance 

Altadena Library District carries Workers' Compensation insurance coverage, as required by law, 
to protect employees who are injured on the job. This insurance provides medical, surgical and hospital 
treatment in addition to payment for loss of earnings that result from work-related injuries. Worker's 
Compensation benefits are paid in accordance with a statutory schedule established by the state. An 
employee who suffers any on-the-job injury must report that incident to his/her Manager or department 
head as soon as possible, and complete an "Injury Report" form.  The location of Altadena Library District's 
MPN (Medical Provider Network) is located on the employee notice board. 

You should be aware that California law makes it a crime to file a knowingly false or fraudulent 
claim for Workers' Compensation benefits, or to submit knowingly false or fraudulent information in 
connection with any Workers' Compensation claim.  Violation of this law is punishable by imprisonment of 
up to five (5) years, a fine of up to $50,000 or both.  Filing a false or fraudulent Workers' Compensation 
claim is also a violation of Company policy, and will result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination. 

2. Medical, Dental and Vison Insurance  

All regular full-time employees and their dependents are eligible to participate in Altadena Library 
District's health and dental insurance plan starting the 1st of the month following date of hire. Contact Human 
Resources for more information about plan specifics. 

Altadena Library District also offers a contributory employee vision plan for regular full-time 
employees. Enrollment is effective the 1st of the month following date of hire.  Contact Human Resources 
for more information about plan specifics. 

Part-time and temporary employees are not eliglbe for health insurance benefits.  

3. Life Insurance 

All regular full-time employees are eligible for group life insurance the 1st of the month following 
date of hire. Consult Human Resources or the summary plan document for more specific information. 

4. Conversion/Post-Employment Insurance Options (COBRA) 

Pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA), eligible 
employees and their dependents may be entitled to continue insurance coverage if you lose your group 
health coverage benefits because of a reduction in your hours of employment or the termination of your 
employment with Altadena Library District for reasons other than gross misconduct on your part.  Any 
questions concerning your rights under COBRA should be directed to the Manager. 

Page 82 of 158



5. Notification of Life Changing Events 

The Finance Department is responsible for maintaining complete and up-to-date employment 
records for all current employees.  Employees are responsible to notify the Manager within thirty (30) days 
of the occurrence of any “life changing event,” as the event may impact insurance coverage and eligibility.  
These events consist of: 

• Change in your marital status (such as marriage, divorce, annulment or legal separation) 

• Termination of your spouse’s or registered domestic partner’s full-time employment 

• Loss of your spouse’s or registered domestic partner’s coverage under another employer’s 
benefits plan (allows you to change only the coverage lost, e.g., medical, dental) 

• A change in your family status, such as gaining or losing an eligible dependent 

• Spouse or registered domestic partner gaining benefits through a new employer or first offer of 
benefits through spouse’s or registered domestic partner’s current employer (open enrollment 
periods excluded) 

Employees should also promptly notify the Manager of any changes in their name, home address, 
telephone number, and insurance or retriement plan beneficiaries. 

CalPERS Retirement Program  

Altadena Library District participates in the CalPERS Retirement Plan, which is provided to all 
regular full-time employees upon hire. CalPERS is a public pension fund and meets all the requirements of 
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. Plan details and eligibility requirements are 
available from the Company’s designated benefits broker. 

Page 83 of 158



IV. HOLIDAYS, VACATION, AND SICK LEAVE  

 

Holidays 

Altadena Library District observes the following standard holidays and provides all full-time 
employees time off with pay at their normal base rate unless otherwise provided in this policy:  

New Year's Day   Thanksgiving Day 
Martin Luther King Jr. Day Friday after Thanksgiving 
Presidents' Day   Christmas Eve 
Memorial Day   Christmas Day 
Independence Day  1 Additional Holiday (Date selected annually by  
Labor Day   Administration and approved by the Board) 
Veterans’ Day 
    

1. Eligibility 

In order to be eligible for holiday pay, the employee must work the scheduled day before and after 
the holiday, or be on an approved vacation/sick leave.   

Part-time employees will receive holiday pay if the holiday falls on their normally scheduled 
workday. 

Employees on a leave of absence do not receive holiday pay while on a non-Company paid leave. 

2. Rate of Pay 

Non-exempt employees who work on a scheduled holiday will be paid at 1-1/2 times their current 
rate for all hours worked, plus eight (8) hours' straight-time pay for the holiday. Double time will be paid for 
all hours worked in excess of twelve (12) hours on a holiday, in addition to the eight (8) hours' straight-time 
pay for the holiday. 

3. Pay in Lieu of Time Off 

Altadena Library District may, at its discretion, require an employee to work on scheduled holidays 
and provide pay in lieu of time off. 

4. Weekends and Vacations 

Holidays falling on a Saturday or Sunday are normally observed on the preceding Friday or the 
following Monday respectively and will be a paid holiday on the designated day. Holidays that occur during 
an employee's vacation are not to be counted as vacation days taken. 

 Free (Paid) Holidays  
 

1. Eligibility - Regular Full-Time Employees 

Regular full-time employees are granted three (3) days or 24 hours per year of free (paid) holiday 
time. Total hours are granted on January 1st.  

 
As this benefit is holiday pay, the holidays must be tied to a date or a specific event. Therefore, by 

January 15th  of each year, the employee must submit a request to their supervisor of which days/date they 
wish to designate their free (paid) holidays.  Any changes to this schedule must be approved in advance 
by the supervisor.  
 

Page 84 of 158



NOTE: Certain full-time employees accrue an additional free (paid) holiday.  Employees on this 
schedule will be grandfathered to continue receiving the additional benefit, however, it must also be 
designated by January 15th of each year. 
 

Employees hired during the year shall be granted pro-rated free (paid) holidays based on the 
appropriate the number of full months remaining in the year. Employees who receive pro-rated free (paid) 
holidays, must submit a request to their supervisor of which days/date they wish to designate their free 
(paid) holidays within 15 days of hire. 

 
2. Eligibility – Part-Time Employees  

Part-time and temporary are not eligible for free (paid) holidays. 
.  

3. Use of Free Holidays 

The use of free (paid) holidays is requested by employees and approved by the Manager.  Free 
(paid) holidays are subject to the approval of the Manager and shall be scheduled based on the need to 
maintain service to the community. 

 
4. Free Holiday Accrual during Leaves of Absence 

No free (paid) holiday accrues during an unpaid leave of absence (unless substituted paid leave is 
used) or  while collecting non-Company paid wage replacement. Free (paid) holiday accruals recommence 
when the employee returns to work. 

5. Free (Paid) Holiday Pay on Termination  

Employees do not receive pay for unused free (paid) holidays upon termination of employment. 

Vacation Policy  

Altadena Library District provides vacation benefits to eligible employees to enable them to take 
paid time off for rest and recreation. Altadena Library District believes this time is valuable for employees 
in order to enhance their productivity and to make their work experience with Altadena Library District 
personally satisfying. 

1. Eligibility 

All regular full-time employees (and part-time employees on a pro-rated basis) are eligible for 
vacation benefits, per the following schedule: 

 Regular Full-Time Employees 

Years of 
Service      
(Upon 

Anniversary) 
Annual Benefit 

(Days) 

Semi-Monthly 
Accrual     
(Days) 

Maximum 
Accrual 
Balance 
(Days) 

0-5 15 0.625 22.5 

6-9 18 0.075 27 

10-14 20 0.833 30 

15+ 25 1.042 37.5 

 
 

 

Page 85 of 158



Part-Time Employees (Who Work 20-30 per Week, On Average) 

Years of 
Service      
(Upon 

Anniversary) 
Annual Benefit 

(Hours) 

Semi-Monthly 
Accrual     
(Hours) 

Maximum 
Accrual 
Balance 
(Hours) 

1-4 37 1.54 55.5 

5-10 55.5 2.31 83.25 

10+ 74 3.08 111 

 

Temporary employees and employees who work less than twenty (20) hours per week do not 
accrue vacation benefits. 

2. Rate of Pay 

Vacation is paid at the employee’s current rate of pay at the time the vacation is taken and paid.  It 
does not include or is used in calculations for overtime or any special forms of compensation such as 
incentives, commissions, bonuses, or shift differentials.  

 
3. Maximum Accrual 

Vacation accruals may not exceed 1.5 times an employee's current annual entitlement. Once this 
maximum is reached, all further accruals will cease. Vacation accruals will recommence after the employee 
has taken vacation and his/her accrued hours have dropped below the maximum. 

4. Pay in Lieu of Vacation 

No employee will receive pay in lieu of vacation except on the termination of his/her employment, 
as described below, unless the employee has deferred his/her vacation at Altadena Library District's 
request. 

5. Vacation Accrual during Leaves of Absence 

II. No vacation accrues during an unpaid leave of absence (unless substituted paid leave is used) or  while 
collecting non-Company paid wage replacement. Vacation accruals recommence when the employee 
returns to work. 

6. Vacation Pay on Termination 

Upon termination of employment, the employee is paid all accrued but unused vacation at the 
employee's base rate of pay at the time of his/her termination. 

7. Vacation Approval and Scheduling 

All vacation time must be approved in advance.  Scheduling of vacations is to be done in a manner 
consistent with Altadena Library District's operational requirements. Vacation requests should be submitted 
by employees to their immediate Manager for approval at least two (2) weeks prior to the commencement 
of a vacation period. In the event that two (2) or more employees have requested vacations covering the 
same period and may not be absent simultaneously, preference shall be given based on the needs of the 
business. If employees wish to receive their pay prior to going on vacation, they must make a vacation 
request at least two (2) weeks in advance. Subject to Manager approval, an employee may otherwise 
schedule and take vacation at any time once it has accrued. 

Page 86 of 158



8. Voluntary Cash Out  

Employees have the option of cashing out a portion of their accrued vacation balance two (2) times 
per year to a maximum 80 hours each time.  Employees must leave a minimum of 40 hours in their vacation 
bank at the time of voluntary cash out.   

Example 1: An employee’s vacation balance is 60 hours. Because the employee must leave a 
minimum balance of at least 40 hours, the employee may elect to cash out up to 20 hours.  

Example 2: An employee’s vacation balance is 35 hours.  Because the employee must leave a 
minimum balance of at least 40 hours, the employee may NOT request vacation cash out.   

9. Vacation Advances 

An employee is not permitted to borrow on future accrual of vacation benefits, except with the 
approval of the Manager. In no case may vacation time be borrowed or taken before an employee becomes 
eligible to begin accruing vacation as described above.  

10. Holidays Occurring during Vacation 

If an observed Company holiday (see guideline entitled Holidays) occurs during an employee's 
scheduled vacation, no deduction from accrued vacation will be made for the holiday period. An employee 
may add to his/her vacation period by adding to or using the holiday period in place of accrued vacation 
time. 

11. Vacation Increments 

For non-exempt employees, accrued vacation must be taken by eligible employees in increments 
of at least one (1) hour.  

For exempt employees, accrued vacation must be taken by eligible employees in increments of at 
least one (1) hour. 

It is permissible to substitute or reduce the accrued leave in the plan for the time an employee is 
absent from work, whether the absence is a partial day or full day, without affecting the salary basis of 
payment, if the employee nevertheless receives in payment his or her guaranteed salary. 

 

Paid Sick Leave  

1. Eligibility and Accrual 

All regular full-time employees are eligible for ninety-six (96) hours sick leave per calendar year. 
All regular part-time employees and temporary employees who work at least 30 days per year are eligible 
for one (1) hour of sick leave for every 30 hours worked, up to maximum of three (3) days' sick leave per 
calendar year.  

Paid sick leave is accrued on a monthly basis.  Unused sick leave at the end of the year rolls over 
to the following year, up to a maximum of six (6) days or 48 hours in the employee’s sick leave account. An 
employee will not accrue more the maximum eligibility of ninety-six (96) hours sick leave. Once this 
maximum is reached, all further accruals will cease.  Sick leave accruals will recommence after the 
employee has taken Paid Sick leave and his/her accrued hours have dropped below the maximum. 

 
2. Rate of Pay 

Sick pay is paid at the employee’s current rate of pay, or in the same manner as other leaves are 
calculated, at the time of absence. 

Page 87 of 158



 
Paid Sick Leave is not included or used in calculations for overtime or any special forms of 

compensation such as incentives, commissions, bonuses, or shift differentials.  
  

3. Notification 

If the need for paid sick leave is foreseeable, the employee shall provide reasonable advance 
notification. It is the employee's responsibility to personally call and speak directly with their Manager in 
order to report their absence from work, unless in an emergency situation. Under no other circumstances 
will a voice message be an acceptable form of absence notification. The Manager must be contacted each 
subsequent day of absence.  

 
The employee will be asked to provide the Company with a note from their physician on the 5th 

consecutive day of absence due to illness (for absences of the 5th day and beyond) or after exhausting 3 
days of sick leave in a calendar year.  

 
After 3 days of consecutive illness, the Company requires the employee to provide a release from 

the doctor that identifies the employee is able to return to work, or if modified work is needed, the restrictions 
necessary for the restricted duty. 

 
Medical certifications must either be provided in person to the Manager or faxed to the Manager at 

(626) 798.0425.  If faxed (either by the employee or the Dr.’s office), it is the responsibility of the employee 
to verify receipt that the Dr.’s Certification has been received.  

 
4. Use 

In addition to leave for reasons stated above, Paid sick leave may also be applied as follows: 

• Sick leave may be taken for personal illness, emergency, or disability. 

• Hours absent for medical and dental appointments may be treated as sick leave. 

• New employees who are absent due to illness or disability during their introductory periods will 
not be compensated. 

• Altadena Library District retains the right to request verification from a licensed health-care 
provider for all absences due to illness or disability.  

• Sick leave will not accrue during any leave of absence. 

5. Pay in Lieu of Sick Leave 

No employee will receive pay in lieu of sick leave under any circumstances, and employees will not 
receive pay for unused sick leave on termination of employment. 

6. Sick Leave Increments 

For non-exempt employees, sick leave must be taken by eligible employees in increments of at 
least one (1) hour. 

For exempt employees, sick leave must be taken by eligible employees in increments of at least 
one (1) hour.  

7. Enforced Sick Leave 

Many common diseases/illnesses such as colds and the flu are communicable and are not 
otherwise protected medical or physical conditions under the law.  Employees are encouraged to exercise 

Page 88 of 158



discretion in determining if their condition is likely to affect the health of those around them in the workplace 
and call in sick when appropriate; accommodations to cover pending work will be made when needed.  If a 
Manager reasonably suspects based on objective criteria that an employee may be suffering from one of 
these common conditions, he/she may require an employee to go home if in the Manager’s opinion the 
individual is not only jeopardizing the individual’s health, but also greatly increasing the possibility of 
affecting the health of other employees.  Such absence will be charged against accrued sick leave, if 
available; if not, it may be charged to vacation leave or leave of absence without pay. 

 

Paid Absence 

  The Company provides a paid absence benefit under the following two circumstances.  The 
employee's benefit status will not be altered during a paid leave of absence.  All paid leaves must be 
approved, in advance of the leave, by the employee's Manager. 

1. Voting Time Off (Non-Exempt) 

 The Company provides all regular, full-time non-exempt employees up to two (2) hours paid time 
off to vote in a statewide primary or general election if the employee does not have time to vote outside of 
working hours. Any additional time off shall be without pay. 
  
 The Manager must be notified two (2) days in advance when an employee intends to take voting 
time off.  Such time should occur at the beginning or end of the employee's regular work shift, unless 
otherwise approved by the Manager. 

2. Bereavement Leave 

 The Company provides regular, full-time employees up to three (3) working days leave at the death 
of a child, spouse, registered domestic partner, or other immediate family members (including parents, 
stepparents, brothers, sisters, in-laws, grandparents or grandchildren).  The Company provides regular, 
part-time employees two (2) working day leave at the death of immediate family. If bereavement leave is 
approved by Manager and taken while on vacation, that time will not be charged as vacation time.   

Page 89 of 158



V. LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

Altadena Library District provides family-care and medical leave in accordance with the federal 
Family and Medical Leave Act (coordinated with the California Family Rights Act); pregnancy disability 
leave; disability leave for a workplace injury or as required to reasonably accommodate employees with a 
qualified disability; Paid Family leave; Family Military leave, and leave for other legally required absences 
as set forth below. Employees having any questions regarding this policy should contact the Manager. 

Medical Certifications 

Medical certifications for any medically-related leave must either be provided in person to the 
Manager or faxed to the Manager at (626) 798.0425 (note – this is/is not a confidential fax).  If faxed (either 
by the employee or the Dr.’s office), it is the responsibility of the employee to verify receipt that the Dr.’s 
Certification has been received.  

Family-Care and Medical Leave (and/or California Family Rights Act for California 
Employers) 

1. Eligibility 

To be eligible for Family-Care and Medical Leave Act, an employee must (1) have worked for 
Altadena Library District for at least twelve (12) months prior to the date on which the leave is to commence; 
and (2) have worked at least 1,250 hours in the twelve (12) months preceding the leave. However, 
employees who work at a location where Altadena Library District employs fewer than fifty (50) persons 
within seventy-five (75) miles are not eligible for family-care and medical leave. 

Note: While Altadena Library District is an eligible employer under FMLA (federal) or CFRA (California), 
employees of Altadena Library District do not meet eligibility requirements as there are fewer than 50 
employees at any Altadena Library District location within a 75-mile radius.   

If you have questions about FMLA/CFRA or feel you meet the eligibility criteria, please contact 
Human Resources. 

  

Pregnancy-Related Disability Leave or Transfer 

1. Eligibility and Duration 

Any employee who is disabled due to pregnancy, childbirth or related conditions may take up to 
four (4) months of pregnancy-related disability leave for prenatal care, postnatal care, loss of pregnancy, 
childbirth, and after pregnancy care; for each pregnancy. 

 
2. Temporary Transfer before Childbirth 

Any employee affected by pregnancy is entitled to transfer temporarily to a less strenuous or 
hazardous position or to less strenuous or hazardous duties if the transfer is medically necessary and the 
transfer can be reasonably accommodated. 

3. Substitution of Paid Leave for Pregnancy-Related Disability Leave 

An employee taking pregnancy-related disability leave must substitute any available sick pay for 
her leave and may, at her option, substitute any available accrued vacation time for her leave. The 
substitution of paid leave for pregnancy-related disability leave does not extend the total duration of the 
leave to which an employee is entitled. 

Page 90 of 158



Employees will not be paid sick leave while collecting non-Company-paid wage replacement. 

4. Effect on Benefits 

Employees on a pregnancy disability leave shall maintain health insurance benefits up to four 
months, as long as they are medically disabled. 

 An employee taking pregnancy disability leave will be allowed to continue participating in the 
Company’s group health plans, retirement plans and other benefit programs (except as set forth herein), in 
which she was enrolled prior to the first day of the leave, up to a maximum of four months and at the level 
and under the conditions of coverage as if she had continued in employment for the duration of such leave.  
During an employee’s pregnancy disability leave, Altadena Library District shall continue to make the same 
premium contribution as if the employee had continued working. The continued participation in health 
benefits begins on the date leave first begins.   
 
 The employee is responsible for paying the Company for the employee’s portion of benefit plans 
and programs.  The employee is also responsible prior to the start of any leave for making arrangements 
for submitting payment to the Company when payroll deductions are not possible. Employees should 
contact the Manager for more information.  

 
Once pregnancy disability ends, if the employee requests and is eligible for CFRA leave, benefits 

will continue for up to 12 additional weeks while the employee is on a CFRA leave. If, after the disability 
period (and applicable CFRA leave) ends, the employee fails to reimburse the Company for their benefit 
premiums while on leave, the employee will then be offered COBRA continuation coverage.  

No vacation or sick leave accrues during an unpaid leave of absence (unless substituted paid leave 
is used) or while collecting non-Company paid wage replacement. Vacation accruals recommence when 
the employee returns to work. 

5. Wage Replacement while on Pregnancy Disability Leave 

California State Disability Insurance (SDI) provides partial wage-replacement for California workers 
out of work due to a non-industrial injury, illness, or pregnancy related condition. The SDI programs are 
state-mandated, and funded through employee payroll deductions. 
 

SDI benefits can be paid only after you meet all of the following requirements:  
 

• You must be unable to do your regular or customary work for at least eight consecutive days.  

• You must be employed at the time you become disabled.  

• You must have lost wages because of your disability.  

• You must have earned at least $300 from which SDI deductions were withheld during a 
previous period.  

• You must be under the care and treatment of a licensed doctor or accredited religious 
practitioner during the first eight days of your disability. (The beginning date of a claim can be 
adjusted to meet this requirement.) You must remain under care and treatment to continue 
receiving benefits.  

• You must complete and mail a claim form, directly with the state Employment Development 
Department (EDD), within 49 days of the date you became disabled or you may lose benefits.  

• Your doctor must complete the medical certification of your disability.  

Page 91 of 158



6. Procedure for Requesting Pregnancy Disability Leave 

a) Notice Requirements 

Employees should notify Altadena Library District of their request for pregnancy disability leave as 
soon as they are aware of the need for such leave. For foreseeable events, if possible, the employee must 
provide thirty (30) calendar days' advance notice to Altadena Library District of the need for pregnancy 
disability leave. For events that are unforeseeable thirty (30) days in advance, but are not emergencies, the 
employee must notify Altadena Library District as soon as they learn of the need for the leave, ordinarily no 
later than one to two working days after the employee learns of the need for the leave. If the leave is 
requested in connection with a planned, non-emergency medical treatment, the employee may be 
requested to reschedule the treatment so as to minimize disruption of Altadena Library District’s business. 

If an employee fails to provide the requisite thirty (30)-day advance notice for foreseeable events 
without any reasonable excuse for the delay, Altadena Library District reserves the right to delay the taking 
of the leave until at least thirty (30) days after the date the employee provides notice of the need for 
pregnancy disability leave. 

All requests for pregnancy disability leave should include the anticipated date(s) and duration of 
the leave. Any requests for extensions of a pregnancy disability leave must be received at least five (5) 
working days before the date on which the employee was originally scheduled to return to work and must 
include the revised anticipated date(s) and duration of the pregnancy disability leave. 

b) Medical Certification 

Any request for pregnancy disability leave must be supported by medical certification from a health-
care provider. For foreseeable leaves, employees must provide the required medical certification before 
the leave begins. When this is not possible, employees must provide the required certification within fifteen 
(15) calendar days after Altadena Library Districts' request for certification unless it is not practicable under 
the circumstances to do so. Failure to provide the required medical certification may result in the denial of 
foreseeable leaves until such certification is provided. In the case of unforeseeable leaves, failure to provide 
the required medical certification within fifteen (15) days of being requested to do so may result in a denial 
of the employee's continued leave. Any request for an extension of the leave also must be supported by an 
updated medical certification. 

The medical certification for pregnancy disability leave shall include (a) the date on which the leave 
will commence; (b) the probable duration of the leave; and (c) in the case of intermittent or reduced-
schedule leave, a statement that, due to the serious health condition, the employee is unable to perform 
the functions of her position, the probable duration of such a schedule. 

Medical certifications for any medically-related leave must either be provided in person to the 
Manager or faxed to the Manager at (626) 798.0425.  If faxed (either by the employee or the Dr.’s office), 
it is the responsibility of the employee to verify receipt that the Dr.’s Certification has been received.  

7. Effect on Reinstatement 

Employees returning from pregnancy disability leave are entitled to reinstatement to the same or 
comparable position consistent with applicable law. Employees will be provided written notice of 
reinstatement prior to or upon commencement of their leave.  

 Altadena Library District retains the right to deny reinstatement to an employee who would not 
otherwise have been employed in his/her same position at the time reinstatement is requested for legitimate 
business reasons unrelated to the employee taking pregnancy disability leave or transfer (such as a layoff 
due to a plant closure); or whose reinstatement would cause substantial and grievous economic injury to 
the Company’s operation. Should an employee's position be eliminated while on leave, the Company will 

Page 92 of 158



provide written notice to the employee of available and comparable positions within 60 days of the 
employee's scheduled date of reinstatement. 

Before permitting employees to return to work, Altadena Library District also may require 
employees to provide medical certification that they are able to return to work. 

8. Other Terms and Conditions of Leave 

The provisions of Altadena Library District’s Family-Care and Medical-Leave policy regarding the 
leave's effect on pay, notice requirements, medical certification requirements and reinstatement also apply 
to all pregnancy-related disability leaves. However, for pregnancy-related disabilities, there is no process 
for obtaining more than one medical opinion, and there is no reinstatement exception for key employees. 
For the purpose of applying those provisions, an employee's pregnancy-related disability is considered to 
be a serious health condition. 

9. Nursing Mothers at Work 

Altadena Library District will reasonably accommodate employees who wish to express breast milk 
at work.  Employees who need to express breast milk at work should use their provided break time(s).  If 
additional time beyond the normal paid rest break is needed, the time will be provided but will be unpaid/ 
and will be paid up to an additional 5 minutes. Employees may choose to use their meal period to express 
breast milk as well. 

 The Company provides the use of a private place to express breast milk.  Please see the 
Manager to make appropriate arrangements. 

 

Workers’ Compensation Disability Leave 

1. Eligibility and Duration 

An employee is eligible for a workers’ compensation disability leave if he/she sustains an injury or 
illness that results in lost work time and the injury/illness is deemed to be job-related, arising out of 
employment and occurs in the course of employment. 

2. Notification 

To ensure that you receive any workers’ compensation benefits to which you may be entitled, you 
are required to do the following if you sustain a work-related injury or illness: 

• Immediately report any work-related injury or illness to your Manager. 

• Complete a written Employee’s Claim Form (DWC Form 1) and return it to the Manager. 

3.  Effect on Benefits  

An employee on a workers’ compensation disability leave will be allowed to continue participating 
in the Company’s group health plans, retirement plans and other benefit programs, (except as set forth 
herein), in which he/she was enrolled prior to the first day of the leave, up to a maximum of four (4) months, 
and at the level and under the conditions of coverage as if he/she had continued in employment for the 
duration of such leave.  During an employee’s workers’ compensation disability leave, Altadena Library 
District shall continue to make the same premium contribution as if the employee had continued working. 
The continued participation in health benefits begins on the date leave first begins.   
 
 The employee is responsible for paying the Company for the employee’s portion of benefit plans 
and programs.  The employee is also responsible prior to the start of any leave for making arrangements 
for submitting payment to the Company when payroll deduction is not possible.  If prior arrangement is not 

Page 93 of 158



possible, the employee should make payment arrangement as soon as it is feasible to do so.  Employees 
should contact the Manager for more information. 
 

If the leave extends beyond four (4) months, the employee will be responsible for the full cost of 
the employee’s group health coverage, and will be required to reimburse the Company for the full cost of 
plan premiums each month beyond the four (4) months.  

 
If, after the four (4) month period, the employee fails to reimburse the Company for their benefit 

premiums while on leave, the employee will be offered COBRA continuation coverage. 

 If the employee fails to return from the leave for a reason other than the recurrence or continuation 
of the health condition that brought about the leave or other circumstances beyond the employee's control, 
Altadena Library District can recover any health premiums paid by Altadena Library District on the 
employee's behalf during any unpaid periods of the leave. 

 
No vacation or sick leave accrues during an unpaid leave of absence (unless substituted paid leave 

is used) or while collecting non-Company paid wage replacement. Vacation accruals recommence when 
the employee returns to work. 

Employees will not be paid sick leave while collecting non-Company-paid wage replacement. 

4. Effect on Reinstatement 

Employees returning from workers’ compensation disability leave are entitled to reinstatement to 
the same or comparable position consistent with applicable law and subject to any applicable defense 
(including but not limited to, business hardship). Additional rights to reinstatement may exist if the employee 
is a qualified person with a disability under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) or California's Fair 
Employment and Housing Act (FEHA) and the employee can perform the "essential functions" of a position 
with or without "reasonable accommodation," unless that reinstatement would cause "undue hardship" or 
constitute a "direct threat" to the health and safety of coworkers or the employer. 

Before permitting employees to return to work, Altadena Library District also may require 
employees to provide medical certification that they are able to return to work. 

5. Other Terms and Conditions of Leave 

  Employees who are injured in a work-related incident will be referred to Altadena Library District’s 
medical clinic for medical treatment for up to thirty (30) days, unless prior to a work-related injury, Altadena 
Library District has received from the employee a written notice that the employee wishes to be treated by 
his or her own physician. In all cases, employees may seek treatment from their own physician after thirty 
(30) days, should they so desire. 

  If the employee has pre-designated a physician for work-related injuries/illnesses, the employee 
must provide Altadena Library District with certification from his/her health care provider regarding the need 
for workers’ compensation disability leave, as well as a return-to-work-certification upon the employee’s 
eventual return from the leave. 

  The law requires Altadena Library District to notify the workers’ compensation insurance Company 
of any concerns of false or fraudulent claims. Any person who makes or causes to be made any knowingly 
false or fraudulent material statement or material misrepresentation for the purpose of obtaining or denying 
workers’ compensation benefits or payments is guilty of a felony. A violation of this law is punishable by 
imprisonment for one to five years, or by a fine not exceeding $50,000 or double the value of the fraud, 
whichever is greater, or both. Additional civil penalties may also apply. 

Page 94 of 158



Other Disability Leaves  

In addition to medical, pregnancy-related disability, and workplace injury leaves described above, 
employees may take a temporary unpaid disability leave of absence if necessary to reasonably 
accommodate an ADA-qualified disability. 

Employees taking disability leave must comply with the family-care and medical-leave provisions 
regarding substitution of paid leaves, notice and medical certification. For the purpose of applying these 
provisions, a disability leave will be considered to be medical leave. 

The duration of a leave under this section shall be consistent with applicable law, but in no event 
shall the leave extend past the date on which an employee becomes capable of performing the essential 
functions of their position, with or without reasonable accommodation. For a full explanation of leave 
duration and reinstatement rights, employees should contact the Manager. 

Paid Family Leave 

1. Eligibility 

Employees are eligible for Paid Family Leave (PFL) immediately upon employment and upon the 
need for leave to care for a seriously ill family member who is unable to care for him/herself or to bond with 
a new child.    

Note: This benefit runs concurrently with family care but not pregnancy disability leave.  (Pregnancy 
disability is covered under SDI not PFL).  PFL does not change either law in any way and is completely 
separate from them.  Instead, PFL provides a paid benefit to employees who suffer a wage loss when they 
take time off work to care for an eligible family member, or to bond with a new child.   

2. Ineligibility 

Employees are ineligible to receive Paid Family Leave while receiving State Disability Insurance 
(SDI), Unemployment Insurance, or Workers’ Compensation benefits. 

Employees are not eligible for Paid Family Leave for any day that another family member is able 
and available for the same period of time to provide care to the individual that created a need for PFL. 

3.  Permissible Uses of Paid Family Leave 

Paid Family Leave may be requested to (1) care for a seriously ill child, spouse or domestic partner, 
parent, parent-in-law, grandparent, grandchild, sibling; (2) bond with a new child; (3) bond with a minor child 
in connection with the adoption or foster care placement of that child.  

4.  Amount of Leave 

An employee may receive up to six (6) weeks of benefits that may be paid over a 12-month period. 

5.  Effect on Benefits 

During an employee's Paid Family Leave, any continuation of Company benefits and insurance 
shall exist only to the extent the employee is eligible and covered under another applicable law or Company 
policy.  

 

Page 95 of 158



6. Procedure for Requesting Paid Family Leave 

a) Notice Requirements 

Employees should notify Altadena Library District of their request for PFL leave as soon as they 
are aware of the need for such leave.  The employee is required to complete a claim form with California’s 
Employment Development Department (EDD).  PFL requires a seven (7)-day waiting period and Altadena 
Library District requires employees to take up to two weeks of paid vacation from the employee’s available 
vacation accrued balance before becoming eligible for benefits. 

*Note: As of January 1, 2018, the 7-day waiting period for PFL will no longer be required. 

b) Medical Certification 

The EDD requires medical certification upon notification of the need for PFL.  Please see the EDD’s 
claim form for further information. 

7. Effect on Reinstatement 

Paid Family Leave does not create reinstatement rights for employees.  Employees returning from 
PFL are not entitled to reinstatement to the same or comparable position unless the right exists under 
another applicable law or Company policy. 

Leave for Organ and Marrow Donation 

An employee who serves as an organ donor for the purpose of transplantation shall receive up to 
30 business days of paid leave per year for an organ donation in any one-year period, and up to five 
business days of paid leave per year for a bone marrow donation. Leave may be taken in one or more 
periods. 

An employee seeking leave under this law must provide written verification to the Company that he 
or she is an organ or bone marrow donor and that there is a medical necessity for the organ or bone marrow 
donation. The leave will not be considered a break in continuous service for purposes of salary adjustments, 
sick leave or vacation, or seniority. Further, leave taken does not run concurrently with leave under the 
Family Medical Leave Act or California Family Rights Act. 

The Company requires that an employee take up to five days of accrued sick or vacation leave for 
bone marrow donations and up to two weeks of earned and unused sick or vacation leave for organ 
donations. 

An employee returning from organ or bone marrow donation leave will be restored to the same or 
equivalent position held when leave began.  

Family Military Leave 

Family Military Leave allows qualified employees (those working at least 20 hours a week providing 
services for hire, but not independent contractors) up to 10 days of unpaid leave if the employee’s spouse 
or domestic partner is a “qualified member” on leave from deployment.  

This leave does not bar a qualified employee from taking any other leave that the employee would 
otherwise be entitled to take, and an employer may not retaliate against a qualified employee for taking this 
leave.  

A “qualified member” is a person who is a member of the Armed Forces of the United States who 
has been deployed during a period of military conflict to an area designated as a combat theater or combat 
zone by the President of the United States, or a member of the National Guard or Reserves who has been 

Page 96 of 158



deployed during a period of military conflict. The leave must take place during a period in which the qualified 
member is on leave from deployment. The qualified employee must submit written documentation to the 
employer certifying that the qualified member will be on leave from deployment during the time the leave 
provided for is requested. 

Civil Air Patrol Leave 

Employees who are voluntary members of the California Wing of the Civil Air Patrol are qualified 
for up to 10 days leave per year to respond to emergency operational missions. To qualify for this leave, 
the employee must have been employed at least 90 days immediately preceding the beginning of the leave. 
The employee is required to give the Company advance notice (as possible) of intended leave dates. 

Upon expiration of the leave, the employee will be restored to his/her position or a position of 
equivalent seniority, benefits, pay and other terms and conditions of employment, unless the employee is 
not restored due to conditions unrelated to the exercise of the leave rights. 

Crime Victim Leave 

1. Crime Victim Defined 

A crime victim is defined as “Any person "who suffers direct or threatened physical, psychological, 
or financial harm as a result of the commission or attempted commission of a crime or a delinquent act," 
and a victim also includes the person's "spouse, parent, child, sibling or guardian." 

2. Eligibility 

Employees who are victims of a crime can take time off to deal with the issues arising as a result 
of the crime, including time off for medical or psychological treatment, including safety planning.  

3. Permissible Uses of leave  

● Leave for employees who are victims of a violent or serious felony, or a felony involving theft 
or embezzlement, or to attend judicial proceedings related to the crime.  (Also applies if the 
victim is a member of the employee’s immediate family or is the employee’s registered 
domestic partner or partner’s child). 

● Leave for victims of a hate crime 

● Leave for a domestic violence, sexual assault victim and/or stalking victims 

 

4. Notice Requirements  

Employees should notify Altadena Library District of their request for time off for a crime, domestic 
violence, sexual assault and/or stalking occurrence as soon as they are aware of the need for such leave.  
The Company reserves the right to requests documentation certifying the unscheduled absence by a 
licensed medical professional, domestic violence counselor or advocate. Employees seeking such 
accommodation will, at the Company’s request, be required to submit a written statement signed by the 
employee or an individual acting on the employee’s behalf certifying the accommodation is related to the 
employee’s status as a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking.  

 
Legally Required Non-Medical Leaves of Absence 
 

Employees will be granted a leave of absence as required by law for the purpose of fulfilling any 
required legal, military obligation, or emergency rescue training including: 

Page 97 of 158



• Jury duty 

• Appearance as a witness in a legal proceeding 

• School visits for a suspended child 

• Leave for employees who are victims of a violent or serious felony, or a felony involving theft 
or embezzlement, or to attend judicial proceedings related to the crime.  (Also applies if the 
victim is a member of the employee’s immediate family or is the employee’s registered 
domestic partner or partner’s child). 

• Military-reserve duty or National Guard 

• Performance of emergency duty by a volunteer firefighter, reserve peace officers, and 
emergency rescue or health care personnel 

• Volunteer civil service leave 

 

Employees, who are called for jury duty, or any related judicial proceedings, are required to provide 
reasonable advance notice of any need for such leave. Employees are expected to return to work each day 
or portion of the day that they are not selected for jury duty, or related judicial proceedings.   

For non-exempt employees, this leave will be unpaid. For exempt employees, salary during leave 
will be offset by any amounts received as witness fees or as military pay, and no salary will be paid for 
workweeks in which no Company work is performed. 

Family-School Partnership Act 

Employees who are parents, step-parent, foster parent, or person who stands in loco parentis to a 
child, guardians, or grandparents in custody of a child enrolled in a California public or private school 
(kindergarten through twelfth grade) or licensed child day care facility may take off up to forty (40) hours 
each year (up to eight hours in any calendar month) to participate in activities at child's school or day care 
facility.  Additionally, this leave also provides an employee time off from work to (1) find, enroll, or reenroll 
his or her child in a school or with a licensed child care provider (not only licensed child day-care facilities), 
and (2) to address a child care provider or school emergency. Part-time employees are allowed a 
proportionate number of hours of up to twenty (20) hours a year (up to four (4) hours in any calendar month). 

Employees can use vacation, personal leave, or time off without pay (non-exempt) to account for 
the time needed to participate in a school or childcare activity.  Time off without pay is permitted with 
approval by your Manager. 

Employees must inform their Manager at least one (1) week in advance of the intent to take time 
off work to participate in activities at your child's school or childcare facility. If advance notice is not 
reasonably possible, notify your Manager as soon as possible.  Each employee is required to provide written 
proof of having participated at your child's school or childcare facility. 

Employment Status Review 

After all legally required leaves have been exhausted, the Company will review the employee’s 
employment status.  Due to business necessity or other circumstances, there will be times when positions 
cannot be held open and, therefore, the Company does not guarantee reinstatement.  Depending on the 
circumstances of the employee’s need for additional leave and the expected date of return from leave, the 
Company will evaluate the employee’s continued employment in order to operate its business effectively 
and efficiently. 

Page 98 of 158



V. WORKPLACE RULES AND PROCEDURES 

 

Rules of Conduct and Discipline 

1. Policy 

Employees are expected to observe certain standards of job performance and good conduct. When 
performance or conduct does not meet Company standards, Altadena Library District will endeavor when 
it deems appropriate to provide the employee a reasonable opportunity to correct the deficiency. If, 
however, the employee fails to make the correction, they may be subject to discipline including termination. 

The rules set forth below are intended to provide employees with fair notice of what is expected of 
them. Necessarily, however, such rules cannot identify every type of unacceptable conduct and 
performance. Therefore, employees should be aware that conduct not specifically listed below but which 
adversely affects or is otherwise detrimental to the interests of Altadena Library District, other employees 
or customers may also result in disciplinary action. Nothing in these rules is intended to modify the at-will 
nature of your employment with the Company. 

2. Job Performance 

Employees may be disciplined for poor job performance, including but not limited to the following: 

• Unsatisfactory work quality or quantity; 

• Poor attitude (for example, rudeness or lack of cooperation); 

• Excessive absenteeism, tardiness, or abuse of break and lunch privileges; 

• Failure to follow instructions or Company procedures; or  

• Failure to follow established safety regulations. 

3. Misconduct 

Employees may be disciplined for misconduct, including but not limited to the following: 

• Insubordination; 

• Dishonesty; 

• Theft; 

• Discourtesy; 

• Misusing or destroying Company property or the property of another on Company premises; 

• Violating conflict-of-interest rules; 

• Disclosing or using confidential or proprietary information without authorization; 

• Falsifying or altering Company records, including the application for employment; 

• Interfering with the work performance of others; 

• Altercations; 

• Harassing, including sexually harassing, employees or customers; 

Page 99 of 158



• Being under the influence of, manufacturing, dispensing, distributing, using, or possessing 
alcohol or illegal or controlled substances on Company property or while conducting Company 
business; 

• Gambling on Company premises or while conducting Company business; 

• Sleeping on the job or leaving the job without authorization;  

• Possessing a firearm or other dangerous weapon on Company property or while conducting 
Company business; or  

• Being convicted of a crime that indicates unfitness for the job or raises a threat to the safety or 
well-being of Altadena Library District, its employees, customers or property; or 

• Failing to report to Altadena Library District within three days any conviction under any felony 
drug statute. 

 
4. Attendance and Punctuality 

In addition to the general rules stated above, employees may be disciplined for failing to observe 
the following specific requirements relating to attendance: 

• Reporting to work on time, observing the time limits for rest and lunch periods, and obtaining 
approval to leave work early; and 

• Notifying the Manager in advance of anticipated tardiness or absence. 

 
5. Discipline Procedure 

Except as set forth below, discharge for poor performance ordinarily will be preceded by a verbal 
warning and a written warning. 

Altadena Library District reserves the right to proceed directly to a written warning or to termination 
for misconduct or performance deficiency without resorting to prior disciplinary steps when Altadena Library 
District deems such action appropriate. Nothing in these rules is intended to modify the at-will nature of 
your employment with the Company. 

Business and Ethical Code of Conduct 

1. Policy 

Altadena Library District promotes a workforce in which employees conduct themselves and 
perform their duties with one another, business partners and customers, and others with whom they do 
business in a highly professional manner. Altadena Library District employees are the face of the 
organization and, as a result, employee actions directly impact Altadena Library District’s ability to fulfill its 
mission. 
 

2. Intent 

This policy is intended to focus Altadena Library District staff on their duties and responsibilities, 
provide guidance to help them recognize and deal with ethical issues, provide mechanisms to report 
unethical conduct, and to foster a culture of honesty and accountability. 
 

Page 100 of 158



3. Accountability 

Every employee is expected to know and comply with both the letter and the spirit of this policy. 
Provisions contained herein should be read in conjunction with other Altadena Library District policies 
including Conflict of Interest, Rules of Conduct, Confidential Information and Non-Disclosure. 
 

4. Code 

Altadena Library District’s Business and Ethical Code of Conduct require employees to maintain 
the following standards in dealing with staff, business partners, customers and business associates.  

All Altadena Library District employees agree to:  

• Always conduct themselves to the highest levels of ethics, integrity, accountability and 
responsibility. 

• Maintain and act in accordance with Altadena Library District values, as listed in the Employee 
Handbook. 

• Act in Altadena Library District’s best interest in fulfilling its mission and take care to avoid the 
potential or appearance of conflict of interest. A conflict of interest is defined as any 
circumstance that impedes an employee’s ability to act with total objectivity with regard to 
Altadena Library District interest. 

• Comply with all laws and by-laws of the U.S. 

• Exercise honesty and candor in every activity including compliance with the spirit as well as 
the letter of the law. Employees are encouraged to address and resolve issues directly, 
discretely and expeditiously. 

• Preserve and protect confidential information, agreements or materials from unauthorized 
disclosure and use. Protected information includes, but is not limited to, nonpublic information, 
database technologies and associated data including reports, notes, records, electronic 
communications or other materials and communications containing confidential information. 

• Respect all copyrights, agreements, work, intellectual property and trademarks and comply 
with all laws covering such areas. 

• Exercise appropriate care, discretion and integrity in dealing with assets and information of 
Altadena Library District, its customers, vendors and business partners. Maintain the 
confidentiality of information obtained in the course of conducting business. Share confidential 
information on a need-to-know basis only. If required, obtain permission from business partners 
and customers prior to any disclosures. 

• Refrain from offering professional information or advice that you know to be confidential, 
misleading or where the accuracy is beyond your competence to assess. 

• Disclose information to employees and/or business associates as necessary to keep them 
informed of issues or business transactions that may directly impact them. 

• Use discretion in handling personal, business or financial matters, and serve as a good steward 
when handling Altadena Library District and its business associates’ resources. Be honest and 
above reproach in brokering business transactions and promote transparency of decisions. 

• Avoid any action or behavior that would harm or embarrass Altadena Library District or its 
business partners and customers. Maintain organizational and personal integrity by refraining 
from inappropriate behavior on and off of Altadena Library District’s premises. Maintain the 
good reputation of Altadena Library District in general, except that nothing herein shall prevent 
or impede collective action by employee(s) for mutual aid and protection or otherwise impair 
Section 7 Rights under the NLRA.  

• Enhance diversity by supporting an environment that recognizes the value and worth of all 
individuals, treating others with respect and courtesy, and complying with Altadena Library 
District’s zero tolerance policy for acts of harassment, discrimination and/or intimidation. 

• Treat all clients and potential clients with absolute dignity, confidentiality and respect. 

Page 101 of 158



• Represent true levels of status, title, competence and experience in order not to mislead, 
misrepresent or defraud. Make no claims or implications of outcomes that cannot be 
demonstrated or guaranteed. 

• Clearly state to clients and potential clients the terms of any agreement including the 
expectations of both parties. 

• Ensure that all advertisements and promotional materials, whether verbal or written, are legal, 
decent, truthful, honest and in compliance. 

5. Responsibility 

Every employee is responsible for his or her own actions. If you are not sure whether a particular 
action is proper or ethical use the “public disclosure test”, i.e., “If my actions were reported on the front page 
of a major newspaper, would I or my Company be embarrassed by the communications?” If the answer is 
“yes”, the action should probably not be taken. As an Altadena Library District employee, you should always: 
 

• Act in the best interests of Altadena Library District in fulfilling your role and performance 
obligations to the organization. 

 

• Protect the welfare and interests of the Company 

 

• Reflect the role of “honest broker” in dealing with business partners, vendors, customers and 
potential customers. 

 
6. Reporting 

No code or policy can anticipate every situation that might arise. Accordingly, this Code is intended 
to serve as a source of guiding principle for Altadena Library District’s staff. Employees are encouraged to 
bring questions about particular circumstances to the Manager, or the Workplace Reporting Hotline or to 
their Manager for guidance or clarification and report any suspected wrongdoing, fraudulent, dishonest or 
improper conduct. Accordingly, any breach or violation of Altadena Library District’s Business and Ethical 
Code of Conduct should be reported immediately to the above individuals. Altadena Library District will treat 
reports seriously, investigate as required and take appropriate action to maintain a workplace based on 
high standards of conduct. 
 

Conflicts of Interest 

Employees are expected to devote their best efforts and attention to the full-time performance of 
their jobs. They are expected to use good judgment, to adhere to high ethical standards and to avoid 
situations that create an actual or potential conflict between the employee's personal interests and the 
interests of Altadena Library District. A conflict of interest exists when the employee's loyalties or actions 
are divided between Altadena Library District's interests and those of another, such as a competitor, 
supplier or customer. Both the fact and the appearance of a conflict of interest should be avoided. 
Employees unsure if a certain transaction, activity or relationship constitutes a conflict of interest should 
discuss it with their immediate Manager or the Manager for clarification. Any exceptions to this guideline 
must be approved in writing by the Director. 

While it is not feasible to describe all possible conflicts of interest that could develop, some of the 
more common conflicts, from which employees should refrain, include the following: 

• Accepting personal gifts or entertainment from competitors, customers, suppliers or potential 
suppliers in excess of $25 in value; 

• Working for a competitor, supplier or customer; 

Page 102 of 158



• Engaging in self-employment in competition with Altadena Library District; 

• Using proprietary or confidential Company information for personal gain or to Altadena Library 
District's detriment; 

• Having a direct or indirect financial interest in or relationship with a competitor, customer or 
supplier, except that ownership of less than 1 percent (1%) of the publicly traded stock of a 
corporation will not be considered a conflict; 

• Developing a personal relationship with a subordinate employee of Altadena Library District 
that might interfere with the exercise of impartial judgment in decisions affecting Altadena 
Library District or any employees of Altadena Library District. 

• Using Company assets or labor for personal use; 

• Acquiring any interest in property or assets of any kind for the purpose of selling or leasing it 
to Altadena Library District; or 

• Committing Altadena Library District to give its financial or other support to any outside activity 
or organization. 

 
If an employee or someone with whom an employee has a close relationship (a family member or 

close companion) has a financial or employment relationship with a competitor, customer, supplier or 
potential supplier, the employee must disclose this fact in writing to the Manager. Employees should be 
aware that if they enter into a personal relationship with a subordinate employee or with an employee of a 
competitor, supplier or customer, a conflict of interest may exist, which requires full disclosure to Altadena 
Library District. 

Part-time employees may engage in outside employment, provided they disclose such employment 
and get written approval from their immediate Manager.  Failure to adhere to this guideline (including failure 
to disclose any conflicts or to seek an exception) will result in discipline up to and including termination of 
employment. 

Security and Confidential Information 

The security of employees, employee property, and Company property is of vital importance to 
Altadena Library District. All employees share responsibility to ensure that proper security is maintained. 

1. Proprietary and Confidential Information 

Employees must not use or disclose any proprietary or confidential information they obtain during 
employment with Altadena Library District except as required by their jobs. This obligation remains even 
after an employee's employment relationship with Altadena Library District ends. If an employee is in a 
position that gives him or her access to particularly sensitive information, the employee might be required 
to sign a written nondisclosure agreement. In addition, all employees must observe good security practices. 
They are expected to keep proprietary and confidential information secure from outside visitors and all other 
persons who do not have a legitimate reason to see or use such information. 

Company rules regarding document control, restricted access to areas of the facility and other such 
procedures must be strictly observed by each employee. Failure to adhere to Company policies regarding 
proprietary and confidential information will be considered grounds for discipline including dismissal. 

2. Obligations on Termination 

On termination of employment, whether voluntary or involuntary, all Company documents, whether 
in hard copy or electronic format, and other tangible Company property in the employee's possessions or 
control must be returned to Altadena Library District. 

Page 103 of 158



3. Security Regulations 

The Finance Department maintains and disseminates a security-procedures manual, which 
specifically sets out Altadena Library District's rules and regulations for maintaining control of entrances, 
exits, restricted areas, document control and record keeping. Specific regulations regarding the protection 
of Company property, traffic throughout the facilities and designation of restricted areas are issued by the 
Finance Department and posted on Company bulletin boards. Employees are expected to abide by these 
regulations. 

Policy Against Harassment 

Altadena Library District is committed to providing a workplace free of sexual harassment based 
on race, color, creed, religion, gender (including pregnancy, childbirth,  breastfeeding, or related medical 
conditions), national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental disability, medical condition including genetic 
characteristics, or any information based on genetic background, family-care status, military and veteran 
status, citizenship status, immigration status, primary language, marital status, sexual orientation, gender 
identity or gender expression where a person’s gender-related appearance and behavior may not be 
stereotypically associated with the person’s assigned sex at birth, or any other consideration made unlawful 
by federal, state, or local laws. This also includes a perception that anyone has any of those characteristics, 
or is associated with a person who has or is perceived as having any of those characteristics.  Altadena 
Library District strongly disapproves of and will not tolerate harassment of employees, interns, or volunteers 
by managers, Managers or coworkers. Similarly, Altadena Library District will not tolerate harassment by 
its employees of non-employees with whom Altadena Library District employees have a business, service 
or professional relationship. 

Harassment includes verbal, physical, abusive and visual conduct that creates an intimidating, 
offensive or hostile working environment or that interferes with work performance. “Abusive conduct” is 
defined as verbal or physical conduct done with malice and for no legitimate business purpose that a 
reasonable person would find to be hostile, offensive, humiliating, threatening or intimidating. 

 
Such conduct constitutes harassment when (1) submission to the conduct is made either an explicit 

or implicit condition of employment; (2) submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for an 
employment decision; or (3) the harassment is carried out to sabotage, undermine, or interfere with an 
employee's work performance or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment.  Sexually 
harassing conduct includes unwelcome conduct such as requests for sexual favors, conversation 
containing sexual comments and unwelcome sexual advances.  

Sexually harassing conduct need not be motivated by sexual desire. Behavior is considered 
harassing conduct if motivated by:  

a) Showing sexual intent or desire on the harasser’s part towards the victim;  

b) Showing general hostility by the harasser towards a particular sex of which the victim is a 
member; or  

c) Through comparative evidence about how the alleged harassment treated members of 
both sexes in a mixed-sex workplace. 

 
Any incident of harassment, including work-related harassment by any Company personnel or any 

other person, should be reported promptly to the employee's Manager or manager (or to any other member 
of management) or to the Manager, who is responsible for investigating the matter. Managers who receive 
complaints or who observe harassing conduct should inform the Manager immediately. Altadena Library 
District emphasizes that an employee is not required to complain first to their Manager if that Manager is 
the individual who is harassing the employee. 

Page 104 of 158



All members of management and supervision must report any complaints of misconduct to a 
designated company representative who is the Human Resources Department or the Executive Director, 
so the Company can investigate the issue immediately. 
 

Every reported complaint of harassment will be investigated thoroughly, promptly and in a 
confidential manner. In addition, Altadena Library District will not tolerate retaliation against any employee 
for cooperating in an investigation or for making a complaint to the Manager or any other manager. 

 
In the case of Company employees, if harassment is established, Altadena Library District will 

discipline the offender. Disciplinary action for a violation of this policy can range from verbal or written 
warnings up to and including immediate termination depending upon the circumstances. With regard to acts 
of harassment by customers or vendors, corrective action will be taken after consultation with the 
appropriate management personnel. 

The question of whether conduct is purely personal or is discriminatory in nature is one of fact.  
False accusations of harassment can have serious consequences for those who are wrongly accused.  All 
employees are expected to act responsibly in helping the Company maintain a workplace that is free of 
discrimination and abuse. 

While we hope that all employees will seek the assistance and find resolution through our own 
internal complaint procedure, be aware that the Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) is 
the State agency that resolves complaints of unlawful discrimination, including sexual harassment. If you 
feel you have been subjected to harassment you may contact the DFEH, consult the local telephone 
directory under State Government Offices. 

 

Policy Against Retaliation and Whistleblower Protection 

In accordance with applicable law, Altadena Library District prohibits retaliation against any 
employee, or employed family member, because of the employee’s or employee’s family member complaint 
of or opposition to a practice the employee reasonably believes to constitute unlawful business practices 
of any nature or because of the employee’s participation in an employment investigation, proceeding or 
hearing.  Any retaliatory adverse action because of such opposition or participation is unlawful and will not 
be tolerated.  This policy also applies to contractors and agents of the Company. 

Protection against whistleblowers also includes: 

• Reporting or alleging a violation of a local/agency/state/federal rule or regulation 

• Prohibition of retaliation against employees who report a violation to their employer 

• An employee who discloses, or may disclose, information regarding alleged violations "to a 
person with authority over the employee or another employee who has authority to investigate, 
discover or correct the violation" 
 

• An employee who opposes any of the forbidden employment practices or who has filed a 
complaint, testified, or assisted in connection with a complaint under that law, including request 
for reasonable or religious accommodation. 

 

• Any employees who disclose, discuss, or inquire about their own or their co-workers’ wages 
for the purpose of enforcing their rights. 

• Prohibition of retaliation against an employee because the employer "believes the employee 
disclosed or may disclose information" 

 
 

Page 105 of 158



This policy includes protection for employees, contractors and agents who:  

o Disclose the information/make the complaint as part of their job duties; 

o Report violations of local laws; and 

o Provide information to public bodies.  

A complaint about an employment practice constitutes protected opposition only if the employee 
communicates a reasonable good faith belief that the practice opposed constitutes an unlawful business 
practice.  Opposition in a manner which disrupts the workplace, or which constitutes an unlawful activity, or 
engaging in badgering or threatening of employees or Managers is not protected. 

 As an employee, you have a right to redress for prohibited retaliation.  In order to secure this right, 
provide a complaint, preferably in writing to your Manager or Human Resources as soon as possible after 
any incident you feel is prohibited retaliation.  Human Resources will initiate an investigation of the 
allegations.  This investigation will be completed and a determination regarding the retaliation alleged will 
be made and communicated to you as soon as practical.  Because of the seriousness of a complaint of 
unlawful retaliation, knowingly submitting or participating in a false, deceptive or bad faith complaint will not 
be tolerated and may lead to disciplinary action up to and including discharge. 

If Human Resources determines that prohibited retaliation has occurred, the Company will take 
remedial action commensurate with the severity of the offense.  Action will also be taken to deter any future 
retaliation.  Whatever action is taken will be made known to you. 

The Company encourages all employees to report any incidents of retaliation forbidden by this 
policy immediately so that complaints can be quickly and fairly resolved. 

Dress Standard 

It is the policy of Altadena Library District that each employee’s dress, grooming, and personal 
hygiene be appropriate to the work environment.  Employees are expected at all times to present a 
professional image to customers, prospects, and the public.  All employees are expected to wear 
appropriate, business casual, work attire.  Employees should not wear suggestive attire, ripped and worn 
looking jeans, athletic clothing, shorts, flip-flops, and similar items of casual attire that do not present a 
business-like appearance.  Hair should be clean. Certain employees may be required to meet special dress, 
grooming, and hygiene standards, such as wearing uniforms, depending on the nature of their job.  

The Company will make reasonable accommodations for employees who have specific religious 
dress practices and religious grooming practices, unless it is determined that the accommodation has an 
undue hardship on the Company. 

Any employee who does not meet the standards of this policy will be required to take corrective 
action, which may include leaving the premises. Non-exempt employees will not be compensated for any 
work time missed because of failure to comply with this policy. Violations of this policy also will result in 
disciplinary action. 

Company Tools and Equipment 

From time to time the Company will furnish tools and equipment to complete job assignments. All 
tools and equipment purchased by the Company are the property of Altadena Library District and represent 
a very valuable asset of the Company. It is the responsibility of the employee to whom tools and equipment 
are assigned to maintain and safeguard these assets as if they were your own personal property. When 
leaving a work area, it is required that all tools be placed back in designated storage areas or removed from 
the work area and secured in locked storage where available. 

Page 106 of 158



An inventory of tools and equipment will be made periodically. If it is determined by the Company that 
an employee is grossly negligent in the proper storage of tools, materials, or supplies or they are misplaced 
or stolen  due to the employee’s dishonesty, willfulness or act of gross negligence, the employee will be 
asked to replace the same tools, materials, or supplies at fair market value or will be asked to sign a Payroll 
Deduction Authorization authorizing the Company to deduct the fair market value of the missing or 
damaged tools, materials, or supplies.  If the employee unreasonably fails or refuses to replace or pay for 
the missing or damaged property or authorize a payroll deduction, the employee may be subject to 
disciplinary action up to and including termination and may be subject to a civil suit for recovery of the 
Company’s property.   

Cell Phone Use 

Altadena Library District may issue cell phones to certain employees in order to stay in contact with 
clients and co-workers while out in the field or out of the office.  The Company encourages its employees 
to remember safety when using their cellular phones for business purposes.  For the safety of themselves 
and others, Altadena Library District employees who are issued a cell phone or use a personal phone for 
business use are prohibited from using their phone while driving, including reading, writing or sending a 
text message.  If your job requires that you keep your cell phone turned on while you are driving, you must 
use a mounted hands-free device that can be activated or deactivated with a single swipe or tap, and 
are encouraged to safely pull off the road before conducting Company business.  Employees who are 
charged with traffic violations resulting from the use of their phone while driving will be solely responsible 
for any liability resulting from such action. Company issued cell phones are Company property. Employees 
should have no expectation of privacy either with Company issued cell phones or with respect to use or 
content of personal cell phones used for Company business. 

Employees who have personal cellular phones must refrain from excessive personal phone calls 
or texting while at work. Excessive personal phone calls interfere with productivity and can be distracting 
to others. Employees are therefore encouraged to use cellular phones for personal use only during break 
times, meal periods, or in emergency situations. 

Personnel Records 

The information in the employee's personnel file is confidential, and must be kept up-to-date. The 
employee should inform the Finance Department immediately whenever there are changes in personal 
data such as address, telephone number, marital status, number of dependents, and person(s) to notify in 
case of emergency. The employee is also responsible for maintaining a current group life-insurance 
beneficiary designation. 

 
Current or former employees, or an authorized representative, have the right to request inspection 

of their personnel file and payroll records at reasonable times at a reasonable place and on reasonable 
notice. Upon written notice, the Company will provide a copy of the personnel file to the current or former 
employee within 30 calendar days of receipt of the written request. Requests for payroll record copies will 
be provided within 21 days of the request. If the employee makes a verbal request to his/her Manager or 
the person designated by the Company for such requests, the Company will provide a form to the employee 
to submit a written request. 

 
Additionally, current employees are prohibited from conducting the inspection of their personnel file 

and/or payroll records while on the clock (note - does not apply if requester is employee’s authorized 
representative).  Former employees are limited to one request per year to inspect/copy their personnel file 
and/or payroll records. The Company requires reimbursement for actual copy costs.   
 

Personnel files and payroll records of current employees are available for inspection at his/her work 
location or another location that is agreed upon by both the employee and Company.  If the inspection 
occurs at another location, the employee will be paid for the travel time to and from that location, however 
the actual review time is unpaid.  

Page 107 of 158



 
Personnel files and/or payroll records of former employees are available at the location where the 

Company stores the records, unless the former employee and the Company mutually agree in writing to a 
different location. Alternatively, the former employee may receive a copy by mail if the employee reimburses 
the cost of actual postal expenses. If the former employee seeking to inspect his or her personnel files 
and/or payroll records was terminated for violating a law or for violating a Company policy prohibiting 
harassment or workplace violence, the Company may choose to make the records available for inspection 
at an alternate location that is a reasonable distance from the individual’s residence or mail a copy of the 
records. 

 
Personnel files and payroll records are the property of Altadena Library District and may not be 

removed from Altadena Library District's premises.  

 
Solicitation, Distribution and Bulletin Boards 

 
 Employees may engage in solicitation on Company premises only during their nonworking time. 
Nonworking time means time during meals or breaks and before or after work. 
 

Employees may distribute or circulate non-Company written materials only during nonworking time 
and only in non-work areas. If an employee is not certain whether an area is a work or non-work area, they 
should consult their immediate Manager for clarification. 

Solicitation or distribution in any way connected with the sale of any goods or services for profit is 
strictly prohibited anywhere on Company property at any time. Similarly, solicitation or distribution of 
literature for any purpose by non-employees is strictly prohibited on Altadena Library District's property at 
any time.  

Company bulletin boards have been placed in several locations to inform employees of special 
Company activities, and changes in administration, personnel or benefit programs.  Employees are 
responsible for reading and understanding any information that is posted or distributed on the bulletin board.  
Official notices and communications are displayed on these boards and no material may be posted without 
management approval. 

The Company follows the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) requirements to post information 
related to wages, hours and working conditions where it may be easily read during the workday. Employees 
can find these postings and applicable wage orders the hallway. The California wage order covers topics 
related to employee’s pay and working conditions, including, administrative, executive and professional 
exemptions; overtime wages; alternative workweeks; minimum wages; reporting time pay; records 
retention; cash shortage and breakage; uniforms and equipment; meals and lodging; meal periods; and 
rest periods. 

Weapons 

It is the intent of the Company to provide a safe and secure workplace for employees, clients, 
clients’ customers, visitors and others with whom we do business.  Altadena Library District expressly 
forbids the possession of firearms on Company property.  Altadena Library District has a “zero tolerance” 
policy for possession of any type of weapon, firearm, explosive, or ammunition. WM property includes, but 
is not limited to, all Company facilities, vehicles, and equipment, whether leased or owned by Altadena 
Library District or its client. In addition, firearms in employee-owned vehicles parked on Company property 
are strictly forbidden. 
 

The possession of firearms on Company property may be cause for discipline including immediate 
termination of employment. In enforcing this guideline, the Company reserves the right to request 
inspections of any employee and their personal effects, including personal vehicles while on Company 

Page 108 of 158



premises.  Any employee who refuses to allow inspection will be subject to the same disciplinary action as 
being found in possession of firearms. 
 

Employees within the Company share the responsibility of identifying violators of this guideline.  An 
employee who witnesses or suspects another individual of violating this guideline should immediately report 
this information to his/her supervisor. 

Visitors – Administrative Areas 

It takes the efforts of everyone working together, including visitors, to make Altadena Library District 
a safe and healthy workplace.  To ensure the safety of everyone, all visitors within the Administrative areas 
must be accompanied by a Altadena Library District escort at all times.  It is the escort’s responsibility to 
ensure that the visitor follows the rules of conduct expected of Altadena Library District’s employees in 
addition to: 

• Following all verbal instructions and signs.   

• Refraining from touching or attempting to operate any machines, device or equipment unless 
told to do so.   

• Visitors must not talk to or distract workers operating machines, devices or equipment or 
engaging in safety-related functions like traffic control.   

• Visitors must not engage in any pranks, horseplay, contests, feats of strength, running or rough 
and boisterous conduct. 

• All visitors must stay out of restricted areas. 

• Report all injuries or problems immediately, no matter how minor. 

• Visitors who fail to follow these policies will have their visiting privileges revoked and be asked 
to leave. The Company shall not be responsible for injuries visitors suffer as a result of violating 
these rules. 

Personal Property 

Altadena Library District is not responsible for the loss, damage, or theft of personal belongings, 
and employees are advised not to carry unnecessary amounts of cash or other valuables with them when 
they come to work. For their own convenience, employees may bring personal property to the workplace. 
However, Altadena Library District does not assume and specifically disclaims responsibility for any 
personal property located on its premises, or which accompanies or is carried, worn, or otherwise used by 
employees during the course of their work for the Company. Employees who choose to bring personal 
property with them to work do so at their own discretion, and at their own risk. 

Off Duty Use of Facilities 

Employees are prohibited from remaining on Altadena Library District premises or making use of 
Company facilities while not on duty. Employees are expressly prohibited from using Company facilities, 
Company property, or Company equipment for personal use. 

Housekeeping 

All employees are expected to keep their work areas clean and organized. People using common 
areas such as lunch rooms and restrooms are expected to keep them sanitary. Please clean up after meals 
and dispose of trash properly. 

Page 109 of 158



VI. TECHNOLOGY USE AND PRIVACY 

 

Technology Use and Privacy Policy 

Altadena Library District provides various Technology Resources to authorized employees to assist 
them in performing their job duties for Altadena Library District. Each employee has a responsibility to use 
Altadena Library District's Technology Resources in a manner that increases productivity, enhances 
Altadena Library District's public image and is respectful of other employees. Failure to follow Altadena 
Library District's policies regarding its Technology Resources may lead to disciplinary measures up to and 
including termination of employment.  Moreover, Altadena Library District reserves the right to advise 
appropriate legal authorities of any violation of law by an employee. 

1. Technology-Resources Definition 

Technology Resources consist of all electronic devices, software and means of electronic 
communication including, but not limited to the following: personal computers and workstations; laptop 
computers; mini and mainframe computers; computer hardware such as disk drives and tape drives; 
peripheral equipment such as printers, modems, fax machines and copiers; computer software applications 
and associated files and data, including software that grants access to external services such as the 
Internet; electronic mail; telephones; cellular phones; pagers; and voice mail systems. 

2. Authorization 

Access to Altadena Library District's Technology Resources is within the sole discretion of Altadena 
Library District. Generally, employees are given access to Altadena Library District's various technologies 
based on their job functions. Only employees whose job performance will benefit from the use of Altadena 
Library District's Technology Resources will be given access to the necessary technology. Additionally, 
employees must successfully complete Company-approved training before being given access to Altadena 
Library District's Technology Resources. Exceeding authorized access may subject the employee to liability 
(e.g. per the Computer Fraud and Abuse Act – CFAA). 

3. Use 

Altadena Library District's Technology Resources are to be used by employees only for the purpose 
of conducting Company business. Employees may, however, use Altadena Library District's Technology 
Resources for the following incidental personal uses so long as such use does not interfere with the 
employee's duties, is not done for personal or financial gain, does not conflict with Altadena Library District's 
business and does not violate any Company policy: 

• To send and receive necessary and occasional personal communications; 

• To prepare and store incidental personal data (such as personal calendars, personal address 
lists and similar incidental personal data) in a reasonable manner; 

• To use the telephone system for brief and necessary personal calls; and 

• To access the Internet for brief personal searches and inquiries during meal times or other 
breaks or outside of work hours provided that employees adhere to all other usage policies. 

Altadena Library District assumes no liability for loss, damage, destruction, alteration, disclosure or 
misuse of any personal data or communications transmitted over or stored on Altadena Library District's 
Technology Resources. Altadena Library District accepts no responsibility or liability for the loss or 
nondelivery of any personal electronic mail or voice mail communications or any personal data stored on 
any Company property. Altadena Library District strongly discourages employees from storing any personal 

Page 110 of 158



data on any of Altadena Library District's Technology Resources. Employees who store personal 
information on Company media should have no expectation of privacy. 

4. Technology Use & Section 7 Protected Communications 

While the Company’s technology resources are for the purposes of conducting business 
communications, nothing in this policy shall prevent or impede collective action by employee(s) for mutual 
aid and protection or otherwise impair Section 7 Rights under the NLRA. 
 

5. Use of Personal Devices for Business 

If an employee is using a personal electronic device for business, use must be pre-approved and 
authorized by the Manager. The employee’s personal device must be registered which includes verification 
of the quality of (and updating) the security software on the devices, and regular backup of company 
information on personal devices to company systems. Employees using personal devices for business 
should have no expectation of privacy with respect to information on the devices, including an 
understanding that the company has the right to inspect and transfer or delete data on the personal 
device(s) both during employment and at termination. If this policy is violated, the company may shut down 
the employee’s access to its data on its personal device and may suspend authorization for the employee’s 
use of a personal device(s) for business purposes. For those employees who do not need to use personal 
devices for business purposes will not be authorized to access company data or information. 

 

Employees who are authorized to use a personal device for business will be indemnified for costs 
incurred by the employee for the percentage of use of the personal device attributed to business.  A 
reimbursement plan and percentage must be pre-arranged and approved prior to any costs incurred. 

 

Non-exempt employees may not use personal devices for business purposes outside of regular 
working hours without pre-authorization. Failure for non-exempt employees to follow this policy may result 
in suspending access or utilizing the work-related data.  
 

6. Improper Use 

a) Prohibition against Harassing, Discriminatory and Defamatory Use 

Altadena Library District is aware that employees use electronic mail for correspondence that is 
less formal than written memoranda. Employees must take care, however, not to let informality degenerate 
into improper use. As set forth more fully in Altadena Library District's Policy Against Harassment, Altadena 
Library District does not tolerate discrimination or harassment based on race, color, creed, religion, gender 
(including pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, or related medical conditions), national origin, ancestry, 
age, physical or mental disability, medical condition including genetic characteristics, or any information 
based on genetic background, family-care status, military and veteran status, citizenship status, 
immigration status, primary language, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity or gender 
expression where a person’s gender-related appearance and behavior may not be stereotypically 
associated with the person’s assigned sex at birth, or any other consideration made unlawful by federal, 
state, or local laws This also includes a perception that anyone has any of those characteristics, or is 
associated with a person who has or is perceived as having any of those characteristics.  Under no 
circumstances may an employee use Altadena Library District's Technology Resources to transmit, receive 
or store any information that is discriminatory, harassing or defamatory in any way (for example: sexually-
explicit or racial messages, jokes or cartoons). 

Additionally, any employee whose job is to repair, install, or otherwise service the Company’s 
technology resources, who has knowledge of or reasonably suspects child abuse or neglect based on 
pictures, graphics, or images that have been intentionally saved, transmitted, or organized on an electronic 
medium, are required to report their findings.  Reported concerns should be forwarded to the Manager. 

Page 111 of 158



b) Prohibition against Violating Intellectual Property Laws  

Employees must not use Altadena Library District's Technology Resources to copy, retrieve, 
forward or send intellectual property unless the employee has the author's permission or is accessing a 
single copy only for the employee's reference for business purposes.  

c) Other Prohibited Uses 

Employees may not use any of Altadena Library District's Technology Resources for any illegal 
purpose, violation of any Company policy, in a manner contrary to the best interests of Altadena Library 
District, in any way that discloses confidential or proprietary information of Altadena Library District or third 
parties, or for personal or financial gain. 

Access to Technology Resources 

All messages sent and received, including personal messages, and all data and information stored 
on Altadena Library District's electronic-mail system, voice mail system, or computer systems are Company 
property regardless of the content. As such, Altadena Library District reserves the right to access all of its 
Technology Resources including its computers, voice mail, and electronic-mail systems at any time in its 
sole discretion without prior notice. 

1. Privacy 

Although Altadena Library District does not generally wish to examine personal information of its 
employees, on occasion Altadena Library District may need to access its Technology Resources including 
computer files, electronic-mail messages, and voice mail messages. Employees should understand, 
therefore, that they have no right of privacy with respect to any messages or information created or 
maintained on Altadena Library District's Technology Resources, including personal information or 
messages. Altadena Library District may at its discretion inspect all files or messages on its Technology 
Resources at any time for any reason. Altadena Library District may also monitor its Technology Resources 
at any time in order to determine compliance with its policies, for purposes of legal proceedings, to 
investigate misconduct, to locate information or for any other business purpose. 

All voicemail, email and text messages composed, sent or received through the Company’s computer 

network, e-mail system, or on a company provided cell phone is the property of Altadena Library District. These 

communications do not belong to the employee. Employee explicitly gives employer the right to intercept, access, 
view, monitor and use all such communications, whether relating to Company business or employee's personal 
matters. Company provided technology (including internet, email, and cell phone services provided by Company 
to employee) shall only be used to conduct business of the Company, unless employee has received expressed 

consent from his/her Manager to access his or her personal e-mail account, and personal communications. Even 

if the employee has consent to use technology resources for personal use, any personal communications while 
on Company time should be kept to a minimum, and limited where possible to breaks and non-work time. 

 
2. Passwords 

Certain areas of Altadena Library District's Technology Resources can be accessed only by 
entering a password. Passwords are intended to prevent unauthorized access to information. Passwords 
do not confer any right of privacy upon any employee of Altadena Library District. Thus, even though 
employees may maintain passwords for accessing Technology Resources, employees must not expect that 
any information maintained on Technology Resources, including Company electronic mail and voice mail 
messages, are private. Employees are expected to maintain their passwords as confidential. Employees 
must not share passwords and must not access coworkers' systems without express authorization. 

Page 112 of 158



3. Data Collection 

The best way to guarantee the privacy of personal information is not to store or transmit it on 
Altadena Library District's Technology Resources. To ensure that employees understand the extent to 
which information is collected and stored, below are examples of information currently maintained by 
Altadena Library District. Altadena Library District may, however, in its sole discretion and at any time alter 
the amount and type of information that it retains. 

Telephone Use and Voicemail: Records are kept of all calls made from and to a given telephone 
extension. Although voicemail is password protected, an authorized administrator can reset the 
password and listen to voice mail messages. 

Electronic Mail: Electronic mail is backed up and archived. Although electronic mail is password 
protected, an authorized administrator can reset the password and read electronic mail. 

Desktop Facsimile Use: Copies of all facsimile transmissions sent and received are maintained in 
the facsimile server. 

Document Use: Each document stored on Company computers has a history, which shows which 
users have accessed the document for any purpose. 

Internet Use: Internet sites visited, the number of times visited and the total time connected to each 
site is recorded and periodically monitored. 

 

4. Deleted Information 

Deleting or erasing information, documents or messages maintained on Altadena Library District's 
Technology Resources is in most cases ineffective. All employees should understand that any information 
kept on Altadena Library District's Technology Resources may be electronically recalled or recreated 
regardless of whether it may have been deleted or erased by an employee. Because Altadena Library 
District periodically backs up all files and messages, and because of the way in which computers reuse file 
storage space, files and messages may exist that are thought to have been deleted or erased. Therefore, 
employees who delete or erase information or messages should not assume that such information or 
messages are confidential. 

5. The Internet and Online Services  

Altadena Library District provides authorized employees access to online services such as the 
Internet. Altadena Library District expects that employees will use these services in a responsible way and 
for business-related purposes only. Under no circumstances are employees permitted to use Altadena 
Library District's Technology Resources to access, download or contribute to the following: 

• Gross, indecent, or sexually-oriented materials; 

• Sports sites; 

• Job-search sites; 

• Entertainment sites; 

• Gambling sites; 

• Games, humor; 

• Illegal drug-oriented sites;  

• Music and /or video files/sites; 

• Personal pages of individuals; and 

• Politically oriented sites or sites devoted to influencing the course of legislation or public policy. 
 

Additionally, employees must not sign guest books on Web sites or post messages to Internet news 
groups or discussion groups on websites using Company media. These actions will generate junk electronic 

Page 113 of 158



mail and might expose Altadena Library District to liability or unwanted attention because of comments that 
employees may make. Altadena Library District strongly encourages employees who wish to access the 
Internet for non-work-related activities to get their own personal Internet access accounts. 

6. Confidentiality 

Some of the information to which Altadena Library District has access is confidential. Employees 
should avoid sending confidential information over the Internet or outside the Company’s business systems. 
Employees also should verify electronic-mail addresses before transmitting any messages. 

7. Monitoring 

Altadena Library District monitors both the amount of time spent using online services and the sites 
visited by individual employees. Altadena Library District reserves the right to limit such access by any 
means available to it, including revoking access altogether. 

8. Software Use 

a) License Restrictions 

All software in use on Altadena Library District's Technology Resources is officially licensed 
software. No software is to be installed or used that has not been duly paid for and licensed appropriately 
for the use to which it is being put. No employee may load any software on Altadena Library District's 
computers by any means of transmission unless authorized in advance. Authorization for loading software 
onto Altadena Library District's computers should not be given until the software to be loaded has been 
thoroughly scanned for viruses. 

b) Software for Home Use 

Altadena Library District endeavors to license its software so that it may be used on portable 
computers and home computers in addition to office computers. Before transferring or copying any software 
from a Company Technology Resource to another computer, employees must request permission and 
receive written authorization from the Manager. 

9. Confidential Information 

Altadena Library District is very sensitive to the issue of protection of trade secrets and other 
confidential and proprietary information of both Altadena Library District and third parties (Confidential 
Information). Therefore, employees are expected to use good judgment and to adhere to the highest ethical 
standards when using or transmitting Confidential Information on Altadena Library District's Technology 
Resources. 

Confidential Information should not be accessed through Altadena Library District's Technology 
Resources in the presence of unauthorized individuals nor should it be forwarded to any person or location 
outside the company. Similarly, Confidential Information should not be left visible or unattended. Moreover, 
any Confidential Information transmitted via Technology Resources should be marked with the following 
legend: "This message contains confidential information. Unless you are the addressee (or authorized to 
receive for the addressee), you may not copy, use or distribute this information. If you have received this 
message in error, please call (626) 798.0833 or return it promptly by mail." 

10.  Security 

Altadena Library District has installed a variety of programs and devices to ensure the safety and 
security of Altadena Library District's Technology Resources. Any employee found tampering or disabling 
any of Altadena Library District's security devices will be subject to discipline up to and including termination. 

Page 114 of 158



11.  Audits 

Altadena Library District may perform auditing activity or monitoring to determine compliance with 
these policies. Audits of software and data stored on Altadena Library District's Technology Resources may 
be conducted without warning at any time. 
 

Social Media Policy 

The Social Media Policy covers all publicly accessible communications via the Internet relating to 
Altadena Library District. This includes, but is not limited to: blogs, on-line social networks, discussion 
forums, newsgroups, and e-mail distribution lists.  

 
The Company will not request employees or job applicants to provide user names, email address 

or passwords for personal social media accounts, in combination with a password or security question and 
answer that would permit access to an online account, or divulge personal social media information, except 
as it relates to an investigation of suspected misconduct by the employee; however; employees are required 
to disclose a username, password, or other security setting needed to access an electronic device when 
that device has been provided by the Company.  

 
 

1. Overview 
 
If you choose to identify yourself as an Altadena Library District employee or to discuss matters 

related to our technology or business on your website or weblog, please bear in mind that, although you 
may view your website or weblog as a personal project and a medium of personal expression, some readers 
may nonetheless misunderstand you to be a de facto spokesperson for the Company.   
 

As part of our Open-Door Policy, employees may first express any concerns to their Manager, 
Human Resources, or any other member of management.  Employees may also utilize the Workplace 
Reporting Hotline. 

 
2. Policy Standards 

 
1. Public communications concerning the Company must not violate any guidelines set forth in 

the employee handbook, whether or not you specifically mention your employee status.  
 
2. You should clearly identify that you are not an agent of the Company and the opinions 

expressed here are the personal opinions of [your name]. Content published here is not read 
or approved by Altadena Library District before it is posted and does not represent the views 
and opinions of Altadena Library District.”  

 
3. You may not communicate any material that violates the privacy trade secrets or publicity rights 

of another. 
 
4. You may not personally harass or attack fellow employees, authors, customers, vendors, or 

shareholders. Further detail on prohibited conduct is provided in the Policy Against Harassment 
and Prohibition against Harassing, Discriminatory and Defamatory Use of Technology sections 
of your Employee Handbook for more information.  

 
5. You may not disclose any sensitive, proprietary, confidential, or financial information about the 

Company, its employees, or its customers. This includes revenues, profits, forecasts, and other 
financial information, any information related to specific authors, brands, products, product 
lines, customers, operating units, etc. You may not disclose any information about any specific 
customer. Further detail is provided in the Security and Confidentiality Information and Conflicts 
of Interest sections of your Employee Handbook.  

Page 115 of 158



 
6. DO respect the laws regarding copyrights, trademarks, rights of publicity and other third-party 

rights. To minimize the risk of a copyright violation, you should provide references to the 
source(s) of information you use and accurately cite copyrighted works you identify in your 
online communications. Do not infringe on Altadena Library District’s logos, brand names, 
taglines, slogans, or other trademarks. 

 
7. You may not post any material that is obscene, defamatory, profane, libelous, threatening, 

harassing, abusive, hateful or embarrassing to another person or any other person or entity.  

 
8. DO NOT make comments or otherwise communicate about customers, coworkers, Managers, 

the Company, or Altadena Library District vendors or suppliers in a manner that is vulgar, 
obscene, threatening, intimidating, harassing, libelous, or discriminatory on the basis of age 
race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expressions, genetic information, 
disability, national origin, ethnicity, citizenship, immigration status, primary language, marital 
status, or any other legally recognized protected basis under federal, state or local laws, 
regulations or ordinance.  
 

 Prior to taking adverse action against an employee under the Social Media Policy, the Company 
will conduct a prompt and thorough investigation of an employee’s posting or communication, including 
objective and thorough documentation.  
 

Nothing in the policy is designed to interfere with, restrain, or prevent employee communications 
regarding wages, hours, or other terms and conditions of employment, nor meant to prevent concerted 
communications for mutual aid and protection in which employees have the right to engage. Additionally, 
nothing in this policy should be construed or applied to prohibit employees’ rights under the National Labor 
Relations Act nor is anything herein meant to chill employee’s Section 7 rights. 
 

Electronic Recording Policy 

It is the policy of Altadena Library District to prohibit the recording of conversations by employees. 
In addition to protecting privacy rights and proprietary information, Altadena Library District’s policy is to 
maintain open communication between management, employees and co-workers. Employee recording of 
conversations can significantly interfere with channels of communication. 
 

For purposes of this policy “Electronic Device” means a privately owned wireless and/or portable 
electronic handheld piece of equipment that includes, but is not limited to, existing and emerging mobile 
communication systems and smart technologies (cell phones, smart phones, walkie-talkies, pagers, etc.), 
portable internet devices (mobile managers, mobile messengers, BlackBerry ™ handset, etc.), Personal 
Digital Assistants (PDAs), (Palm organizers, pocket PCs, etc.), handheld entertainment systems (video 
games, CD players, compact DVD players, MP3 players, iPods ©, Walkman ™ devices, etc.), and any other 
convergent communication technologies that do any number of the previously mentioned functions. 
“Electronic Device” also includes any current or emerging wireless handheld technologies or portable 
information technology systems that can be used for word processing, wireless Internet access, image 
capture/recording, sound recording and information transmitting/receiving/storing, etc.  
 

California requires the consent of all parties to the communication to lawfully intercept 
communication. Employees shall not electronically record by audio, video, or other means, any 
conversations or meetings unless each and every person present has been notified and consents to being 
electronically recorded. Persons wishing to record a meeting must obtain consent from anyone arriving late 
to any such meeting. Employees shall not electronically record telephone conversations unless all persons 
participating in the telephone conversation have consented to be electronically recorded 
 

Electronic devices shall not be used in a way that threatens, humiliates, harasses, or intimidates 
individuals, including employees, customers, vendors, and visitors, or violates local, state, or federal law. 

Page 116 of 158



 
Any employee who violates this policy will be subject to discipline, up to and including termination.  

Additionally, secret recordings are considered unlawful in California and employees may face fines and 
penalties if prosecuted.  
 

Monitoring and Video Surveillance 

 Due to the nature of work conducted by Altadena Library District, it is necessary to monitor aspects 
of employees' jobs, specifically telephones, computer terminals, electronic and voice mail, and employees’ 
use of the Internet.  

The use of monitoring serves the following purposes:  

1. To ensure the safety of employees and the entire facility,  
2. To investigate possible misconduct, criminal activity or breaches of security,  
3. To ensure compliance with Company policies,  
4. To monitor or document employees' work,  
5. To investigate and respond to internal complaints, charges or governmental investigations,  
6. To investigate, prosecute or defend threatened or actual lawsuits, or  
7. Any other legitimate business reasons.  

 This policy serves as notification to employees that monitoring will be conducted during the course 
of their employment. Monitoring at Altadena Library District is conducted within the guidelines of the law 
and employees should not have any reasonable expectation of privacy with regard to use of the Company’s 
property and systems, specifically telephones, computer terminals, electronic and voice mail, and 
employees’ use of the Internet. 

 Video surveillance is also conducted as part of Altadena Library District’s standard operations. 
Surveillance cameras are located throughout the facility. The video surveillance system consists of cameras 
placed in both outdoor and indoor locations, where Executive Management/Security Management/Facilities 
Management can monitor employee activity as it takes place.  These cameras may include features like 
pan, tilt, and zoom. No cameras have been placed in area where employees have the right to expect 
privacy, such as bathrooms and changing areas.  

The Company will not conduct any video recording of employees without the employee’s 
knowledge and consent, including any video, digital and/or audio recordings, images or photographs 
authorized by the Company at its offices or facilities. 

HIPAA Statement of Privacy Laws 
 

It is the legal and ethical responsibility of all management and staff employees of Altadena Library 
District to use, protect, and preserve personal and confidential employee and business information, 
including medical information (referred to herein collectively as “confidential information”), in accordance 
with state and federal laws and Company policy.  
 

Laws controlling the privacy of, access to, and maintenance of confidential information include, but 
are not limited to, the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), the 
California Information Practices Act (IPA), the California Confidentiality of Medical Information Act (CMIA), 
and the Lanterman-Petris-Short Act (LPS). These and other laws apply whether the information is held in 
electronic or any other format, and whether the information is used or disclosed orally, in writing or 
electronically.  
 

Business and employee information includes information that identifies or describes an individual, 
the disclosure of which would constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy. Examples of 

Page 117 of 158



confidential employee and business information include home address and telephone number; medical 
information; birth date; citizenship; social security number; spouse/partner/relative’s names; income tax 
withholding data; performance evaluations; proprietary/trade secret information; and peer review/risk 
management information and activities.  
 

Medical information includes the following (no matter where it is stored and no matter the format): 
medical and psychiatric records, photos, videotapes, diagnostic and therapeutic reports, x-rays, scans, 
laboratory and pathology samples, patient business records, such as bills for service or insurance 
information, visual observation of patients receiving medical care or accessing services, and verbal 
information provided by or about a patient. Medical information, including Protected Health Information 
(PHI), is maintained to serve the patient, health care providers, health care research and to conform to 
regulatory requirements.  
 

The HIPAA privacy law sets limits on how health providers and plans may use individually 
identifiable health information. Under the HIPAA law, health providers and plans may only use individual 
health information for necessary treatment, payment, or healthcare operations without obtaining the 
employee’s permission. PHI may generally not be used for purposes “not related” to health care. The 
release of PHI must be limited to the minimum necessary designated for the purpose of the disclosure. 
 

Unauthorized use, disclosure, or viewing of, or access to, confidential information in violation of 
state and/or federal laws may result in personal fines, civil liability, licensure sanctions and/or criminal 
sanctions, in addition to Company disciplinary actions. 
 

If you believe your privacy rights have been violated, you may file a complaint with Altadena Library 
District’s designated Privacy Officer who is the Finance Department, or the Workplace Reporting Hotline, 
and/or with the Secretary of the DHHS (U.S. Department of Health and Human Services). To file a complaint 
with Altadena Library District’s designated Privacy Officer, please submit a written complaint to the attention 
of: Privacy Officer, Altadena Library District, 600 E. Mariposa St. Altadena, CA 91001.  Employees who 
utilize this complaint procedure shall not be retaliated against. 

 
If you have any questions about the Company’s HIPAA Privacy Policy or would like further 

information about HIPAA, please contact the Manager.  
 

Identity Theft Red Flag Policy 
 
The risk to Altadena Library District, its employees and customers from data loss and identity theft 

is of significant concern to the Company and can be reduced only through the combined efforts of every 
employee and contractor.  
 

1. Purpose  

Altadena Library District maintains an Identity Theft Red Flag Policy. This sensitive information 
policy to help protect employees, customers, contractors and the Company from damages related to the 
loss or misuse of sensitive information.  
 

This policy will:  
 

• Define sensitive information;  
 

• Describe the physical security of data when it is printed on paper;  
 

• Describe the electronic security of data when stored and distributed; and  
 

• Place the Company in compliance with state and federal law regarding identity theft protection. 
 

Page 118 of 158



The Identity Theft Red Flag Policy enables Altadena Library District to protect existing customers, 
reducing risk from identity fraud, and minimize potential damage to the Company from fraudulent new 
accounts. The program will help the Company:  
 

• Identify risks that signify potentially fraudulent activity within new or existing covered accounts;  
 

• Detect risks when they occur in covered accounts;  
 

• Respond to risks to determine if fraudulent activity has occurred and act if fraud has been 
attempted or committed; and  

 

• Update the program periodically, including reviewing the accounts that are covered and the 
identified risks that are part of the program.  

 
2. Scope  

This policy and protection program applies to employees, contractors, consultants, temporary 
workers, and other workers at the Company, including all personnel affiliated with third parties.  

 
3. Mitigation Services Offered 

Should Altadena Library District experience a data breach, the Company will offer appropriate 
identity theft prevention and mitigation services at no cost to the affected persons for no less than 12 
months. Data breach includes theft of Social Security numbers, driver’s license numbers or State 
identification card numbers, credit card account numbers or other personal information.  

Page 119 of 158



VIII.  DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 

 

Drug-Free Workplace Policy 

1. Purpose of the Program 

It is the intent of Altadena Library District (“the Company”) to maintain a workplace that is free of 
drugs and alcohol and to discourage drug and alcohol abuse by its employees. The Company has a vital 
interest in maintaining safe and efficient working conditions for its employees. Substance abuse is 
incompatible with health, safety, efficiency and success at the Company. Employees who are under the 
influence of a drug, marijuana, or alcohol on the job compromise the Company's interests, endanger their 
own health and safety and the health and safety of others, and can cause a number of other work-related 
problems, including absenteeism and tardiness, substandard job performance, increased workloads for 
coworkers, behavior that disrupts other employees, delays in the completion of jobs, inferior quality in 
products or service, and disruption of customer relations. 

To further its interest in avoiding accidents, to promote and maintain safe and efficient working 
conditions for its employees, and to protect its business, property, equipment and operations, the Company 
has established this Guideline concerning the use of alcohol, marijuana, and drugs. As a condition of 
continued employment with the Company, each employee must abide by this Guideline. 

2. Employee Cooperation 

Early detection of substance-abuse problems benefits everyone. For example, it benefits the 
employee with the substance-abuse problem because it gives him or her the opportunity to correct the 
problem before it leads to serious harm to the employee or others; it benefits the employee's coworkers 
who otherwise might have to carry an extra burden by covering for the substance abuser or who otherwise 
might be exposed to serious injury; and it benefits the Company because it gives the Company an 
opportunity to prevent accidents and avoid the performance problems and other losses associated with 
substance abuse. Accordingly, all employees should understand that coworkers with substance-abuse 
problems should be encouraged to seek assistance. 

3. Definitions 

For purposes of this Guideline: 

"Illegal drugs or other controlled substances” mean any drug or substance that (a) is not legally 
obtainable; or (b) is legally obtainable but has not been legally obtained; or (c) has been legally obtained 
but is being sold or distributed unlawfully. 

"Legal drug" means any drug, including any prescription drug or over-the-counter drug, that has 
been legally obtained and that is not unlawfully sold or distributed. 

"Abuse of any legal drug" means the use of any legal drug (a) for any purpose other than the 
purpose for which it was prescribed or manufactured; or (b) in a quantity, frequency or manner that is 
contrary to the instructions or recommendations of the prescribing physician or manufacturer. 

"Reasonable suspicion" includes a suspicion that is based on specific personal observations such 
as an employee’s manner, disposition, muscular movement, appearance, behavior, speech or breathes 
odor; information provided to management by an employee, by law enforcement officials by a security 
service or by other persons believed to be reliable; or a suspicion that is based on other surrounding 
circumstances. 

Page 120 of 158



"Possession" means that an employee has the substance on their person or otherwise under their 
control. 

4. Prohibited Conduct  

The prohibitions of this section apply whenever the interests of the Company may be adversely 
affected, including any time the employee is: 

• On Company premises; 

• Conducting or performing Company business, regardless of location; 

• Operating or responsible for the operation, custody or care of Company equipment or other 
property; or 

• Responsible for the safety of others. 

 
5. Prohibited Acts Subject to Discharge 

The following acts are prohibited and subject an employee to discharge: 

• The unauthorized use, possession, purchase, sale, manufacture, distribution, transportation or 
dispensation of alcohol 

• Being under the influence of alcohol 

• The use, possession, purchase, sale, manufacture, distribution, transportation or dispensation 
of any illegal drug or other controlled substance 

• Being under the influence of any illegal drug or other controlled substance 

• The abuse of any legal drug 

• The purchase, sale, manufacture, distribution, transportation, dispensation or possession of any 
legal prescription drug in a manner inconsistent with law 

• Working while impaired by the use of a legal drug whenever such impairment might: 

o Endanger the safety of the employee or some other person; 

o Pose a risk of significant damage to Company property or equipment 

o Substantially interfere with the employee's job performance  

o The efficient operation of The Company's business or equipment. 

 

6. Disciplinary Action 

a) Discharge for Violation of Guideline 

A first violation of this Guideline will result in immediate discharge whenever the prohibited conduct: 

• Causes injury to the employee or any other person, or in the sole opinion of management 
endangered the safety of the employee or any other person; 

• Results in significant damage to Company property or equipment, or in the sole opinion of 
management posed a risk of significant damage; 

• Involves the sale or manufacture of illegal drugs or other controlled substances; 

Page 121 of 158



• Involves in the possession, distribution, or dispensation of illegal drugs or other controlled 
substances or alcohol in a quantity greater than for personal use; 

• Involves an employee who had not completed the training period or was a casual, seasonal or 
temporary employee; 

• Involves the failure of an employee to report a criminal conviction as required by below. 

 
b) Discretion Not to Discharge 

In circumstances other than those described above, the Company in the discretion of management 
can choose not to discharge an employee for a first violation of this Guideline if the employee satisfactorily 
completes participation in an approved drug- or alcohol-abuse assistance or rehabilitation program. 

c) Effect of Criminal Conviction 

An employee who is convicted under a criminal-drug statute for a violation occurring in the 
workplace or during any Company-related activity or event will be deemed to have violated this Guideline. 

d) Written Warning 

An employee who is not discharged for a first violation of this Guideline will receive a final written 
warning and immediate suspension without pay for a period of three (3) calendar days. 

e) Effect of Second Violation 

A second violation of this Guideline at any time will result in immediate discharge. 

f) Effect of Discharge on Eligibility for Rehire 

Employees who are discharged for a violation of this Guideline may not be eligible for rehire by The 
Company. 

7. Drug-Free Awareness Program 

a) Employee Awareness 

The Company has established a Drug-Free Awareness Policy, which is designed to inform 
employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace and to help assure that employees are familiar 
with this Guideline and with the disciplinary actions that can result from a violation of this Guideline. From 
time to time, employees will be requested to attend one of the sessions of the Drug-Free Awareness 
Program. During each such session, employees will be given current information about available programs 
for counseling and rehabilitation. 

b) Management Awareness 

Managers and Managers should be attentive to the performance and conduct of those who work 
with them and should not permit an employee to work in an impaired condition or otherwise in violation of 
this Guideline. When management has reasonable suspicion to believe an employee or employees are 
working in violation of this Guideline, prompt action will be taken. 

8. Criminal Convictions 

Employees are required by this Guideline to notify the Company of any conviction under a criminal 
drug statute for a violation occurring in the workplace or during any Company-related activity or event, no 

Page 122 of 158



later than three (3) days after any such conviction. When required by federal law, the Company will notify 
any federal agency with which it has a contract of any employee who has been convicted under a criminal 
drug statute for a violation occurring in the workplace. 

9. Use of Legal Drugs 

The Company recognizes that employees may, from time to time, be prescribed legal drugs that 
when taken as prescribed or according to the manufacturer's instructions may result in their impairment. 
Employees may not work while impaired by the use of legal drugs, including marijuana, if the impairment 
might endanger the employee or someone else, pose a risk of significant damage to Company property or 
substantially interfere with the employee's job performance. If an employee is so impaired by the 
appropriate use of legal drugs, they may not report to work. To accommodate the absence, the employee 
may use accrued sick leave or vacation time. 

The employee may also contact Human Resources to determine whether or not they qualify for an 
unpaid leave of absence, such as family-care or medical leave. Nothing in this Guideline is intended to 
sanction or encourage the use of accrued sick leave or vacation time to accommodate absences due to the 
abuse of legal drugs. Furthermore, nothing in this Guideline is intended to diminish the Company' 
commitment to employ and reasonably accommodate qualified disabled individuals. The Company will 
reasonably accommodate qualified disabled employees who must take legal drugs because of their 
disability and who because of their appropriate use of such drugs cannot perform the essential functions of 
their positions adequately or safely. 

10. Unregulated or Authorized Conduct 

a) Customary Use of Over-the-Counter Drugs 

Nothing in this Guideline is intended to prohibit the customary and ordinary purchase, sale, use, 
possession or dispensation of over-the-counter drugs so long as that activity does not violate any law or 
result in an employee being impaired by the use of such drugs in violation of this Guideline. 

b) Off-the-Job Conduct 

Unless an employee is in a designated safety-sensitive position, this Guideline is not intended to 
regulate off-the-job conduct so long as the employee's off-the-job use of alcohol or drugs does not result in 
the employee being under the influence of or impaired by the use of alcohol or drugs in violation of this 
Guideline. If an employee is in a designated safety-sensitive position, they will be subject to drug testing as 
described below. 

c) Authorized Use of Alcohol 

The Company may provide alcohol for consumption at certain events such as social functions. The 
consumption of alcohol at these events does not violate this policy. 

11.  Confidentiality 

Disclosures made by employees to Human Resources concerning their use of legal drugs will be 
treated confidentially and will not be revealed to managers or Managers unless there is an important work-
related reason to do so in order to determine whether it is advisable for the employee to continue working. 
Disclosures made by employees to Human Resources concerning their participation in any drug or alcohol 
rehabilitation program will be treated confidentially. 

 

Page 123 of 158



12. Drug Testing  

a) Post-Accident Testing 

If an employee is involved in an accident, to the extent permitted by law, regulation and/or rule, the 
employee will be requested to take a drug and/or alcohol test in accordance with the procedures outlined 
below.   

If an employee refuses to cooperate with the administration of the drug test and/or alcohol test, the 
refusal will be handled in the same manner as a positive test result. 

b) Reasonable Suspicion 

Reasonable cause testing may be conducted based on a belief that an employee is using or has 
used alcohol or drugs in violation of the Company’s policy drawn from specific objective facts and 
reasonable inferences drawn from those facts in light of experience.  Among other things, such facts and 
inferences may be based on, but not limited to, one of the following: 
 

1. Direct observations of abnormal conduct or erratic behavior by the employee which may render 
the employee unable to perform his/her duties or which may pose a threat to safety or health. 

2. A report of observed alcohol or drug use provided by a reliable and credible source. 
3. An on-the-job accident or occurrence where there is evidence to indicate the accident or 

occurrence, in whole or in part, may have been the result of the employee’s use of a controlled 
substance or alcohol. 

4. Evidence that an employee is involved in the use, possession, sale, solicitation, or transfer of 
drugs or alcohol while working or while on the employer’s premises or operating the employer’s 
vehicle, machinery, or equipment. 

5. The employee’s conviction of a criminal drug or alcohol statute violation. 
 

A refusal to test is considered a positive alcohol or drug screen. 
 

c) Testing Procedures 

Any employee subject to testing under this policy will be required to provide a urine and/or breath 
test per the Federal Register 49CFR part 40 testing procedures. The purpose of these tests is to determine 
the presence of drugs or alcohol. Refusal to submit to testing procedures, including refusing to provide a 
sample, will be considered a positive test. A positive test will result in the revocation of an applicant’s job 
offer or will subject a current employee to discipline up to and including termination. 

Smoke-Free Environment 
 

To protect the health and safety of all employees and customers of Altadena Library District, 
smoking is prohibited in Company buildings, on job sites that are indoors, and in Company-owned vehicles. 
This includes smoking in any form through the use of tobacco products (pipes, cigars, and cigarettes) or 
“vaping” with e-cigarettes. Employees who wish to smoke may do so only on their regular breaks and meal 
periods, and must smoke outside of the building, job site, or Company-owned vehicle. 

 

Inspections and Searches on Company Premises 

1. Purpose of the Guideline 

Altadena Library District believes that maintaining a workplace that is free of drugs, alcohol, and 
other harmful materials is vital to the health and safety of its employees and to the success of Altadena 
Library District's business. Altadena Library District also intends to protect against the unauthorized use or 
removal of Company property. In addition, Altadena Library District intends to assure its access at all times 

Page 124 of 158



to Company premises and Company property, equipment, records, documents, and files. Accordingly, 
Altadena Library District has established this Guideline concerning inspections and searches, on Company 
premises. This Guideline applies to all employees of Altadena Library District. 

2. Definitions 

For purposes of this Guideline: 

"Prohibited materials" means firearms or other weapons; explosives and/or hazardous materials or 
articles; illegal drugs or other controlled substances as defined in Altadena Library District's Drug-Free 
Workplace Guideline; drug-related paraphernalia; and alcoholic beverages or Company property that an 
employee is not authorized to have in their possession. 

"Company property" includes all documents, records, software, and files relating to Altadena Library 
District's business; and all equipment, hardware and other property of any kind whether owned, leased, 
rented or used by Altadena Library District. 

"Company premises" includes all premises and locations owned or leased by Altadena Library 
District or under the control of Altadena Library District, including parking lots, lockers and storage areas. 

"Reasonable suspicion" includes a suspicion that is based on specific personal observations such 
as an employee's manner, disposition, muscular movement, appearance, behavior, speech or breath odor; 
information provided to management by an employee, by law enforcement officials, by a security service 
or by other persons believed to be reliable; or a suspicion that is based on other surrounding circumstances. 

"Possession" means that an employee has the substance or Company property on their person or 
otherwise under their control. 

3. Inspections and Searches 

a) Access to Company Property 

In order to ensure access at all times to Company property and because employees who are 
properly in possession of Company property or information related to Company business may not always 
be available to produce the property or information (when needed in the ordinary course of business), 
Altadena Library District retains the right to search any property or equipment owned by the Company with 
or without cause, at any time.  The Company retains the right to search private property within our facility 
or grounds with reasonable cause and, to the extent practicable, with advance notice. Altadena Library 
District retains the right to access information and communications stored on Company Technology 
Resources at all times. 

Routine searches or inspections for Company property may include an employee's office, desk, file 
cabinet, closet, computer files, voicemail or similar places where employees may store Company property 
or Company-related information, whether or not the places are locked or protected by access codes. 

Because even a routine search for Company property might result in the discovery of an employee's 
personal possessions, all employees are encouraged to refrain from bringing into the workplace any item 
of personal property that they do not wish to reveal to Altadena Library District. 

b) Inspections and Searches for Prohibited Materials 

 Inspections or searches for prohibited materials in or on Company premises also will be conducted 
whenever Altadena Library District has reasonable suspicion that a particular employee or employees may 
be in possession of such materials in violation of this Guideline. 

Page 125 of 158



Inspections or searches for prohibited materials may be conducted by an independent security 
service or by Altadena Library District with its own personnel. In all cases, a member of management should 
be present. 

Inspections or searches for prohibited materials may be conducted from time to time even when 
there is no immediate reason to suspect the presence of the materials. In such cases, Altadena Library 
District may  announce the inspection in advance, except for inspections or searches conducted at locations 
where employees enter or exit Company premises. 

Inspections or searches for prohibited materials may include an employee's office, desk, file 
cabinet, closet, or other locations where employees may place personal possessions including, but not 
limited to, employee lockers and vehicles, when on Company premises, and/or other items of personal 
property worn or carried while on Company premises. 

Employees who refuse to cooperate during an inspection or search will not be forcibly detained or 
searched. They will be informed, however, that Altadena Library District will base any disciplinary decision 
on the information that is available, including their refusal to consent to the search as well as the information 
that gave rise to a reasonable suspicion that the employee was in possession of prohibited materials, if 
applicable, and that their failure or refusal to cooperate could deprive Altadena Library District of information 
that may clear them of suspicion. In addition, Altadena Library District reserves the right to take appropriate 
action to prevent the unauthorized removal from Company premises of Company property. 

c) Disciplinary Action 

Employees found to be in possession of prohibited materials in violation of this Guideline or to have 
used Company property in an unauthorized manner and/or are found to be in violation of other Altadena 
Library District policies and guidelines may be subject to discipline up to and including discharge, regardless 
of Altadena Library District's reason for conducting the search or inspection. 

If an employee refuses to cooperate with a search or inspection that is based on reasonable 
suspicion that the employee is in possession of prohibited materials, Altadena Library District may take that 
refusal into consideration in determining appropriate disciplinary action. Discipline will be based on all 
available information, including the information giving rise to the reasonable suspicion. It is therefore to the 
employee's advantage to cooperate with the search or inspection whenever prohibited materials are 
present. 

Page 126 of 158



VII. TERMINATION 

 

Voluntary Termination 

Altadena Library District will consider an employee to have voluntarily terminated their employment 
if an employee does any of the following: 

• Elects to resign from Altadena Library District; 

• Fails to return from an approved leave of absence on the date specified by Altadena Library 
District;  

• Fails to cooperate with a reasonable and lawful reassignment or transfer; or 

• Fails to report for work without notice to Altadena Library District for three (3) consecutive days. 

All employees are requested to provide a letter of resignation to their Manager upon giving notice 
of termination.   

Involuntary Termination 

An employee may be terminated involuntarily for reasons that include poor performance, 
misconduct or other violations of Altadena Library District's rules of conduct as set forth below. 
Notwithstanding this list of rules, Altadena Library District reserves the right to discharge with or without 
cause and with or without prior notice. 

Termination Due to Reorganizations, Economics or Lack of Work 

From time to time, Altadena Library District may need to terminate an employee as a consequence 
of reorganizations, job eliminations, economic downturns in business or lack of work. Should Altadena 
Library District consider such terminations necessary; Altadena Library District will attempt to provide all 
affected employees with advance notice when practical. If possible, employees subject to layoff will be 
informed of the nature of the layoff and the foreseeable duration of the layoff, whether short-term or 
indefinite.  

In determining which employees will be subject to layoff, Altadena Library District will take into 
account, among other things, operation and requirements, the skill, productivity, ability, and past 
performance of those involved, and also, when feasible, the employee’s length of service. 

Final Wages CA  

 An employee who quits giving at least 72 hours’ notice, or is terminated or laid off will receive 
their final paycheck on the last day of employment.  The place of the final wage payment for employees 
who quit giving at least 72 hours’ notice, or are terminated or laid off is the place of termination. 
 
 Employees who quit with less than 72 hours’ notice will receive their final paycheck within 72 
hours of their last day of employment.  The employee may request that his or her final wage payment be 
mailed to a designated address. The date of mailing will be considered the date of payment for purposes 
of the requirement to provide payment within 72 hours.  The place of final wage payment for employees 
who quit without giving 72 hours’ prior notice and who do not request that their final wages be mailed to 
them at a designated address, is at the location in which the work was performed. 
 
 Final paychecks will also include all accrued, unused vacation in the employee's final paycheck. 

Page 127 of 158



Exit Interview 

Employees who leave Altadena Library District, for any reason, may be asked to participate in an 
exit interview. This interview is intended to permit terminating employees the opportunity to communicate 
their views regarding their work with Altadena Library District, including job duties, job training, job 
supervision and job benefits. At the time of the interview, employees are expected to return all Company-
furnished property, such as uniforms, tools, equipment, ID cards, keys, credit cards, documents and 
handbooks. Also, arrangements for clearing any outstanding debts with Altadena Library District and 
arrangements for receiving final pay will be made at this time. 

Unemployment Insurance 

As an employee, you may be eligible for unemployment insurance benefits if you are laid off from 
your position through no fault of your own and have earned a certain amount in a designated base period. 
You may also be eligible for partial unemployment insurance benefits if your regular hours have been 
reduced. Independent contractors are excluded from coverage. 

Certain minimum requirements must be met before an individual is eligible for unemployment 
insurance.  Benefits are determined by the wages in the highest quarter of the individual's base period. 
There is a one-week waiting period after eligibility is established before benefits are paid.  

Page 128 of 158



VIII. WORKPLACE SAFETY 

Workplace Safety Policy 

Altadena Library District is committed to providing and maintaining a healthy and safe work 
environment for all employees. Accordingly, Altadena Library District has instituted an Injury and Illness 
Prevention Program designed to protect the health and safety of all personnel. Every employee will receive 
a copy of Altadena Library District's General Safety Rules and will receive health and safety training as part 
of the Injury and Illness Prevention Program. A complete copy of the Injury and Illness Prevention Program 
is kept by the Finance Department and is available for your review. 

You are required to know and comply with Altadena Library District's General Safety Rules and to 
follow safe and healthy work practices at all times. You also are required to report immediately to your 
Manager any potential health or safety hazards and all injuries or accidents. First aid supplies are located 
in the staff office at both library locations. The location of the nearest doctor and/or medical facility is posted 
on the employee notice board. 

Safety Rules 

Safety is to be given primary importance in every aspect of planning and performing all Altadena 
Library District activities. We want to protect you against industrial injury and illness, as well as minimize 
the potential loss of production. Please report all injuries (no matter how slight) to your manager 
immediately, as well as anything that needs repair or is a safety hazard. Below are some general safety 
rules. Your manager or department head may post other safety procedures in your department or work 
area: 

• Avoid overloading electrical outlets with too many machines. 

• Use proper extension cords/power strips. 

• Use flammable items such as cleaning fluids with caution. 

• Walk – don't run. 

• Report to your manager if you or a coworker becomes ill or is injured. 

• Ask for assistance when lifting heavy objects or moving heavy furniture. 

• Keep cabinet doors and file and desk drawers closed when not in use. 

• Sit firmly and squarely in chairs that roll or tilt. 

• Avoid horseplay or practical jokes. 

• Start work on any machine only after safety procedures and requirements have been explained 
(and you understand them). 

Remember, failure to adhere to these rules will be considered serious infractions of safety rules 
and will result in disciplinary actions. 

Heat Illness Prevention 
 
Altadena Library District follows a Heat Illness Prevention program, as described in the Company’s 

Injury & Illness Prevention Program (IIPP). The program includes: 
 
1. Training – For all affected employees and their Managers 
2. Water – The Company encourages each employee to drink at least one (1) quart of water per 

hour while working in high heat conditions. 

Page 129 of 158



3. Recovery Period – The Company allows and encourages outdoor employees to take a cool-
down rest in the shade for a period of no less than five (5) minutes at a time when they feel the 
need to do so to protect themselves from overheating. Please do not wait until you feel sick to 
request this rest period. * 

4. Written Procedures – The Company’s IIPP contains written procedures for implementing the 
Cal/OSHA Heat Illness Prevention Standard. 
 

*A recovery period is paid and not included as a meal or rest period. Employees will receive an additional 
hour of pay at the employee’s regular rate of pay for each day that a recovery period is not provided. 

 
Further information on the Company’s Heat Illness Prevention program can be found in the IIPP 

or you may check with your Manager. 
 

Seating Provisions 
 

All employees shall be provided with suitable seats when the nature of the work reasonably permits 
the use of seats. For employees whose work requires standing, an adequate number of suitable seats shall 
be placed in reasonable proximity to the work area, which employees may use when it does not interfere 
with the performance of their duties. 

 
Hazardous Chemicals and Your Right to Know 
 

Altadena Library District utilizes hazardous chemicals as part of the day-to-day operation of the 
Company.  It is our intention to disclose to the employee the chemicals that may be associated with the job.  

 

Return to Work Policy 

As part of our on-going effort to provide “A Safe and Healthful Workplace” for all of our employees, 
Altadena Library District has instituted its “Return to Work” Policy. This program is a win/win situation and 
will benefit both the employer and employees. 
 

Our industrial medical clinic has been advised of this policy and the medical staff will endeavor to 
return employees to full or modified duty in a timely manner. 

The Company will endeavor to provide job assignments for those employees released to modified 
work according to the restriction criteria specified by the clinic’s medical staff.  Company management on 
a case-by-case basis will determine modified work status. 

Violence in the Workplace 

Altadena Library District recognizes that workplace violence is a growing concern among 
employers and employees across the country. Altadena Library District is committed to providing a safe, 
violence-free workplace and strictly prohibits employees, consultants, customers, visitors or anyone else 
on Company premises or engaging in a Company-related activity from behaving in a violent or threatening 
manner. As part of this policy, Altadena Library District seeks to prevent workplace violence before it begins 
and reserves the right to deal with behavior that suggests a propensity towards violence even prior to any 
violent behavior occurring. 

Altadena Library District believes that prevention of workplace violence begins with recognition and 
awareness of potential early warning signs and has established procedures for responding to any situation 
that presents the possibility of violence. More information is available from the Finance Department. 

Page 130 of 158



1. Workplace Violence Defined 

Workplace violence includes: 

• Threats of any kind; 

• Threatening, physically aggressive, or violent behavior such as intimidation of or attempts to 
instill fear in others; 

• Other behavior that suggests a propensity toward violence, which can include belligerent 
speech, excessive arguing or swearing, sabotage or threats of sabotage of Company property, 
or a demonstrated pattern of refusal to follow Company policies and procedures; 

• Defacing Company property or causing physical damage to the facilities; or 

• With the exception of security personnel, bringing weapons or firearms of any kind on Company 
premises, in Company parking lots or while conducting Company business. 

2. Reporting 

If any employee observes or becomes aware of any of the above-listed actions or behavior by an 
employee, customer, consultant, visitor or anyone else, they should notify the Manager immediately. 
Furthermore, employees should notify the Manager if any restraining order is in effect or if a potentially 
violent non-work related situation exists that could result in violence in the workplace. 

3. Investigation 

All reports of workplace violence will be taken seriously and will be investigated promptly and 
thoroughly. In appropriate circumstances, Altadena Library District will inform the reporting individual of the 
results of the investigation. To the extent possible, Altadena Library District will maintain the confidentiality 
of the reporting employee and of the investigation but may need to disclose results in appropriate 
circumstances, for example, in order to protect individual safety. Altadena Library District will not tolerate 
retaliation against any employee who reports workplace violence. 

4. Corrective Action and Discipline 

If Altadena Library District determines that workplace violence has occurred, Altadena Library 
District will take appropriate corrective action and will impose discipline on offending employees. The 
appropriate discipline will depend on the particular facts, but may include written or oral warnings, probation, 
and re-assignment of responsibilities, suspension, or termination. If the violent behavior is that of a non-
employee, Altadena Library District will take appropriate corrective action in an attempt to ensure that such 
behavior is not repeated. Under certain circumstances, Altadena Library District may forego disciplinary 
action on the condition that the employee takes a medical leave of absence. In addition, Altadena Library 
District may request that the employee participate in counseling, either voluntarily or as a condition of 
continued employment. 

Page 131 of 158



IX. MISCELLANEOUS 

 

Travel and Expense Accounts  

Altadena Library District will reimburse employees for reasonable business expenses incurred 
throughout business travel or entertainment. You must have receipts for all expenses. Mileage will be 
reimbursed at the official IRS rate.  

 

Credit Card Policy 

1. Purpose of Credit Cards 

Credit cards are available and issued to certain positions. The cards are used for business 
expenses while conducting Company business on behalf of Altadena Library District. Charges are billed 
directly to the Company.  Credit cards will be approved and issued by a Principal only.  Credit cards are not 
transferable between individuals.  
 

2. Cardholder Liability 

The cardholder is responsible for proper use of the card within stated guidelines of this policy. 
Failure to comply with these guidelines, policies and procedures may result in permanent revocation of 
credit card privileges. Use of the card for personal purchases may constitute fraud under California state 
law. Misuse of the card may result in the employee’s termination.  Additionally, the Company will pursue 
the matter to the extent the law allows.  
 

3. Cardholder Responsibilities 

Misuse of the card will subject the cardholder to disciplinary action up to and including termination. 
The cardholder must: 
  

• Ensure the card is only used by the employee to whom the card is issued.  

• Use the card for business expenses only.  

• Maintain the card in a secure location at all times.  

• Return the credit card to the Operations Manager upon termination of employment with Altadena 
Library District.  

 
4. Cardholder Termination 

A cardholder’s card will be terminated when they (a) move to a new position, in which a card is 
not required, (b) terminate employment or (c) for any of the following reasons:  
 

• The credit card is used to makes purchases for a non-business related activity.  

• The cardholder allows the card to be used by an unauthorized individual.  
 

5. Lost, Misplaced or Stolen Purchasing Cards 

Cardholders are required to immediately notify the Finance Department of a lost or stolen card at 
the first opportunity during normal business hours.  
 

Page 132 of 158



6. Erroneous Declines  

Should a seller erroneously decline a credit card, the cardholder should immediately contact the 
Finance Department. If purchase is being made outside normal business hours, the employee must find an 
alternate payment method or terminate the purchase.  
 

Safe Driver Policy  

Altadena Library District cares about the safety of its employees. Therefore, it is the policy of the 
Company that employees follow safe driving practices. Safe driving practices include steps to ensure the 
driver's total concentration and safe operation of vehicles, such as determining clear directions before 
departing, refraining from operating equipment while the vehicle is moving which include cell phones, 
texting, PDA’s, and radios, and not operating a vehicle when the driver's ability to react is impaired. Drivers 
are expected to follow defensive driving principles and laws and regulations to prevent accidents in spite of 
unsafe driving by others and/or adverse driving conditions. 
 

Specifically, this policy affects any positions in which driving is required as part of their duties and 
for those employees who fall under the “special errand doctrine.”  
 

As part of this policy, we are required to verify State DMV records on certain positions within our 
organization. Because driving is a required part of your job, your position has been identified by our carrier 
as needing this investigation.  This report will provide management information about motor vehicle safety 
violations, as well as any subsequent action taken by the DMV against your driver's licenses and 
certificates. 

 Additionally, the following guidelines also apply: 

• An employee shall not operate any vehicle which is unsafe. 

• Drivers and passengers are required to use seat belts. 

• Employees who are issued a cell phone or use a personal phone for business use are 
prohibited from using their phone while driving, including reading, writing or sending a text 
message.  If your job requires that you keep your cell phone turned on while you are driving, 
you must use a mounted hands-free device that can be activated or deactivated with a single 
swipe or tap, and are encouraged to safely pull off the road before conducting Company 
business. 

• If acceptance of a call is unavoidable and pulling over is not an option, employees are expected 
to keep the call short, use hands-free options, refrain from discussion of complicated or 
emotional issues, and keep their eyes on the road. Special care should be taken in situations 
where there is traffic, inclement weather or the employee is driving in an unfamiliar area.  

• Employees who are charged with traffic violations resulting from the use of their phone while 
driving will be solely responsible for any liability resulting from such action.   

• Employees must possess a valid driver's license from their state of residency. DMV records 
checks are conducted as a condition of employment for employees under this policy. This 
report will be run at the time of hire and on an annual basis thereafter.  You will receive a copy 
of the report and Altadena Library District will retain the report in your personnel file. 

• Information received from this report may be used as a basis for disciplinary actions up to and 
including dismissal, whether the offenses and infractions occurred during or outside work 
hours. If Altadena Library District determines that you have an unacceptable driving record as 
determined by the point system listed below, or your driver’s license is suspended or revoked 
by the DMV, Altadena Library District will evaluate the situation and determine the appropriate 
course of disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.  You will be required to provide all 

Page 133 of 158



documentation, and authorize Altadena Library District to monitor the progress pertaining to 
any offense or infraction, for the purpose of evaluating the situation.  This may include 
monitoring your participation in a rehabilitation program, training, treatment, or other such 
measures as a result of the offense or infraction. 

You will be considered by Altadena Library District to be an unacceptable driver if your driving 
record shows any of the following point count totals: 

• 4 points in 12 months, or  

• 6 points in 24 months, or  

• 8 points in 36 months, or 
 

In addition, you will also be considered an unacceptable driver if: 

• You have a single violation that carries a two-point count.  Such violations include but are not 
limited to DUI, Reckless driving, Vehicular Manslaughter, etc.   

• A felony revocation of driving privileges or felony or misdemeanor driver license suspension 
within the last 24 months 

 
Employees under this policy shall immediately notify their Manager in writing upon conviction of a 

moving offense or suspension or revocation of their driver's license. Failure to notify the Manager in writing 
of a conviction, suspension, or revocation, or driving with a suspended or revoked license may be cause 
for disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.  
 

Emergency Closings 

At times, emergencies such as severe weather, natural disasters, or power failures can disrupt 
Company operations.  In extreme cases, these circumstances may require the closing of a work facility.   

Employees in essential operations as determined by the immediate Manager may be required to 
work when operations are officially closed.  In these circumstances, employees will receive their normal 
compensation.  

In the event of severe weather or a natural disaster that prevents employees from safely traveling 
to and from work, the following policies will apply: 

1. Inclement Weather 

Conditions that excuse absence from work include: snow, road closure, announced danger, 
whiteout, heavy rain, and severe flooding. If weather conditions prevent you from safely traveling to work, 
you must notify your Manager by phone, if telephone service is functional, or by any other available means.  

Non-exempt employees will be paid for any time actually worked.  Vacation or unpaid leave may 
be taken for unpaid time.  Exempt employees will be paid a full day’s pay for excused absences from work 
due to inclement weather, unless no work is performed during the workweek. No salary will be paid for 
workweeks in which no Company work is performed. 

2. Natural Disasters  

In the event of a natural disaster such as earthquake, fire, or explosion, the office will be closed if 
the building is damaged or highways leading to the office are damaged. For instructions on reporting to 
another location, contact the office immediately, if possible. 

Page 134 of 158



3. Power Outage 

Should the Company experience a power outage, you are required to remain in the workplace to 
wait for power to return. All employees will be paid for the time while waiting for power to be restored. 

If the power goes out near a scheduled meal period, you may be instructed to take your meal break. 
The Company will determine if employees are to remain in the workplace until the power is restored or go 
home for the day. 

4. Pay Procedure When Sent Home 

If you are sent home due to inclement weather, natural disaster, or a power outage, non-exempt 
employees will be paid for the time actually worked that day.  Vacation or unpaid leave may be taken for 
the remainder of the workday.  Exempt employees will be paid for a full day's pay if sent home.  

Page 135 of 158



BENEFITS SUMMARY TABLE  

 
Benefit/Policy 

Eligible 
Employees Date Eligible Description 

Medical/Dental 
Insurance, Vision 
Plan 

Regular full-time 
Employees and their 
eligible dependents 

1st of the month hire 
date 

Health and dental insurance coverage, 
vision plan coverage 

Group Life Insurance Regular full-time 
Employees   

1st of the month 
following hire date 

Payment to beneficiaries upon Employee's 
death or dismemberment 

COBRA Employees and 
dependents covered 
by health insurance 

Upon termination or 
as a result of losing 
benefit coverage 

Continuation of health and dental 
insurance coverage 

CalPERS Pension 

Program 

Regular full-time 

Employees   

Upon Hire Altadena Library District's Retirement Plan 

(Public Pension Program) 

Workers' 
Compensation 
Insurance 

All Upon Hire Covers on-the-job injuries/illnesses 

California Disability 
Insurance (SDI-CA 
Only) 

California Employees 
who pay State 
Disability Insurance 
(SDI) 

After a 7-day waiting 
period 

Partial wage-replacement when unable to 
work due to a non-work-related illness or 
injury or a medically disabling condition 
from pregnancy or childbirth 

Holidays Regular full-time 
Employees   

Upon hire Holiday pay for Company observed 
holidays 

Part-time Employees Upon hire, if holiday 
falls on a regularly 
scheduled workday 

Holiday pay for Company observed 
holidays (Pay based on hours of normal 
schedule) 

Free (Paid) Holidays Regular full-time 
Employees   

Awarded Jan. 1st 
Annually 

3 days per year, to be designated to a 
specific date/event 

Vacation  Regular full-time 
Employees   

Accrual begins from 
date of hire 

1-5 years of service – 15 days/year 

6-9 years of service – 18 days/year 

10-14 years of service – 20 days/year 

15+ years of service – 25 days/year 

Part-time Employees Accrual begins from 
date of hire 

1-4 years of service – 37 hours/year 

5-10 years of service – 55.5 hours/year 

10+ years of service – 74 hours/year 

Paid Sick Leave 
 

Regular full-time  Accrual begins from 
date of hire  
 

12 days per year 

Part-time, and 
Temporary 
Employees  

Accrual begins from 
date of hire however 
employees  
 

3 days or 24 hours per year (for part-time, 
pro-rated based on hours worked of 1 
hour for every 30 hours worked) 

Bereavement Leave Regular full-time 
Employees 

Upon hire Up to 3 days leave upon death of a child or 
spouse, or other immediate family 
member (parents, step-parents, brothers, 

sisters, in-laws, grandparents, 
grandchildren).  

Part-time Employees Upon hire 2 day leave upon death of immediate 
family member 

Family/Medical Leave 
Act (FMLA) 
 
California Family 
Rights Act (CFRA)  

Employees who work 
at a Company 
location that employs 
50+ persons within a 
75 miles radius and 

After 12 months of 
service 

Note: ADL is an eligible employer under 
FMLA/CFRA, however employees are not 
eligible as there are fewer than 50 

Page 136 of 158



has worked at least 
1,250 hours in the 
12 months preceding 
the leave 

employees at any Altadena Library District 
location within a 75-mile radius.  

Pregnancy Disability 
Leave (PDL-CA Only) 

Female Employees in 
California 

Upon Hire Up to four months of a pregnancy-related 
disability leave 

Workers' 
Compensation Leave 

All Upon Hire Disability leave for a work-related injury or 
illness that results in lost work time 

Paid Family Leave 
(PFL-CA Only) 

California Employees 
who pay State 
Disability Insurance 
(SDI) 

Upon Hire Up to six weeks of partial pay per year to 
care for a new child or sick family member 
(state paid) 

Organ & Bone 
Marrow Donor Leave 
(CA Only) 

All  Upon Hire/Annually Up to 30 business days of paid leave per 
year for an organ donation in any one-
year period; up to five business days of 
paid leave per year for a bone marrow 
donation 

Jury Duty  Regular full-time 
Employees 

Upon Hire Unpaid leave when called for jury or 
witness duty (unpaid leave available for 
part-time Employees) 

Military Leave All Upon Hire Unpaid leave when called to active duty, 
training, or reserve duty 

Military Family Leave 
(CA Only) 

EE’s who work at 
least 20 hours a 
week  

Upon Hire Up to 10 days of unpaid leave if the 
employee’s spouse or domestic partner is 
a “qualified member” on leave from 
deployment 

Civil Air Patrol Leave 
(CA Only) 

EE’s who are 
members of the CA 
Wing of the Civil Air 
Patrol 

Has been employed 
at least 90 days 
preceding leave 

Up to 10 days of unpaid leave per year to 
respond to emergency operational 
missions 

Crime Victim Leave 
(CA Only) 

All Upon Hire Unpaid leave for Employee or Employee’s 
spouse, parent, child, sibling or guardian 
who are victim of domestic violence, sexual 
assault, a violent or serious felony, or hate 
crime 

Non-Medical Leaves 
of Absence (CA Only) 

All Upon Hire Unpaid leave for purpose of school visits for 
a suspended child; emergency duty by a 
volunteer firefighter, National Guard leave, 
reserve peace officers and emergency 
rescue or health care personnel, or 
volunteer civil service leave. 

School Activities (CA 
Only) 

Employees who are 
parents/step-
parent/foster 
parent/person who 
stands in loco 
parentis to a child/ 
guardians/ 
grandparent in 
custody of a child 
enrolled in a CA 
public/private school 
(K-12) or licensed 
child day care facility  

Upon Hire Unpaid leave to participate in activities at 
child's school or day care facility, or find, 
enroll, or reenroll his or her child in a 
school or with a licensed child care 
provider (not only licensed child day-care 
facilities), and to address a child care 
provider or school emergency. 
 
Full-time: 40 hours each year (up to 8 
hours in any calendar month); Part-Time: 
20 hours each year. 

  

Page 137 of 158



 
 

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
This is to acknowledge that I have received a copy of Altadena Library District’s Employee 
Handbook, effective April 2017 and understand that it contains important information on the 
Company's general personnel policies and on my privileges and obligations as an at-will 
employee. This handbook has been reviewed and explained to me by a representative of the 
Company.  

I acknowledge that I am expected to read, understand, and adhere to Company policies and will 
familiarize myself with the material contained herein.  I will seek explanations from my Manager 
for any portions of the Handbook I do not understand.   

I understand that I am governed by the contents of the Handbook and that the Company may 
change any policies, benefits or practices described in the Handbook from time to time in its sole 
and absolute discretion with or without prior notice.  Furthermore, I understand that employment 
with the Company is not for a specified term and is at the mutual consent of the Company and 
myself.  Accordingly, either the Company or I can terminate the employment relationship at will, 
with or without cause, at any time. 

My signature hereon confirms my voluntary agreement to this provision and further confirms that 
I have read and understood the contents of this Agreement. 

 
 
__________________________________   
Employee Signature      
 
 
__________________________________   
Employee Name (Print)    
 
 
__________________________________   
Date 

Page 138 of 158



 
LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

DEPARTMENT: Administration               MEETING DATE:  March 10, 2017 
 
PREPARED BY: Mindy Kittay, Director      LOCATION: Community Room 
            
 
TITLE:  Operating Plan Update – 6 Month Review 
 
OBJECTIVE:  To provide an overview of the progress on the 16/17 Operating Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS: On March 10, 2017, the Leadership Team met to discuss and update the current 
Operating Plan. The team also determined that we should provide all staff with an abbreviated, one page 
statement of our three main objectives for each operating year. We are also discussing using the current plan 
for the 17/18 year with some minor adjustments to reflect what we have accomplished and what our main 
priorities should be for that year. 
 
After discussion, it was determined that our three main initiatives for 2016/2017 are: 
 

• VISIBILITY: Increase Library visibility in the community 
o Moving Beyond Our Physical Spaces 

▪ Community Conversations 
▪ Expanded Social Media 
▪ Increase Partnerships with Businesses, Schools and Other Organizations in Altadena 
▪ Have a Major Marketing Push for 2017 Calendar Year 
▪ Hold Events, Presentations, Classes and More in Other Locations Around Altadena 
▪ 50th Anniversary Celebration Activities and Growing Up ‘Dena 

 

• ENVIRONMENT: Facility Improvement 
o Phase I Renovation Project 

▪ Shelving, Carpet, Entrance Doors, Interior Signage, Planters 
o Improve Staff Areas in Lower Level 

 

• EDUCATION:  For both the staff and the public 
o FabLab: High Tech, Creative Space with Mentors providing opportunities for all ages to learn, 

explore and experience new technologies. 
o Harwood: Turning Outward. Staff participation in Community Conversations, Training, Seminars 

and sharing with other staff. 
o Volunteer, Board and Support Organizations: Orientation, Training, Education and Support 

including Serving with a Purpose Conference (Future of Fundraising and Friendraising). 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: That the Board of Trustees provide staff with input on the Operating Plan 
and their progress and priorities. 

Page 139 of 158



 

The following Operating Plan for 2016-2017 is reflective of the Altadena Library District’s mission to 
provide free and equal access to information, ideas, technology, and the joy of reading to educate and 

empower our diverse community. This document seeks to outline a plan of action for achieving the goals 

set forth in the District’s current Strategic Plan, so that the Altadena Public Library can continue to meet 
the present, future, and constantly changing needs and interests of its diverse clientele.  

 

Goal 1 

Funding: The Altadena Library District will seek to establish a stable source of funding to sustain current 

levels of customer service.  The District will expand sources of revenue.   

 

Goal 2 

Outreach: The Altadena Library District will tell its story to the community through enhanced   print, 

electronic and social media communications. 
 

Goal 3 

Facilities: The Altadena Library District will provide a facility that is comfortable, welcoming, safe, energy 

efficient, flexible, and fully disabled-accessible. 
 

Goal 4   

Lifelong Learning: The Altadena Library District will fuel Altadena’s passion for reading, personal growth, 

and learning. 
 

Goal 5 

Technology: The Altadena Library District will provide access to the digital world through state-of-the-art 
technologies. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 140 of 158



Goal 1 -- Funding: The Altadena Library District will seek to establish a stable source of 
funding to sustain current levels of customer service.  The District will expand sources of 

revenue.  
 

Objectives for Goal 1:  Staff support of library support groups 

 
• We will reach out to all support groups (ie: Friends of the Library, Library Foundation) to ask 

them to present to all staff the information they share with the community.  
• Hold a meeting with the Trustees and the Friends of the Altadena Library facilitated 

by ALA or CLA to discuss the challenges the District is facing and to create an MOU 
between the two organizations. 

 

• Continue to research and apply for grants that meet the Strategic Goals of the Library and the 
Operating plan.  

• The District has applied for a number of grants so far this year and has 
received two. The Pitch a Grant through the California State Library and 

another from Cypress.  

• The District is a finalist for both the Tournament of Roses and the Pasadena 
Foundation and are awaiting a final decision. 

• The District has applied for another Cypress Grant in the amount of $125,000. 
 

• Revise and update the Volunteer Program. 

• Continue to search for Volunteer, Volunteer Coordinator or Review existing positions and 
determine if funding is available to add a paid Volunteer Coordinator position.   

 
• The District has held interviews and is in the process of selecting an 

applicant for the position with an estimated start date of 2/1/2017. 
(Hired Yuni LaFontaine) 

 

Goal 2 -- Outreach: The Altadena Library District will tell its story to the community through 
enhanced print, electronic and social media communications. 

 
Objectives for Goal 2: Increase visibility of library in community 

 

Community Conversations 
This fall and winter the Altadena Library will be taking its role as a community connector seriously 

and will be focusing on a turned-outward way to authentically engage members of our 

community through a series of conversations using the Harwood and Libraries Transforming 

Communities protocol and training. This process will provide the library with knowledge of the 

community’s aspirations, what they think needs to change in order to reach these aspirations and 

what do they believe they can do and who do they trust to take action on the challenges that we 

face as a community.  

 

o The Staff and Library Support groups had the first Community Conversations. The 
Invitation Schedule has been created and is on-line. Conversations are being 

scheduled. (The District completed 24 conversations on 3/19/17 and is now in 

Page 141 of 158



the process of preparing the final report and finalizing the details of the Town Hall 
meeting which is scheduled for April 27 in Farnsworth Park at 7pm). 

o The California State Library provided the library with funding to add up to four 
staff members into the training for this initiative. The following staff volunteered 

to be a part of this training and to use what they learn to teach other staff how to 

“Turn Outward” and the principals of the Harwood approach: Ryan, Estella, 
Melissa and Helen. 

 
• The purpose of these conversations is to: 

o Assess Public Opinion that will be applied to inform decision-making of all kinds, especially for 

future planning for the Altadena library 
o Engage our community and provide the space for new relationships to form 

o Find new partners and create opportunities for collaboration 

o Develop strategies for working on issues and build capacity to be able to work together 
o Create natural pathways for people and organizations to contribute 

o Educate the community about the important resource and significant value of their public 
library 

 

• From this outreach process, we will garner information from the community on a number of topics, 

and from this information, the board may decide to revisit the strategic plan/vision/mission and goals 
of the District. The information will also provide our support groups (Friends and Foundation) with 

the information they need to effectively campaign for donations.  (Our current strategic plan expires 
in 2017) 

 
• Create a style guide to be used by the Library, Friends and Foundation so all communications have a 

uniform and recognizable look.  Draft was presented and is being revised for presentation to the 

Boards in 2016/2017 and to include signage guidance. 

  
A marketing and graphics consultant was hired for marketing for the upcoming 

events including the 50th anniversary, summer reading, Grand re-Opening, 
awareness campaign for Phase I Renovation and community conversations. All 

marketing assets are on schedule. 

 
• Create a Social Media Marketing Plan including parameters and best practices protocols. Increase our 

presence within social Internet platforms (Facebook, Pinterest, etc.), and add social media options to 

our website. 
 

Chloe, our marketing consultant has been working with Mikayla and other staff on 

the Social Media campaigns and general online presence. During this process the 
District will create a Social Media Marketing Plan. 

 
Move the Library Outside the Walls 

 
Participate in bringing awareness to the community by advocating for the library in the 

community. Specifically, during Library Card Signup Month and during other times we will  be 

reaching out to the community with a physical presence. For example, the library could have a 
presence at public events such as farmer’s market, concerts in the park, Little Free Library etc. 

The implementation team for this goal will work on specifics and present them to the Leadership 
Team during the 2nd Quarter of the fiscal year.   

Page 142 of 158



 
An Implementation Team was created for this goal: Helen, Melissa, Ashley, Vicki, 

Mikayla, Kylynn and Ryan.  
 

We currently have programs scheduled at the Farmers Market, the swimming pool 

and we are expanding our reach into the local middle and high schools. The District is 
also creating a plan to provide Little Free Libraries around Altadena. We are 

discussing raffling off the Little Free Libraries as a fund raiser. The Implementation 
Team is working on additional Library Outside the Walls Programs during the closure. 

 
Increase communication and partnerships between the Library, Friends and Foundation. Meet 

with all three groups to discuss how they feel this can be accomplished.  

 
o Hold a Community Conversation (Harwood) with all three Boards in December 

2016. This was completed on December 17, 2016. 
o The District has joined United for Libraries which is the support group for Library 

Trustees, Advocates, Friends and Foundations and the California State Library 

equivalent. We are working on developing presentations and mediation with 
these groups using the resources of both organizations. 

 
Goal 3 -- Facilities: The Altadena Library District will provide a facility that is comfortable, 

welcoming, safe, energy efficient, flexible, and fully disabled-accessible. 

 
Objectives for Goal 3: 

Create more defined spaces for the public: This objective came from feedback about the 
library being too noisy and lacking quiet places to work and study as well as from teens 

requesting quiet study areas. Determine if changes due to using the HUD funding for new 
shelving will allow us to create quiet study spaces and more meeting area by redefining the 

layout of the main floor which will be necessary to meet ADA requirements.  

 
Complete reorganization of lower level staff spaces in order to open up more space for the public 

on the main level.  
 

o The lower level staff areas are being reorganized.  The District opened up a small 

study/meeting room upstairs in the children’s department to the public, which 
had been previously used as staff offices. Staff was relocated to the lower level. 

 
o Complete the creation of a teen area along the west end of the library  

o The teen space has been created and is being heavily utilized. There is new 
furniture in the teen area as well as a new desk for the teen librarian. New 

shelving will help to further separate the area. 

 
o Research, purchase and install at least one exterior lighted sign and a cohesive signage 

design for the interior of the building.  
 

o Implementation Team: Helen, Mindy, Mikayla, Paulina (volunteer) to plan 

for upgrade during closure. Helen’s idea to take cuttings of the existing 
plants and place in small containers to give away at the next Second 

Saturday was approved. 

Page 143 of 158



Provide plan for replanting of planters in reading court as part of the mini-renovation. If mini-renovation 

does not happen the replanting is still budgeted for and will go forth. 

The plan for the planters has been created. The planters have been cleaned out 

and re-sealed. A platform has been installed in the large planter and will be 
covered with rock and then individual potted plants will be placed in the space. A 

new palm tree will be located in the same place as the old palm which was hitting 

the ceiling. Additional planters will be placed at both entrances and at strategic 
spots in the library. The District is awaiting bids. 

 
Improve internal aesthetics, cleanliness & safety goals 

 

Safety:  HR Network’s contract includes safety training and creating a safety program for the library. The 
team will work with HR Network for staff training on this subject 

 
Aesthetics: As spaces become defined and change, we will be able to make updates to certain aesthetic 

parts of the library such as replacing the carpet. Internal signage is a priority.  
 

The team will work with the foundation to figure out the following priorities: Bridge repair, replacing 

carpeting, making the library ADA Compliant, electrical upgrades, signage, replace furniture and replacing 
shelving, using the HUD funds, District budgeted funds and additional funding from the Foundation. 

 
This will be addressed during the Phase 1 Renovation. The Foundation has approved 

funding of $75,000 for flooring which includes replacing the flooring in the community 

room, staff break room and the administrative and passport offices. New shelving and 
replacement of the entrance doors are covered by the HUD Grant funds. Other 

improvements such as signage, more electrical and data outlets and minor repairs are 
being paid for from the District Budget. Scheduled completion date April 30, 2017. 

 

External Signage – Monument Signs (2017/2018) 
 

Goal 4 -- Lifelong Learning: The Altadena Library District will fuel Altadena’s passion for 
reading, personal growth, and learning. 

 
Improve and diversify programming: Expand and develop programming (classes, seminars, 

lectures, training, presentations,) that meets the needs of the community and is experiential and 

relevant.  
 

• Create an implementation team to assess the results of program exit surveys, community 
conversations, and the success of existing/past programs. This team will evaluate how 

programs should evolve going forward. They will be responsible for:  

• Figuring out what new programs to try and what programs have already been working 
• Making sure we are reaching all segments of the community (ie: age, ethnicity, socio 

economic status, etc.) 
• Introducing new ideas to the community which the community may not have had an interest 

in originally 
 

▪ An Implementation Team was created with Kate as the Lead. The members 

are the same as the members of the existing Program Committee.  The 

Page 144 of 158



Programming Committee has spent the last couple days refining our hopes 
and dreams statement to:  The Programming Committee hopes to create 

educationally and recreationally enriching experiences that reflect the 
wide variety of interests of the Altadena Community driven by public 

knowledge. Events, seminars, classes, and workshops will be offered both 

in the library and out in the community as we strive to build meaningful 
connections and supportive relationships with neighboring organizations. 

The Library's learning curriculum support interest- driven learning for 
children, teens, and adults. To accomplish this, programming will continue 

to foster an environment of exploration and new discoveries that reflect 
what matters to the community of Altadena. 

 

▪ The Community Conversations have provided the District with a lot of 
information to use in the evaluation and creation of future programs. 

▪ Starting in October of 2017 Second Saturday’s will include an opening act. 
The opening act will be focused on young adults who are aspiring 

artists/musicians (spoken word poetry, musicians, vocalists), and will be 

approximately 20 minutes in length. 
 

Goal 5 -- Technology: The Altadena Library District will provide access to the digital world 
through state-of-the-art technologies. 

 

Provide better platform for staff/public interaction with the Library 
• Summer Reading online open source platform is a priority 

o Beanstack which is an online program to support Summer Reading and other 

library initiatives has been purchased and is scheduled to go live in March 
2017. 

 
• Community engagement tool: Biblio Board (the library purchased this tool and will be rolling it 

out in 16/17)  

o This tool allows the work of local artists, musicians, and writers to be featured online 

o This has been cancelled for this year. May be re-addressed in the future. 

 

• Unique Phone System 

o Telephone service for library including live help online from our website. Some of the 

service’s capabilities include: answering phone calls, scheduling appointments (ex: for 
the community room), forwarding calls to specific staff members, forwarding calls to the 

reference desk, placing holds on books, etc. 
 

o Schedule a webinar in November for the leadership team to assess the pros and cons of 
implementing the system. A circulation staff member from the Palos Verdes Library, who 

has used the service for a number of years, will attend and explain how it works for their 

library. 
 

• Leadership attended a webinar for Unique, discussed and approved the 

plan to outsource our telephone services. A contract has been signed and 
an Implementation Team was created: Ryan, Mindy, Christopher and 

Kylynn. The System went live in February of 2017 and is currently being 

evaluated. 

Page 145 of 158



 
• Expand the Teen DIY program to create a Digital Learning Lab/Makerspace (FabLab) for all ages.   

 
• An Implementation Team of Ryan and Kate was created and they will be 

asking staff to expand the team. The walls of the FabLab are being created 

using the new shelving. Other aspects of the FabLab are continuing to be 
discussed and are evolving. The District applied for a Cypress Grant of 

$125,000 for expanding the FabLab. 
 

Library Staff Training and Development 
 

C.O.R.E. (Core Organizational Responsibilities Evaluation), which includes what services we 

provide & how we provide them – positions needed in the Library/job description review, 
our organizational and staff values, morale, internal communication, salary & benefits 

review, and professional training. 
 

A)  Work with HRNetwork on ways to address morale issues. 

• HRNetwork to attend All Staff Meetings and present on topics selected by the 
Administration/leadership and Board and will continue to present at Staff Meetings until 

further notice.  
 

• The most prevalent morale issues will be defined. Leadership Team (with the assistance 

of HRNetwork) will identify and discuss methods of improvement, culminating in the 
creation of a specific plan of action. The plan may or may not include the refining of 

existing strategies (such as White Board and Implementation Teams). 
 

• At a defined time, the Leadership Team, (with the assistance of HRNetwork), will further 
analyze if morale has improved; this will be shared with the staff and the board, and will 

be used to reassess and update plan. 

 
o HRNETwork has been attending all-staff meetings, presenting at same 

and Board meetings and reporting to the Board. They are working 
closely with Administration to address needs and issues as they arise. 

o HRNETwork provided staff with Disc assessments and an All Staff 

Meeting is scheduled in April to evaluate and learn how to use this 
information to improve internal communications and teamwork. 

o Monthly All Staff Meetings include the “Pulse” which is a quick survey 
of staff to assess staff morale. The questions will remain the same from 

month to month and will be reviewed with Administration by 
HRNETwork.  

Pulse Survey 
Scale from 1-5 (negative to positive):  

1. Do you feel that our “organizational culture” is improving?  
2. Are you happy at work? 

Open Ended: 
3. Are there any obstacles keeping you from doing your best work?  If yes, what are 

they? 
4. Do you think we are heading in the right direction as a company? Why? Why not?  

 

Page 146 of 158



B)  HRNetwork has been tasked with creating a new employee manual and SOP’s which will be provided 
to all employees.  

• HRNETwork will be presenting the updated employee manual at the February and 

March Board meetings. 
 

C) HRNetwork will be doing a salary and benefits analysis in 2016/2017 for review by the Board.  

 
D) The staff will meet to provide input on a cultural values statement for the organization. (September 

Staff Meeting) and a document will be created that defines our cultural values in relation to our Vision 
and Mission as an organization. Staff has provided input on preferences for cultural values and 

have begun to define them. We will continue this process with HRNETwork and the goal is to 
have a specific document by March 2017. 

 

E) Leadership Team will review the outcomes from the Community Conversations and use the 
information to review the services and products we offer to the public. Based on this information 

Leadership will make recommendations as to changes in job roles in order to better meet the needs of 
our community. New job descriptions will be created accordingly. 

 

F)  Encourage staff to share their passions and their aspirations in relation to their job and duties, and 
use that information to provide opportunities for empowerment, improve job satisfaction, and build 

confidence. Christopher has updated the Intranet ‘resident expert’ list so that staff can also 
submit their passions. The Programming Committee will be using this information to 

encourage staff to use their passions in presentations for the community and for staff. 
 

G) Training: The fiscal and organizational success of the District relies upon a well-organized, informed, 

technologically proficient, and forward-thinking staff. Continue to search out opportunities for our staff to 
view, learn and discuss what other libraries and institutions are doing. Continue the work of the Staff 

Technology Competencies Implementation Team to provide staff with expectations and training. 
 

Update from the Staff Activities Club: 

The Staff Activates Club is an organization that sets up events for staff members to get more 
acquainted, build better relationships, relax and enjoy each other’s company, and give 

opportunity to meet and spend time with family and friends outside of work.  In addition, 
the club is geared to expand our knowledge, experience, and grow as an organization 

together.  

  
Events in the past have included:  

* 3D Printing Class  
* Movie Nights   

* Hide n Seek/Nerf Wars  
* Jewelry making class  

* Game nights  

* Roller Skating  
  

Future events will include:  
* Mountain View Mausoleum  

* Karaoke night  

* Visiting other libraries/museums  
* Go on hikes  

Page 147 of 158



* Going to local events   
* Expand our knowledge on crafting  

* And much more  
   

The goal for the rest of this year is to increase staff participation, develop and strengthen 

work relations among all staff members.  
  

 
 

 
COMPLETED ITEMS AS OF 10/31/2016 

Lifelong Learning & Outreach: Participated in Outside the Lines:  Outside the Lines is a weeklong 

celebration demonstrating the creativity and innovation happening in libraries. We had special Inspiration 
Stations includes Happy Signs and we partnered with the Girl Scouts in Parking Day. 

 
Facilities: Retrofit of lighting to LED at the Branch in the Parking Lot. Completed September 2016: Branch 

parking lot is now 100% LED. 

 
Technology: Upgrade to VOIP telecommunications system. Completed 

 
C.O.R.E.: Have a full day of staff training in October (annually) with opportunities for staff to work 

together as a team and learn from experts in the Library field. Completed, Exit Survey results shared with 

Board and Staff 
 

C.O.R.E.: Set library staff technology competencies and train staff in accordance. The Implementation 
team for this project is meeting regularly and training is being created and completed. This is an ongoing 

project that will be modified and revised as needed as time and technology changes occur. 
 

Outreach: In July we began a program to bring back users who have not visited the library in over 12 

months. This consists of an email blast to those users inviting them back. This will happen quarterly. 

Page 148 of 158



Get Yom Own - Pasadena Weekly Page 1 of3 

TRENDING : l I f ~ SEARCH ~ 

HOME NEWS v OPINION v ARTS v LIFE v MUSIC v FILM v DINI NG CALENDAR v 

SPECIAL ISSUES v ARROYO 

[ 

Get Your Own 

Posted by John Sollenberger I Mar 9, 2017 I 0 • I 1t" ,. * ,. 

RANDOM MUSIC 

ORPHANED Jo.fARTIAN ROBOTS, 

AND OTHER FASCit:!ATING ACCOUN,TS FRO,M 

THE ANNALS OF SPACEFLIGHT 

The Pasadena Symphony's Random Acts of Music series features a string 
quartet performing classical and contemporary favorites at 7 p.m. Friday at 
the Pasadena Senior Center, 85 E. Holly St. , Pasadena. Free. Sign up at the 
Welcome Desk. Call (626) 795-4331 or visit pasadenaseniorcenter.org. 

RUMBA RUMBLE -J 
The Altadena Library' s Second Saturday concert features the band 
DeRumba performing a mix of flamenco and gypsy rumba from 6:30 to 8:30 
p.m. Saturday at 600 E. Mariposa St., Altadena. Free. Beer, wine and food 
are available for purchase. Call (626) 798-0833 or visit altadenalibrary.org. 

CLASSICAL GAS 

Violinist Paul Stein, a member of the Los Angeles Philharmonic, performs an 
evening of solo violin with music by Bach, Tchaikovsky, Delius and John 
Williams while discussing his life in an orchestra and his experiences as a 
music teacher and performer at 7 p.m. Tuesday at Crowell Public Library, 
1890 Huntington Drive, San Marino. Free. Call (626) 300-0777 or visit 
cro>«ellpubliclibrary.org . 

SPACE ODDITIES 

Rod Pyle discusses and signs "Amazing Stories of the Space Age: True 
Tales of Nazis in Orbit, Soldiers on the Moon, Orphaned Martian Robots and 
Other Fascinating Accounts from the Annals of Spaceflight" at 7 p.m. 
Wednesday at Vroman's Bookstore, 695 E. Colorado Blvd., Pasadena. Call 
(626) 449-5320 or visit vromansbookstore.com. 

https:/ /www_pasadenaweekly .com/20 17 /03/09/get-yom-own-13/ 

THIS WEEK'S 
COVER 

MAR 
8~0G>Jst{v~:J f 

5 ~~Pm, •.. 
(hnps:/1 Pasadena Museum 
www.pa 

of California Art sadena 
weekly. (https:/lwww.pasade 
comJcal naweekly.com/evenU 
endar/a guslave-baumann-in-ction- o 
nedayfe california/? 
xact_da instance_id=549) 
te-3-5-
2017/) 

el~day Interstitial 
@Pasadena 
Mu~P.Hm of r.r~liforni::t 

3/23/20 17 
Page 149 of 158



Pasadena Now» The Altadena Library Hosts the Annual 'Poetry and Cookies' Event I Pa ... Page 1 of2 

PAS_\DE\ \NOW Q SEAROITIIF.Sin. I CO~"T,v:tl'S 0 0 0 @ 0 

NEWS I ENTERTAINMENT & EVENTS I COMMUNITY I SCHOOLS I ARTS & CULTURE l l';ood.-na.tu.icq I•·- & I T E CH;N«HA~ 

SOCIAL SCENE REAL ESTATE RESTAURAIITS & BARS ALERTS & NEWSLmERS SOCIAL MEDIA CENTllAL LEADING LAWYERS EXTRAS REPORT BREAKING IIEWS 

Where e&e am you gd this much daily neu.'f and infonnalion about PosodcnaJ I III .SOS monthly readen 121.410 email subs<ribn-s I 69,000 Sodal.\fedia jollou.>n't 

The Altadena Library Hosts the Annual 'Poetry 
and Cookies' Event 
From SJ"AFF REPORTS 

Published: Monday, March 6, 2017!3:39 PM 

llirn 
G•l 1 Share1 

F1ve of the s•x Pushcart Nom1nees from AUadena PoelrJ Re ... 1ew 2016 are shown at the awards celebral•on held February 3 at 
~lladena L•brary (L·R Allee Pero GT Foster Kanneh Mahdes1an Jack Bovvman Shaton Rtzk Teresa Me• Chuc could not attend) 
The Pushcart normneas are selected from small presses across the coun1ry lt1S an honor to be nomtnated 

It"s Poetry & Cookies Time at Altadena Library! 

Saturday, April 29 is the big day! Mark your calendars for t:OO p.m. when the Poetry and Cookies event returns to 

Altadena Ubrary. As Ubrary Director Mindy Kittay puts it, "This program is a much beloved by the community and 

another example of how libraries change lives by providing the tools, access and experiences that help each and every 

one of us reach our full potential.· 

This year's event will be one of the largest gathering of poets in our community for a major reading and will include 

many of the over 100 poets who were recently published in the brand-new Altadena Poetry Review: Anthology 2017, 

which will be fonnally released to the public that day. The poets include 6 poet laureates, authors of a combined over 

160 published books, over 14 Pushcart Prize Nominees, many national and international literary award winners, plus 

exciting new emerging poets. Free to the Public with Free Refreshments, Cookies, mingling with the poets, books to 

browse and buy, photo ops, etc. 

Founded by Principal Ubrarian Pauli Dutton in 2003, the purpose of the original Poetry and Cookies Anthology and 

reading even t was to provide new poets from Altadena and the surrounding communities an opportunity to have their 

work published and read their poetry in public. 

Elline Upkin, Poet Laureate for the Altadena Ubrary, 2016 - 2018, spearheads this year's edition. Eight volunteer 

poets, including Dutton, have helped with the selection of these poems. Of the hundreds of poets who submitted their 

work, one hundred were chosen. The poets are multi-culturally diverse, and the 160 poems in the book represent a 

broad variety of styles: traditional, unrhymed, short, long, humorous, poignant, political, inspirational, experimental, 

and, "everything in between.· 

From the beginning, the Friends of the Altadena Ubrary have provided seed money to publish the anthology and to 

supply cookies and encouragement at the public reading event in which the published poets read their work. This year 

the organization has made a significant donation to help defray the cost of publishing the anthology which will enable 

the publication to continue. 

You don't have to be a poet!)' lover to find joy and inspiration on April 30 at Altadena ~l ain Ubrary. J ust sit back and 

enjoy. Everyone is welcome! 

Altadena Library is located at 6oo East Mariposa St., Altadena. 

For more information, call (626) 798-0833 or visit the library online at www •\ lladenaLibrary O'i· 

naworcol 
(800) 838·3006 

~ ,.. 
Abilityfirst· 
Stroii&Roll 

Sunday 
April 2nd 

http://www. pasadenanow .com/main/the-altadena-library -hosts-the-annual-poetry -and-cook.. . 3/23/20 17 
Page 150 of 158



Pasadena Now» Teen Tech Week at the Altadena Library I Pasadena California, Hotels,C ... Page 1 of2 

Q SEARCHTI-IESITE I OONTACrUS 0 0 0 @ 0 

~EWS I ENTERTAINMENT & EVENTS I COMMUNITY I SCHOOLS I ARTS & CULTURE ll''~"lrn,.tuzuu, I H;-;:;< & •. I TECH&INNOVATlON 
SOCIAL SCENE REAL ESTATE RESTAURANTS & BARS ALERTS & NEWSLETTERS SOCIAL MEOlA CENTRAL LEADING LAWYERS EXTRAS REPORT BREAKING NEWS 

Where else can you get th is much daily news and iliformatio11 al:x>ut POWifena? IIOJ,J21 monthly readers I 21,410 email S11bscribers 153,000 Social Media f ollowers 

Teen Tech Week at the Altadena Library 
Be the Source of Change during Teen Tech Week 2017 
From STAFF REPORTS 

Published :Thursday, February 16, 2017 I 4:42PM 

Share 49K • Sharel 

Local teens will be tuning in at the library as Altadena Library District celebrates the annual Teen Tech 

Week"' from March 6-11. They join thousands of other libraries and schools across the country who are 

celebrating this year's theme, Be the Source of Change, to raise awareness about how Altadena Library 

District creates a space to extend teens' learning beyond the classroom where they can explore, create, 

and share content. 

Teen Tech Week is a national initiative of the Young Adult Library Services Association (YALSA) aimed 

at teens, their parents, educators, and other concerned adults. 

Kate Shumaker, Teen Librarian, feels that "Getting teens into libraries is essential. Offering gaming, 

access to computers, and online homework help is important, and letting them know that we can help 

educate them on how to use these resources will get them in the door. Once they're in the door, we can 

show teens that with technology at the library, anything is possible." 

From maker spaces, to coding classes and online knitting clubs now offered by libraries across the 

country, the do-it-yourself theme shows how libraries provide meaningful contributions to the 

educational and social development of the teens in the community. 

"Teen Tech Week is a way for librarians and educators to collaborate with and educate teens about 

technology," says Kate Shumaker. "Over the last several years the library's role in increasing digital 

literacy has become increasingly important, equal to that of reading li teracy." 

Teens are encouraged to celebrate Teen Tech Week at the Altadena Library by attending the weeks 

programs including: 

Engineering Mystery Bags on Monday at 4pm and DIY Constellation Boxes on Friday at 4:00p.m. 

Teen Tech Week is held annually the second week of March. For more information, visit 

www.ala.org/teentechweek. 

PRE~ER 
ROSE 
PARADE 
SEATING 

http://www.pasadenanow.com/mainlteen-tech-week-at-the-altadena-library/ 

Residential and 
outpatient programs 

Reasonable rates, 
a sliding scale 

for those that qua lify, 
and Drug·Medi·Cal 
outpatient funds 

avai lable . 

Serving Pasadena 
and the San Gabriel 

Valley since 1969. 

~Lr;{l. f~SI ~ Al,;~l.'l'cl':l't'['t· 
626·798·0884 

2117/201 7 
Page 151 of 158



Pasadena Schools » Pasadena Waldorf School Presents "La Soiree" I Pasadena California,... Page 1 of 5 

DAI LYSJNCE.2004 Q SEARCH T HE SITE IOONTACTUS 0 0 0 @ 0 

flt I NEWS I ENTERTAINMENT & EVENTS I COMMUNITY I ARTS & CULTURE I Pasadrnn.tioll~g I Housr&,, •·· 

The Schools 
SCHOOLS HOME ACADEMICS BRIEFS COMMUNITY SERVICE EVENTS FOCUS ON LEARNING SCHOOL NEWS 

SPORTS THE ARTS 

c BOURN 
OOL 

SUMMER ADVANTAGE PROGRAM 
Enrollment Now Open I "WWw.clairbourn.org/summer/ 

Pasadena Waldorf School Presents "La 
Soiree" 
Article and Photo courtesy of PASADENA WALDORF SCHOOL 

Published: Thursday, March 2, 2017 ! s:so PM 

Tweet 

G+l c Share 

Pasadena Waldorf School invites the community to join LA SOIREE today Thursday, March 2nd, 

...-.- 7:00p.m. at the Altadena Public Library. Presented by Pasadena Waldorf School High School, 

Class of2018. La Soiree is an Evening of Choral and Instrumental Music Inspired by the History 

Through Music Main Lesson. 

- Altadena Library District is located at 6oo East Mmiposa Steel, Altadena. 

Pasadena Waldorf School, 209 E. Mariposa St., Altadena, (626) 794-9564 or 

visit www.pasadenawaldorforg. 

0\J~J~-t-
\--\~ld OJ\-

LA_\?y(~ 

http://www. pasadenanow. corn!pasadenaschoo Is/pasadena-waldorf-schoo 1-presents-la -soiree/ 3/2 3/2 0 1 7 
Page 152 of 158



Altadena Women's Network 
3-6-2017 

11There is no power greater than a community discovering what it 
cares about. 11 

rv Margaret Wheatley 

rvrvrv Congratulations to Jaylene Moseley who received 

Assemblymember Chris Holden's 2017 Woman of the Year award. 
Congratulations also Jacqueline Collier received the Woman of 
Distinction award for Altadena. Toni Boucher, Andrea Donnellan, 
Linda Hess, Monica Hubbard, Jacqueline Jacobs, Darlene Lewis, 

Darlene Leyba, Judy Matthews, Meredith Miller and Shirlee Smith all 
received certificates of appreciation for their service to Altadena . 
http://www. pasadena now .com/ma in/assemblymember-ch ris-holden
honors-the-41st-assembly-districts-women-of-distinction-at-annual

open-house/#. WLj3x28rKM9 

rvrvrv March 7 is the date for the Altadena Town Council Land Use 

Committee meeting, but as of this posting the only agenda available 
was for the January meeting . Check back later tonight or tomorrow 
to find out what action items the Land Use Committee will be taking 

up. 

rvrvrv There is another Community Conversation coming up at the 

Altadena Library on Thursday, March 9 from 7-8:30 p.m. If you'd like 
to share your thoughts about our community -- what's great and 

what changes you'd like to see, this is the conversation for you. 
Details on the Library's website here: 
http://www .altadenalibrary.org/blog/mkittay/20 17/02/23/community 
-conversation-library 

rvrvrv No Boundaries 12, the Pasadena Unified School District's 
(PUSD) 12th annual student art exhibition, opens with a reception on 

Friday, March 10, at 6 p.m . at the Shops on Lake Avenue, 345 S. 

Lake Ave., Pasadena. The annual exhibition features more than 500 
artworks created by K-12th grade students in a variety of media, 
from paintings and drawings to masks and textile art. The opening 
reception, scheduled during ArtNight Pasadena, features choral, 

musical, and theatrical performances by Pasadena Unified students 
Page 153 of 158



Listen to great music as you sip 
craft beer and fine wine from The 
Ale House; savor wonderful dishes 
from El Patron and Guerrilla Chef 
Mateo; and sample delectable 
desserts from Sweeter Than Honey 

Todd Washington Trio Louis Van Taylor Quintet 
Blues, Folk, Rock, Soul and Gospel Jazz 
January 14,2017 April 8 

Splish Splash Band Michael Haggins Band 
Rock, Jazz and Blues Funk and Smooth Jazz 
February 11 May 13 

DeRumba The Satisfaction Band 
Spanish Guitar to the beat Dance music Top 40, Latin Rock, 
of the Gypsy Rumba R&B. Cumbias and Oldies 
March 11 June 10 

SECOND SATURDAYS 

[mostly] 

FROM 6:30 TO 8:30 PM 

AT THE 
ALTADENA 
LIBRARY 

Altadena 
-...Libraries 

600 East Mariposa 

Altadena I 626 798 0833 

WWIY.Aitadenallbrary.org 

Sparks -Altadena Rotary Club Newsletter 7 
Page 154 of 158



Altadena Women's Network 

3-20-2017 

"There is no power greater than a community discovering what it cares 

about." "' Margaret Wheatley 

rvrvrv For all of you who get involved in dying Easter eggs, this video is for 

you. 

https: //www. facebook.com/U pperSturtGeneraiStore/videos/1353987071329 

992/?pnref=story.unseen-section 

"'"'"'Altadena Town Council meets on Tuesday, March 21 at 7 p.m. at the 

Altadena Community Center. Eight of our 16 Town Council representatives 

have terms that expire in June: Chomyn, Malone, Hobdy, Cooper, Musson, 

Robertson, Lansing and Vega. Come attend this meeting to meet them, if 

you haven't already. http://altadenatowncouncil.org/ 

rvrvrv Neighbors Building a Better Altadena will be hosting a general meeting 

on Saturday, March 25. Details will be sent to NBBA's e-mail list and posted 

on the NBBA Facebook page. If your e-mail address has changed, or if you'd 

like to be added to the NBBA e-mail list, send e-mail to 

maii@BuildingABetterAitadena.org . 

• "'"'"'On Saturday, April 1 there will be an adoption event co-hosted by the 
Altadena Library District and The Pasadena Humane Society. 10 a.m. to 1 

p.m. in the Library's parking lot and community room. 600 E. Mariposa . For 

more information, call 626-798-0833 or http://www.altadenalibrary.org . 

"'"'"' Lisa Hamilton, a realtor at Sotheby's - 
http://www.hamiltonteamrealestate.com/-- advertised on the Beautiful 

Altadena Facebook page that she has two 1 bedroom/1 bath apartments for 

rent at 2282 Maiden Lane. Many updates and remodeled with stainless steel 

appliances, while still retaining original 1920s charm. Patios and plenty of 

outdoor space with w/d on -site. On street parking. $1650/mo. and 

$1750/mo. Please contact Lisa directly. 

Page 155 of 158



- ~ • -
t r.r.~\aXJ MERI:DIT~ McKENZIE 

BROKtR ASSOCIAH: 
626.344.9755 

I:VI:NTS IN J=ULL BLOOM 
• 

3 GOLDEN BOUG~ AT T~E COFFEE GALLERY 
8pm • The CoffH Gallery Backstlie• ALTADENA 
Enjoy the traditional music of the Celtic nations in Altadena! 
coffeecallery.com 

3-5 ART IN BLOOM 
Creati\'e Arts Group. 51 ERRA MADRE 
A unique ad exhibition in which local Aorists create artistic. 
Aoral interpretations of art pieces. creati ... arhcroup.orc 

4 DUARTE COMMUNITY ~EALT~ FAIR 
8-n:3()am • DUARTE Community Center 
Community health lair offering a variety of free health care 
screenings and info sessions. duartechamber.com 

4 24T~ ANNUAL WESTERN ROUND-UP 
1oam-2pm • LA CANADA Community Center 
A day of western-themed fun lor the whole family! Pony rides, 
games, petting zoo & more! cclcf .ore 

4·5, 11·12 C~ERRY BLOSSOM FESTIVAL 
9am-Spm • Descanso Gardens, LA CANADA I=LINTRIDGE 
Springtime celebration featuring music, origami. food and 
guided garden walks. descansocardens .orc 

5 626 GOLDEN STREETS 
9am-3pm • Various SAN GABRIEL VALLEY locations 
Walk, run , skate, bike and explore! 18• miles of open streets link 
61=oothill Gold Line stations. 626colde nstreets.com 

7 ~OUSE MUSIC CONCERT SERIES 
7pm • Gamble House, PASADENA 
The Gamble House living room transforms into an intimate music 
venue with reception on the terrace. camblehouse.orc 

8-16 PASADENA INTERNATIONAL FILM FESTIVAL 
Participating PASADENA Theatres 
The best of the best in independent 111m are showcased at this 
annual 9·day festival. paudenafilmfestival.orc 

11, 18, 25 LAZY KNITIING WORKS~OP SERIES 
2pm • MONROVIA Pub&c Library 
FREE works hip to design and knit your own statement necklace, 
garland & tote bag. Supplies provid~Ml . cityofmonrovia.orc 

12 WISTARIA FESTIVAL 
9am-Spm • Downtown SIERRA MADRE 
Come stop by the Podley boot},! Tour the world's largest 
wistaria vine. enjoy li\'e music & family-friendly activities . 
sierramadrechamber.com 

17·18 BATILE OF T~E BIG BANDS 
7pm • Haugh Performing Arts Center. GLENDORA 
Citrus College's Blue Note Orchestra & Azusa Pacific University's 
Jazz Ensemble lace off in a musical duel. hauchpac.com 

20 MONDAY MOYIE NIGHT: TJ.lf GOOD DINOSAUR 
6pm • MONROVIA Public Library 
Imagine a world where dinosaurs & humans li\'e side-by·side. 
Enjoy freshly popped popcorn. cityofmonrovia .orc 

24 TEEN FILM: DOCTOR STRANG£ 
3:30pm • ALTADENA Library 
Gather your friends & enjoy a Aick about a former neurosurgeon 
drawn into the world of the mystic arts. alhdenalibrary.orc 

24 C~ALK PAINT• PAINT·A·PIECE WORKS~OP 
Spm • Knot Too Shabby, GLENDORA 
Bring and learn how to painl d istress & wax your furniture. 
knottooshabby.net 

24·26 ~UCK FINN FIS~ING DERBY & CAMP OUT 
Times Vary • SIERRA MADRE Settling Basin 
Fantastic opportunity lor families to get experience camping & 
fishing at this 3·day annual event. cityofsierramadre.com 

25 AN EVENING OF WINE & C~OCOLATE 
Spm • La Fetra Center, GLENDORA 
Enjoy a sit down evening of saumpt.ious chocolates paired with the 
pert'.!d wine. ci.clendora.ca.us 

25 MARIAC~I WOMEN'S FESTIVAL: iVIVA VERACRUZ! 
7:30pm • SAN GABRIEL Mission Playhouse 
A unique musical journey from jarocho fandango to mariachi 
fiesta. miuionplayhouse.orc 

25 PEACOCK DAY 
9:3oam-4:3opm • LA Arboretum & Botanic Garden. ARCADIA 
Celebrate the peacock with activities exploring their amazing 
habits & attributes. arcad iaca.cov 

2017 Events Calendar ALTADENA I LA CANADA FLINTRIDGE I GLENDORA 

PODLEY.COM MONROVIA I SIERRA MADRE I PASADENA 

Page 156 of 158



MARCH CALENDAR 
Our Top Picks For Fami ly Fun 

San Diego folk rock duo has been 
performing for 13 years, has made 
13 albums, played more than 3,000 
shows and put out a new "Best Of" 
collection. $10 ages 2 and older. 
www.mccabes.com (WS) 

* S.T.E.A.M. Machines, 11:30 
a.m.-5 p.m., Santa Monica Pier, 200 
Santa Monica Pier, Santa Monica. 
This free event offers a day of 
gadgets, innovation, creativity and 
fun. S.T.E.A.M. -related activities 
include snap circuits, solar-powered 
robotics and an R.O.V. There will also 
be a regional Rube Goldberg contest 
feat.uring clever contraptions built 
by competing student teams. FREE. 
www.healthebay.org (WS) 

826LA@Hammer: King or Queen 
for a Day, 11 a.m. -1 p.m., Hammer 
Museum, 10899 Wilshire Blvd., L.A. 
Invent your own brand-new country 
- draw the map, write the laws, 
design the flag- with the option to 
share your sovereign nation at the 
end of the workshop, which will be 
led by award-winning author J. Ryan 
Strada I. Ages 8-12. FREE. www. 
hammer.ucla.edu (WS) 

Andell Family Sundays, 12:30-
3:30 p.m. today, March 12 and 26, 
LACMA, 5905 W ilshire Blvd., L.A. 
This month's art projects are inspired 
by the armor, prints, and paintings 
on display in the "Renaissance and 
Reformation: German Art in the Age 
of Durer and Cranach" exhibition. 
Act!vated Story Theatre will perform 
fun tales on March 12. Children must 
be accompanied by an adult. Free; 
museum admission not included. 
www.lacma.org (LA) 

Cleary Irish Dance Performance, 1-2 
p.m., Kidspace Children's Museum, 
480 N. Arroyo Blvd., Pasadena. The 

42 March 2017 L.A. Parent 

group will do a series of traditional 
Irish step dance routines and give 
a step tutorial and group dance 
session. $13 ages 1 and older. www. 
kidspacemuseum.org CSGV) 

Mini-Train Rides, 11 a.m.-3 p.m. 
today, noon-3 p.m. March 19, 
Wilson Park, 2200 Crenshaw Blvd., 
Torrance. Take a ride on one of the 
Southern California Live Steamers' 
mini-trains. These runs occur on the 
first Sunday and the third Saturday 
of each month. Free; donations 
appreciated. www.Facebook.Com/ 
SoCalliveSteam (SB) 

6 Monday 
Teddy Bear Storytime, 7-7:35 p.m., 
Altadena Library District, 600 E. 
Mariposa St., Altadena. Little ones 
are invited to the Children's Room 
for stories, songs and finger-plays. 
Ages 6 and younger. FREE. www. 
altadenalibrary.org CSGV) 

7 Tuesday 
* Free Family Night: Holi Festival, 
4-8 p.m., Kidspace Children's 
Museum, 480 N. Arroyo Blvd., 
Pasadena. Museum-goers can 
celebrate this springtime holiday 
observed in India. A highlight of 
tonight's event will be the traditional 

color throw, and there will be a 
cultural performance at 6 p.m. FREE. 
www.kidspace.org (SGV) 

South Bay Galleria Kids Club, 6-7 
p.m., 1815 Hawthorne Blvd., Redondo 
Beach. The Fantastic Alex will 
entertain with a comical act that 
features Cirque du Soleil-like juggling, 
unicycle riding and tricks. FREE. 
www.southbaygalleria.com (SB) 

8 Wednesday 
Alvin Ailey American Dance 
Theater, 7:30 p.m. today-March 
10, 2 and 7:30p.m. March 11, 2 
p.m. March 12, Dorothy Chandler 
Pavilion, 135 N. Grand Ave., L.A. 
Performances will include the 
company's signature "Revelations," 
along with the West Coast premiere 
of a new work commissioned by 
the Music Center. Ages 8 and 
older, although 7:30 p.m. March 8 
and 11 performances are the most 
challenging for kids. $34-$125. www. 
musiccenter.org (LA) 

9 Thursday 
"Pop for the People: Roy 
Lichtenstein in L.A." Exhibit, 
noon-S p.m. Tues.-Fri., 10 a.m.-5 
p.m. Sat.-Sun. through March 12, 
Skirball Cultural Center, 2701 N. 
Sepulveda Blvd., L.A. This exhibit 
explores Lichtenstein's pioneering 
pop-art work and Southern 
California connections, including his 
collaborations with the L.A.-based 
artists' workshop Gemini G.E.L. One 
of the galleries has been turned 
into an interactive space where 
visitors can "enter" Lichtenstein's 
reimagining of Vincent van Gogh's 
painting "Bedroom at Aries." $12 
adults, $9 ages 2-18,$7 ages 2-12. 
www.skirball.org CWS) 

* = Editor's Choice 
Page 157 of 158



r 

• ARTS • 
FILM I THEAHR BOOKS MUSIC COMMUUIIY LISTINGS 

FUSION IN A TIME OF 
SEPARATISM 
MAURITANIAN MUSICAL AMBASSA· 
OOR tiOURA MINT SEYMALI HOLDS 
COURT AT CAL TECH FRIDAY 

LIFE'S UTILE 
MOMENTS 
SIERRA MADRE PLAYHOUSE PRES· 
ENTS ITS MOST AMBITIOUS PRODUC· 
TIONS YET WITH 'A WRitJKLE IN TIME' 

-~ 
.... 

GLEE GIVERS 
A NOISE WITHIN HOSTS YALE'S LEGENDARY A CAPELLA GROUP THE WHIFFENPOOFS 

BY CARL KOZLOWSKI 

A
s Lhe Los Angeles area's premier repertory theater, A Noise 
Within (ANW) has established a reputallon for lavish produc· 
lions of classic plays. But on Monday the hallowed hall will 

play hostlo an entirely different kind of shOw when the wodd's 
o ldest au1d best-known collegiate a capella singing,group The 
Whiffenpoofs take Lhe stage. 

The 14-member team of Yale University men will be present· 
ing a concert in which they use their stellar singing skills on more 
than20 songs, ranging from classic pop songs like Paul Simon's 
"The Boxer' and the Earth Wind and Fire version of"Got to Gel 
You Into My Life' through st~ndards such as George Gershwin's 

"They Can't Take That Away From Me" and "You Are Too Deauti· 
ful" by Rodgers & Hart. Between the tunes, the members engage in 
humorous banter w ith the audience as well 

At the heart of the show, however, Is the group's own theme 
song, "The WhiffenpoofSong," which can be traced to a 1907 
w inter trip by the Yale Glee Club. Two of the group's founding 
members created a humorous adaptation of the Rudyard Kipling 
poem, "Gentleman Rankers," and upon finishing their premiere 
rend ilion of the song they declared it their anthem "to be sung at 
every meeting, reverently standing." 

Throughout the 110 years since, each class of Whiffenpoofs has 

CONTINUED ON PAGE 23 

KING OF THE 
. MULTIPLEX 

'KONG: SKULL ISLAUD' DELIVERS 
JAW-DROPPING EtHERTAINMENT 

RANDOM MUSIC 

~J 
.., P.asad.ena 

sen1or 
center 

The Pasadena 
Symphony's 
Random Acts 
of Music series 
features a 
siring quartet 
performing 
classical and 
conlemporary 
lavonles at 7 
p.m. Fnday at the 
Pasadena Semor 

Center, 85 E. Holly St., Pasadena. Free. Sign up at 
the Welcome Desk. Call (626) 795·4331 orvlsot 

V101101SI Paul 
Ste1n .. a member 
ollhe Los Angeles 
PhilharmoniC, 
performs an eve· 
ning ol solo v1ohn 
wilh mus1c by 
Bach. Tclla1kovsky, 
Oehus and John 
Williams wh1le diS· 
cussrng his lile 10 
an orchestra and 

his expenences as a music teacher and performer 
at 7 p m Tuesday at Crowell Public Library, 1890 
Huntington Drive, San Manno. Free. Call (626) 300· 
0777 or vis1t crowellpubllcllbrary.org 

SPACE ODDITIES 

AMAZING 
sroRtE5 

I .•• ., • ·' 

,.. .. ... . ___ _,.,. 
~·~ ,. -r 
·-· \1 _., ... 

Rod Pyle d1s· 
cusses and s1gns 
"Amazrno Sto11es 
of I he Space Age· 
True Tales of Naz1s 
10 Orb1t. Soldiers 
on the Moon. 
Orphaned Mart1an 
Robots and 
Other Fascmallng 
Accounts from 
the Annals of 
Spaceflight" at 7 

p.m. Wedoesday at Vroman's Bookstore. 695 E. 
Colorado Blvd .. Pasadena. Call (626) 449·5320 or 
visit vromansbookstore.com. 

Page 158 of 158




